
STRENGTHENING OUR 
COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

2014 Annual Report and Accounts

Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 02



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 03

We are the private sector 
champion of the pan-African 
reinsurance industry.

With a history spanning more than 
25 years, we have developed an 
extensive network across Africa 
in order to serve our clients, 
premised on our “pan-African 
commitment made local”. 

With an emphasis on trusted 
relationships, we build on our 
diversified and profitable portfolio 
to offer uncomprising service and 
technical capability. Everything we 
do is underpinned by the translation 
of our pan-African track record 
and commitment into local value.

Our core 
service products
We are a composite reinsurer offering capacity and 
services across the full spectrum of Non-Life and 
Life business lines. We have a diversified team of 
experts strategically deployed throughout our 
regional operations.

Our clients enjoy unparalleled reinsurance 
underwriting, claims, advisory and training services.

Our vision
To be the premier Pan-African reinsurer.

Our mission
To provide credible reinsurance security and 
services to our clients and sustainable value to our 
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Our values
Commitment
Collective passion and commitment to the industry.

Responsiveness
High responsiveness in service, dependability and 
building of capability.

Sustainability
Realising ambitious, sustainable and relevant offerings.

Trust
Putting customers first by building relationships 
via localisation.

Who we are
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Overview

COMMITMENT 
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Demonstrating our continued localised pan-African commitment 
through the establishment of the local hubs in 7unisia and %otswana.
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Financial highlights
for the year ended December 31st, 2014

N millions, unless otherwise stated 2014 2013 change in %

Non-Life
Premium earned 12,572 10,963 15%

Life  
Premium earned 1,622 2,388 -���

Investment  
Investment income �net of e[change gain��loss� and impairment� �.��� 1,294 -���
5eturn on investment in �  7%  8%

Total  
Premium earned  14,194  13,351 6%
Combined ratio in � �1et of 5etro� 90% 87%  -��
Net income 856 1,753 -���
Earnings per share in kobo 8 17
Shareholders’ eTuit\  14,776  14,285  3%
5eturn on eTuit\1 in % 6% 12%
Number of employees2 69 46 50%
1 5eturn on eTuit\ is calculated b\ dividing annuali]ed net income attributable to common shareholders b\ average common shareholders’ eTuit\
2 Permanent staff

Financial strength ratings

as at December 31st, 2014 A.M Best

5atings B+
Outlook Good

Share Performance

Market Capitalisation as at April 30th, 2015
Share price in N �.��
1umber of Shares �%illion� ��.��
Market capitalisation in N Bn 9,750

CRe Share Price vs NSE ASICRe Share Price vs NSE ASI
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Board of Directors
Mr. +urle\ Dodd\ �American�� Chairman� 1on-([ecutive Director

Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi� Group Managing Director�C(2 

Mr. /awrence M. 1a]are �=imbabwean�� ([ecutive Director 

Mr. 9incent /e Guennou �)rench�� 1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. David S. SobanMo� 1on-([ecutive Director

Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang �Ghanaian�� 1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara �Mauritanian�� 1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[� 1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. )oluso /aguda� 1on-([ecutive Director

Corporate information

Company Secretary
Mrs. Abimbola A. )alana 

Registered Office
St. 1icholas +ouse ��th )loor� 
6, Catholic Mission Street 
Lagos, Nigeria

Regional Offices
Lagos Office 
St. 1icholas +ouse ��th )loor� 
6, Catholic Mission Street 
Lagos, Nigeria

Abidjan Office 
�Âme Ãtage� Imm. (Tuino[e� Angle de 
la 5oute du /\cÃe 7echniTue et de la 
5ue de la CanebiÂre �Carrefour 3isam� 
Cocod\ Danga r %3 ���� AbidMan �� 
AbidMan� CÎte d’Ivoire

Douala Office 
5ue 1gosso Din 
DerriÂre 3harmacie de la CÎte� %ali 
3.2. %o[ ���� 
Douala, Cameroon

Tunis Office 
5ue /ac /Ãman� Imm. 5egenc\ r %loc “C” 
�Âme Ãtage r %ur ��� 
1053 Les Berges du Lac 
Tunis, Tunisia

Subsidiaries
Kenya 
197 Lenana Place, 4th Floor 
/enana 5oad 
3.2. %o[ �����r����� 
Nairobi, Kenya

Botswana 
Plot 67977, Fairgrounds, Gaborone, 
%otswana 
3ostal address� 3.2. %o[ ��� A%G� Selebe 
Gaborone� %otswana

Solicitors
Bayo Osipitan & Co 
2A, Ireti Street 
Yaba, Lagos,  
Nigeria

Bankers
Stanbic IBTC Bank Ltd 
=enith %anN 3lc 
Guaranty Trust Bank Plc 
Ecobank, Douala 
NIC Bank, Nairobi 
United Bank for Africa Plc, Douala 
BGFI Bank, Douala 
8nited %anN for Africa 3lc� AbidMan 
SociÃtÃ Ivoirienne de %anTue� AbidMan 

Auditors
Ernst & Young 
�A� %a\o .uNu 5oad 
2ff Alfred 5ewane 5oad 
Ikoyi, Lagos, Nigeria

Registrars
Sterling Registrars Limited 
24, Campbell Street 
Lagos, Nigeria
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Notes:

1. Proxy
A member of the Compan\ entitled to attend and vote 
at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a 
pro[\ to attend and vote instead of him�her.  A pro[\ 
need not be a member of the Compan\. 7o be valid for 
the purpose of the meeting� the 3ro[\ )orm� which is in 
this Annual 5eport must be dul\ signed b\ the member 
and stamped by the Commissioner for Stamp Duties 
Office and deposited at the registered office of the 
5egistrars� Sterling 5egistrars /imited� ��� Campbell 
Street, Lagos not less than 48 hours before the time 
fi[ed for the meeting. 

2. Closure of register
1otice is hereb\ given that the register of members  
and transfer booNs of the Compan\ will be closed  
from Monda\� -ul\ ��th� ���� to )rida\� -ul\ ��th� ����� 
�both da\s inclusive� to enable the 5egistrars update  
the 5egister of Members and prepare for the pa\ment 
of dividend.

3. Payment of dividend
If the dividend recommended b\ the Directors  
is declared at the Annual General Meeting� dividend  
will be paid on )rida\� -ul\ ��st� ���� to shareholders 
whose names are registered in the Compan\’s 5egister 
of Members at the close of business on Friday,  
-ul\ ��th� ����. 7he accounts of shareholders who  
have completed the e-dividend Mandate )orm  
will be credited on -ul\ ��st� ���� while dividend 
warrants for shareholders who are \et to complete  
the e-dividend Mandate )orm will be posted on the 
same date.

Shareholders who have not completed the e-dividend 
Mandate )orm are encouraged to do so. An e-dividend 
Mandate )orm is in the Annual 5eport.

4. Unclaimed dividend 
A booNlet containing lists of shareholders who are  
\et to claim their dividend�s� from ���� to date will  
be circulated with the Annual 5eport. Members who 
have still not claimed their dividend�s� are advised to 
write to or call at the office of the 5egistrars� Sterling 
5egistrars /imited� ��� Campbell Street� /agos.

5. Change of address
Members are reTuested to notif\ the 5egistrars  
of changes� if an\� in their registered addresses.

6. Nominations for Audit Committee
7he Audit Committee is comprised of three ��� 
Directors and three ��� Shareholders’ representatives. 
In accordance with Section ������ of the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, LFN 2004, any 
shareholder may nominate another shareholder for 
election to the Audit Committee b\ giving notice  
of such nomination� in writing� to the Compan\ 
Secretary at least 21 days before the Annual General 
meeting. 1ominations must be accompanied  
b\ the nominee’s curriculum vitae.

Notice of Annual 
General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 7went\ (ighth Annual General Meeting of members of C217I1(17A/ 
5(I1S85A1C( 3/C will be held at 9ictoria Crown 3la]a �9C3� +otel� ���b� AMose Adeogun Street� 9ictoria Island� 
/agos on 7hursda\� -ul\ ��th� ���� at ��.�� a.m. to transact the following businesses�

Ordinary business
�.  7o receive the 5eport of the Directors and the Audited )inancial Statements for the \ear ended December ��� ���� 

together with the reports of the Auditors and the Audit Committee thereon.

�. 7o declare a dividend.

�. 7o re-elect Directors.

�. 7o authori]e the Directors to fi[ the remuneration of the Auditors.

�. 7o elect members of the Audit Committee.

Special business
�. 7o approve the remuneration of the Directors for the \ear ending December ��st� ����.

�.  7o consider and� if thought fit� to pass the following resolution as a special resolution�

 7hat the Articles of Association of the Compan\ be and are hereb\ amended as follows�

 �a�  %\ deleting from Article �� the word mInvestors’ and its meaning mC-5e� Genesis (merging MarNets )und /imited� 
Genesis (merging MarNets 2pportunities )und /imited� Investec Asset Management and 53 Capital Group.’

 �b�  %\ inserting the words mof a ma[imum’ after the word mconsist’ in line � of Article ��.

 �c� %\ deleting the words man investor’ in line � of Article �� and substituting them with the words ma shareholder.’

 �d� %\ substituting the word mnine ���’ with the word msi[ ���’ in  line � of Article ���.

 �e�  %\ adding the following phrase to Article ���� “eand provided further� that no Tuorum shall be constituted 
without the presence of at least two directors who are neither C-5e Directors nor alternates to C-5e Directors.”

By order of the Board

Abimbola A. Falana (Mrs.)
Company Secretary
)5C������1%A������������

Registered Office:
6, Catholic Mission Street, 
/agos.

Dated� -une ��th� ����
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Our 
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(nhancing /ocalised relationships and service offerings through the 
establishment of the regional sector e[pertise hubs.
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Key strengths
7he Compan\’s Ne\ strengths include�

 △ an entrepreneurial� private sector� pan-African business 
commitment to the industry and Africa

 △ translation of pan-African commitment and competencies into 
local capacity building

 △ pan-African trust built on strong local relationships with clients 
and stakeholders

 △ recognised high responsiveness in service deliver\
 △ pro-activeness due to pro[imit\ to clients
 △ high client retention rate
 △ d\namic pan-African platform
 △ core foothold resident in 1igeria r the largest econom\ in Africa
 △ strong track record of financial and operational performance
 △ well-balanced and growing product mi[
 △ strong risk selection process and
 △ competent and highl\ Tualified and diversified staff.

Products and services
As a composite reinsurer� the Compan\ offers capacit\ and services 
across the full spectrum of 1on-/ife and /ife business lines. 7he 
Compan\ has a diversified product mi[ of )ire and (ngineering� 
General Accident� Marine and Aviation� 2il and Gas� Motor and 
/iabilit\� and Individual and Group /ife 5einsurance lines of business. 
7he products are tailored towards capturing significant demand in 
Ne\ segments across Africa. It is supported b\ first class retrocession 
security primarily from the Lloyds market in London and other top 
range reinsurance marNet pla\ers.

In order to have a strong financial strength to meet its claims and 
other financial obligations as well as limit e[posure to risN� the 
Compan\ has a well-managed and solid investment portfolio� 
premised on a conservative philosoph\ and diversified investment 
focus. 7his is aimed at ma[imising total return on investment and 
preserve shareholders’ capital.

Continental 5einsurance provides specialised training and 
development programmes to its clients and partners across all 
business lines. 7he programmes are offered to provide re�insurance 
sNills reTuired to fill Nnowledge gaps in local African marNets 
demonstrating the Compan\’s commitment as a trusted partner.

In addition� the Compan\ delivers financial and technical capacit\-
building in local marNets across the continent for advancement of 
standards in environmental� social and governance areas through 
investing capital in local marNet and investing in technical Nnow-how 
and local Corporate Social 5esponsibilit\ �CS5� initiatives.

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
7he Compan\ has a strong (5M )rameworN spearheaded b\ a 
team of Tualified in-house actuaries with a wealth of e[perience 
in both /ife and 1on-/ife business in the African and (uropean 
marNets and wide e[pertise in reserving� capital and risN modelling� 
product development� pricing� business anal\sis and training.

Our people
Continental 5einsurance is managed b\ highl\ resourceful� talented� 
motivated and seasoned professionals. 7he Compan\’s multi-
national pool of emplo\ees is continuousl\ upgraded with relevant 
training and development programmes. 7he Management of the 
Compan\ has been stable over the \ears and it is bacNed b\ robust 
succession initiatives. 7he Compan\ values its people who remain 
a core strategic asset for the pursuit of its vision to be the premier 
pan-African reinsurance pla\er and an emplo\er of choice.

Corporate profile

Continental 5einsurance 3lc �Continental 5e� 
or the Compan\� was incorporated as a 
private Compan\ in 1igeria in ����. It was 
registered in 1987 by the National Insurance 
Commission �1AIC2M� as a 5einsurer to 
write both /ife and 1on-/ife Insurance 
business. It commenced business as a general 
reinsurer in 1987 and became a composite 
reinsurer in ����� providing 1on-/ife and /ife 
reinsurance on both treat\ and facultative basis 
and presentl\ has a well-diversified business 
mi[ and patronage across Africa.

In its Tuest for business growth and increased marNet share� the 
Compan\ was converted to a public limited liabilit\ Compan\ in 
2000 and recapitalised from NGN2 billion to NGN10 billion in 
���� with diverse ownership� both local and international investors. 
Continental 5einsurance was listed on the 1igerian StocN ([change 
on Ma\ ��th� ����. 

:ith a histor\ spanning more than �� \ears� the Compan\ prides 
itself on being the torchbearer of the African reinsurance industr\. It 
has developed an e[tensive networN across Africa in order to serve 
its numerous clients premised on its new philosoph\� mpan-African 
commitment made local’. All activities undertaNen b\ the Compan\ 
are in line with Neeping its pan-African commitment and focus to 
enhance the financial and technical capacit\ in local marNets. 7he 
pan-African commitment is the purpose that motivates the 
Compan\’s e[pansion since b\ focusing on localisation� the 
Compan\ is able to develop regional marNets which in turn enables 
it to deliver on its promises.

Office locations
Continental 5einsurance conducts business in more than fift\ ���� 
countries across the African continent providing support to over two 
hundred ����� insurance companies. 7he business is serviced from 
four regional offices and two subsidiaries in strategic locations across 
Africa with /agos� 1igeria being the Group’s +ead 2ffice. 7he 
/agos office also serves as the regional office for the Anglophone 
:est African region. 7he Douala� Cameroon regional office covers 
business activities in )rancophone Central Africa while the regional 
office in AbidMan� CÎte d’Ivoire serves the )rancophone :est African 
region. 7he regional office in 7unis� 7unisia which commenced 
business earl\ in ���� covers the 1orthern�Maghreb�Middle (ast 
territories and is also earmarNed to provide 7aNaful reinsurance 
offering to the Compan\’s clients and partners. 7he Compan\’s 
subsidiar\ in 1airobi� .en\a covers the (astern Africa marNets. 

In line with its business philosoph\ of localised presence and 
visibilit\ across the African continent� a new subsidiar\� Continental 
5einsurance /td� was opened in Gaborone� %otswana during the 
\ear. 7he subsidiar\ services the Southern Africa region. 

Credit rating
A.M. %est� /ondon� the worlds’ oldest and most authoritative 
insurance rating compan\ affirmed the Compan\’s financial 
strength rating of %� �Good� with a stable outlooN� which is 
an acNnowledgement of the Compan\’s strong risN-adMusted 
capitalisation, solid operating performance and ability to meet 
its ongoing obligations. 



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 15Continental Reinsurance Plc14

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Key management staff 

Mr. Alexandre Aquereburu
Chief 5isN 2fficer

Mr. Musa Kolo
General Manager �)inance�

Mrs. Abimbola Falana
Compan\ Secretar\�/egal Adviser

Mr. Kanma Okafor
Deput\ General Manager �IC7�

Mr. Steve Odjugo
5egional Director �/agos�

Mr. Abayomi Oluremi-Judah
Head, Life Operations

Mr. Calisto Ogaye
Managing Director �1airobi 
Subsidiar\�

Mr. Samuel Rimai
5egional Director �Gaborone 
Subsidiar\�

Mr. Olusegun Ajibewa 
Assistant General Manager  
�+5 	 Admin.�

Mrs. Lety Endeley
5egional Director �Douala�

Mr. Ibrahima Ndoye
5egional Director �AbidMan�

Mrs. Dorsaf Sassi
5egional Director �7unis�

Board of Directors

Mr. Hurley Doddy
Chairman� 1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. Vincent Le Guennou
1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. Bakary H. Kamara
1on-([ecutive Director

Dr. Olufemi Oyetunji
Group Managing Director�C(2 

Mr. David S. Sobanjo
1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. Johnnie Wilcox
1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. Lawrence Nazare
([ecutive Director

Ms. Nana Appiah-Korang
1on-([ecutive Director

Mr. Foluso Laguda
1on-([ecutive Director
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COMMITMENT TO 
SUSTAINABILITY 
VIA CAPACITY BUILDING
Deepening of our /ocalised industr\ relevance b\ bolstering financial 
capacity through local acquisitions and technical capacity through the 
focus on local management and enlarging the si]e and scope of our 
local training programmes. r �� regional�international training modules 
conducted in � countries across Africa in ����. 

16 Continental Reinsurance Plc

�� Chairman’s statement
�� Group Managing Director’s overview
�� ���� )inancial \ear business review
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particularl\ enforcement of the “no premium no cover” standard 
in debtors’ management.

:hile Gross 3remium Income �G3I� grew from 1G1��.�� billion 
in ���� to 1G1��.�� billion in ����� net income dropped as the 
pa\ment of substantial additional bacN dut\ ta[es aggravated the 
scenario alread\ negativel\ influenced b\ the factors cited.

A breaNdown of the G3I shows that while 1on-/ife premium grew 
by 10 percent as the Company entrenched its position in key African 
marNets� /ife premium came down b\ �� percent mainl\ due to a 
write-down imposed b\ the need to compl\ with the “no premium� 
no cover” regulator\ principle. 3rofit before ta[ reduced b\ �� percent 
from 1G1�.�� billion in ���� to 1G1�.�� billion in ���� and profit 
after tax dipped by 51 percent to NGN856 million in 2014 from 
1G1�.�� billion in ���� due to additional bacN dut\ ta[es levied. 

Investment income reduced b\ �� percent from 1G1�.�� billion in 
���� to 1G1�.�� billion in ���� due principall\ to the impact 
of e[change losses. Management and administrative e[penses 
increased b\ �� percent from 1G1�.�� billion in ���� to 1G1�.�� 
billion in ���� influenced b\ a previousl\ deferred e[ercise to align 
staff pacNages to marNet norms and also partl\ due to non-recurring 
start-up costs for the establishment of the Gaborone subsidiar\ and 
the 7unis regional office. 

7otal assets increased b\ � percent from 1G1��.�� billion in ���� 
to 1G1��.�� billion in ���� and Shareholders’ )unds increased b\ 
� percent from 1G1��.�� billion in ���� to 1G1��.�� billion in ����.

Dividend
Despite the drop in profit recorded for the year, the Board, in line 
with the Compan\’s commitment to ensuring returns to 
shareholders� has resolved to maintain the same level of dividend 
pa\out as in the previous \ear. 7he %oard therefore recommends 
a cash dividend of �� Nobo per share for the financial \ear under 
review subMect to \our approval.

Board changes
As stated in m\ statement for the \ear ����� Mr. Gbenga )aleNulo� 
the ([ecutive Director �/ife�� resigned from the %oard with effect 
from -anuar\ ��th� ���� having retired from the services of the 
Compan\ with effect from -anuar\ �st� ����. 7here were no other 
changes on the %oard during the \ear under review.

Staff
Our Company is managed by a pool of highly resourceful, competent 
and motivated professionals. 3eople remain our most valuable asset� 
therefore� we have put in place a talent management s\stem to ensure 
availabilit\ of the right people who will continue to add value and ensure 
good returns to shareholders.

:e have continued to invest heavil\ in the development of our emplo\ees 
b\ providing them with world class training opportunities in different 
areas that are relevant to our business both for now and the future� 
while we also facilitate trainings for our clients across Africa.

Future outlook
)ellow shareholders� I am pleased to announce to \ou that with 
the establishment of our regional office in Gaborone� %otswana in 
����� we have now attained a Ne\ milestone in our geographical 
e[pansion across Africa in line with our five \ear strategic plan 
�����-�����. :ith the core building blocNs of this plan now in place� 
we are set for a consolidation and growth phase. :e should begin 
to see the positive upshot of our diversification strateg\� being 
primaril\ accelerated revenue growth through the deepening of our 
influence in the marNets in which we are now ph\sicall\ represented.

As reported in my statement to you last year, our head office 
building proMect was e[pected to commence in the course of the 
\ear� but we e[perienced some dela\s in obtaining the necessar\ 
approvals. 7hese have now been secured and we shall soon 
commence worN on site.

Conclusion
7he ���� financial \ear was challenging for our Compan\� but we 
believe that we are now positioned for a stronger growth in both 
our top and bottom lines going into the future.

Let me use this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors, 
Management and Staff for their unflinching support and 
commitment to the Compan\ over the \ears.

7hanN \ou.

Mr. Hurley Doddy 
Chairman

Chairman’s statement

Distinguished shareholders� fellow %oard 
members� representatives of regulator\ 
bodies present, ladies and gentlemen,  
I am pleased to welcome \ou all to the 
28th Annual General Meeting of our 
Compan\ and to present the Annual 5eport 
and Financial Statements of our Company 
for the \ear ended December ��st� ����.

Business and operating environment
Global growth in ���� was lower than initiall\ e[pected� continuing 
a pattern of disappointing out-turns over the past several \ears. 
Growth picNed up onl\ marginall\ in ���� to �.� percent� from 
�.� percent in ����. %eneath these headline numbers� increasingl\ 
divergent trends are at worN in maMor economies. 7he global 
econom\ is still struggling to gain momentum as man\ high-income 
countries continue to grapple with legacies of the global financial 
crisis and emerging economies are less d\namic than in the past.

5ecentl\� the International Monetar\ )und downgraded its outlooN 
for more than a do]en of the world’s largest economies. 7he fund 
said global growth would be �.� percentage point lower this \ear 
and ne[t than it had previousl\ e[pected. It now e[pects the world 
econom\ to e[pand �.� percent in ���� and �.� percent in ����. 

(conomic growth in Sub-Saharan Africa �SSA� rose from �.� percent 
in ���� to a forecasted �.� percent in ����. 7his performance was 
boosted b\ rising investment in natural resources and infrastructure� 
and strong household spending� according to the :orld %anN’s new 
Africa’s 3ulse� a twice-\earl\ anal\sis of the issues shaping Africa’s 
economic prospects. GD3 growth in Africa in ���� is proMected at 
�.� percent. A positive growth outlooN for Africa is strongl\ dependent 
on improved institutional performance and better governance

7he 1igerian econom\ advanced �.�� percent \ear-on-\ear in the 
last three months of ����� slightl\ down from a �.�� percent 
increase in the previous period. It is the lowest figure in five Tuarters 
due to a slowdown in the services sector.

Increasing competition and lower underwriting margins were 
witnessed in the global reinsurance marNet� putting pressure on 
companies. In response to these pressures� companies that are 
managing the reinsurance cycle continue to reduce their retained 
exposure to classes of business that do not meet acceptable return 
hurdles, and they are expanding in classes that offer better 

opportunities. In ����� this led to significant reductions in 
reinsurance booNs of business� particularl\ for propert\ catastrophe. 
)or the most part� ���� is e[pected to produce an even more 
careful approach to risN selection.

7he marNet is e[pected to remain challenging in ����� with rates 
continuing to decline for some lines of business, terms and conditions 
becoming even broader� and ceding commissions increasing further. 
:ith new capital and reduced reinsurance purchasing b\ some large 
cedants, market conditions are expected to remain challenging for 
the reinsurance business in 2015 and lead to further pressure on 
pricing� particularl\ in propert\ and catastrophe cover lines. As 
premiums continue to decline� with investment returns remaining 
low� reserve releases tapering� and commissions increasing� it is 
e[pected to be increasingl\ challenging to deliver double-digit 52(s. 
Margin compression will liNel\ persist as third-part\ alternative 
capital seeNs a larger piece of the pie.

The African insurance and reinsurance market continues to attract 
close scrutiny and rising interest from financial markets participants 
around the world. 7his marNet is thus gearing up for sustained growth.

In the Nigerian insurance market, there exists significant 
opportunities for consolidation to enable greater risk retention and 
enhancement of technical capacit\ as well as attract e[tra funding 
that would result in insurance companies taNing up larger ticNet risNs. 

7he 1igerian insurance industr\ has become a mrich hunting ground 
for investors’ and is set for growth on the bacN of improvement access 
to credit� adoption of innovative insurance products� intense regulator\ 
pressure, and retail segment penetration that should contribute 
significantl\ to growth in insurance premium and underwriting 
profitabilit\. Improved regulation and supervisor\ activit\ notabl\ 
the enforcement of the “no premium no cover” principle to address 
the scourge of doubtful receivables are positive elements.

Financial result
7he Compan\’s performance in ���� was mi[ed. Attainment of 
growth targets and operational performance as initiall\ envisioned 
were constrained b\ negative e[change rate movements of a 
number of African currencies against the Naira and significant 
devaluation of the 1aira against the 8S Dollar late in the fourth 
Tuarter� which opened at 8SD�1G1���.�� in the inter-banN 
marNet depreciating b\ ��.�� percent to close at 8SD�1G1���.�� 
due to reversal of foreign flows. 

Concurrentl\� there was non-recurring weaNening of certain Ne\ 
indices emanating from remediation of legac\ business-process 
inefficiencies as part of alignment of these in line with overall 
obMectives and the need to compl\ with industr\ standards 
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Stakeholder engagement
In March ����� we facilitated the first insurance C(2 Summit in 
Mombasa� .en\a. Drawing industr\ leaders from across Africa� this 
proved an invaluable platform for us to engage with our clients and 
other strategic staNeholders. 7he summit is an arena for intellectual 
discourse� building alliances� and networNing with Ne\ pla\ers. :e will 
continue to use this platform to consider opportunities, emerging risks 
and trends that affect our industr\ and develop risN mitigating plans.

Performance
)oundational to our growth strateg\ is the Compan\’s abilit\ to 
maintain its strong financial position and ensure long-term financial 
sustainabilit\. During the \ear gross earnings grew b\ �.� percent 
from 1G1��.��billion in ���� to 1G1��.��billion in ����. 
+owever� growth targets and operational performance as initiall\ 
envisioned were constrained b\ negative e[change rate movements 
in a number of African currencies and significant devaluation of the 
1aira against the 8S Dollar late in the fourth Tuarter. 1evertheless� 
the overall financial condition of the Compan\ was preserved as 
evidenced b\ the growth in assets and shareholders’ funds and the 
improvement in the solvenc\ margin.

:e continue to implement controls and monitor enterprise-wide 
underwriting� operational� regulator\ and other risNs to ensure 
adeTuate mitigation thereof b\ wa\ of controls and measures that 
are geared to minimise down-side impact on longrterm 
performance. 7he increase in business volumes and escalation in 
the comple[it\ of our transactions due to the geographical diversit\ 
of our operations has resulted in an enhanced focus on the areas of 
control� automation and compliance.

Looking ahead
Year 2015 is going to be an interesting one, due to economic and 
political uncertainties in man\ African nations. It is the \ear of 
election in man\ African countries� including 1igeria. 9arious 
proMections reflect considerable growth potential on the continent 
with GD3 growth e[pected to strengthen to � percent in the \ears 
ahead. 7his translates to a rapidl\ growing middle class� returns on 
investment� e[panding populations� urbanisation and lower costs of 
doing business. Combined� these factors continue to contribute to 
the continent’s economic growth and are e[pected to spur 
insurance growth. 

As Continental 5e� we shall continue to leverage on our strong 
financial condition and marNet positioning in Africa to sei]e 
opportunities. :e maintain our firm commitment to grow our 
Compan\ sustainabl\ through volume growth� improved operational 
efficiencies� and development of critical sNills. 2ur focus shall be to 
optimise returns from our capital investments� b\ consolidating our 
brand presence� enhancing our client services� securing strong 
growth in premiums� streamlining our underwriting practices� 
enhancing our operational efficiencies and strengthening our 
alread\ formidable multi-national talent pool.

Conclusion
In conclusion� I would liNe to appreciate our valued partners and 
shareholders for their loyalty, and thank the Board of Directors and 
our staff for their unallo\ed commitment and support. In the \ear ����� 
we were the first African Insurance�5einsurance Compan\ �outside 
of South Africa� to sign up on the 8nited 1ations (nvironmental 
3rogramme’s 3rinciple of Sustainable Insurance. In the \ear ����� 
our Compan\ was the first to establish a leadership thoughts platform 
in Africa b\ wa\ of Continental 5e’s C(2 summit. I want to assure 
\ou of our continued passion for innovation and maNing a difference 
in the insurance industr\ to the benefit of all our staNeholders.

7hanN \ou.

Dr. Olufemi Oyetunji 
Group Managing Director

Group Managing 
Director’s overview

Distinguished shareholders, it is my pleasure 
to present to you the business and strategic 
performance highlights for Continental 
5einsurance 3lc �Continental 5e� for the \ear 
����. Continental 5e had a \ear of good 
operational and financial fundamentals in ����. 
Although it was a challenging \ear globall\� we 
responded with a commitment to our vision 
r to be the premier pan-African reinsurer. 
:e did face tough trading conditions but 
we adapted to the changes in our business 
environment and embraced a range of 
opportunities in various marNets.

Growing our footprint
In ����� two noteworth\ milestones were achieved in the e[ecution 
of our five-\ear strategic growth plan. :e officiall\ launched our 
1orth African office in 7unisia and e[tended the Compan\’s 
footprint in Africa with the opening of a regional hub for Southern 
Africa in Gaborone� %otswana. 7he Compan\ now operates from 
� �si[� locations across the continent namel\ /agos� Douala� 1airobi� 
AbidMan� 7unis and Gaborone and is well positioned to e[ploit strong 
regional growth prospects.

Evolving our brand strategy
In addition� we evolved our brand strateg\ to reflect the needs of 
our clients through local marNet development� the focus being to 
enhance our financial and technical capacity in local markets in order 
to build on our pan-African commitment. 2ur brand premise� 
mpan-African commitment made local’� thus captures two fundamental 
facets of our strateg\. :e continue to localise marNet development 
as this is central to Neeping our pan-African commitment.

7he opportunit\ we are faced with as a pan-African enterprise is 
to standardise a common set of values and behaviours across the 
different cultures in our various locations. A brand internali]ation 
programme is thus ongoing utilising a brand champion approach 
in order to strengthen our culture and internal brand.

Process strengthening
In line with our overall business obMectives and the need to compl\ 
with industr\ standards of debtors’ management� a team to 
streamline and monitor process leading to debtors balances was 
put in place. 7his ensures that the carr\ing balances are tolerable 
and are within regulator\ acceptable limits.

Investment in technical know-how
During the \ear� we carried out an e[tensive human capital 
development initiative through freTuent training programmes in 
different regions across Africa in diverse topics including (ngineering� 
Oil and Gas, Technical Accounting, Marine Insurance and Takaful 
Insurance. 7he trainings were designed to upscale re�insurance sNills 
to fill the Nnowledge gaps in the local African marNets with the 
obMective of enhancing insurance penetration across the continent. 
:e shall continue to provide value-adding development programs 
for our clients in the various marNets across Africa in ����.
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Non-life premium development
Amounts in NGN millions
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Geographical distribution
7he /agos office contributed �� percent of 1on-/ife 5evenue 
in ���� compared to �� percent in ����. 5evenue dropped b\ 
� percent \ear-on-\ear partl\ due to the transfer of the 7unis 
regional office business that was previousl\ booNed under /agos. 
Douala office operations recorded a Mump of �� percent in premiums 
and its contribution to total revenue also increased from � percent 
in ���� to � percent in ����. 7he performance of AbidMan office 
\ear-on-\ear dropped b\ �� percent Must as the proportion to total 
dropped from �� percent in ���� to � percent in ����. 5evenue for 
the 1airobi subsidiar\ increased b\ �� percent \ear-on-\ear and 
constituted �� percent of total in ����� down from �� percent in 
���� due to transfer of Southern revenue to the %otswana 
subsidiar\. 7he 7unis and Gaborone offices constituted � percent 
and � percent respectivel\ of the ���� total with 7unis going through 
its first full \ear of operations.

7he charts below show the regional performances.

2013 Non-life premium distribution

Nigeria 61%

Cameroun 7%

Kenya 19%

CÎte d'Ivoire 13%

2014 Non-life premium distribution

Nigeria 8,649 60%

Cameroun 1,262 9%

Kenya 2,030 14%

CÎte d'Ivoire 1,063 7%

Tunis 503 4%

Botswana 856 6%

2013 Non-life premium income analysis
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2014 Financial year 
business review

7he following is an anal\sis of the Group’s 
2014 operating results as compared to the 
performance in ����. 7his is with the 
obMective of full\ e[plaining business operations 
for a better understanding of the Group’s 
performance. 

Review of operations
As a composite reinsurance Compan\� Continental 5einsurance 3lc 
�C 5e� continues to accept 1on-/ife and /ife business from 1igeria 
and other African countries with /ife business coming substantiall\ 
from 1igeria.

In order to have a proper focus and better service deliver\� the 
technical and underwriting operations continue to be structured 
along regional lines as follows�

 △ /agos office covering 1igeria� other Anglophone :est African 
countries, Angola and South Africa

 △ Douala office covering Central Africa
 △ AbidMan office covering )rancophone :est Africa
 △ 7unis office covering 1orth Africa and the Middle (ast states
 △ 1airobi subsidiar\ covering (astern Africa
 △ Gaborone subsidiar\ covering Southern Africa.

)or reporting purposes in ����� the Group’s business will be 
reported along the above regional�subsidiar\ offices.

1ote that from the ���� financials� Continental 5e reported as a 
group with the capitalisation and taNe-off of the 1airobi office as 
a subsidiar\ compan\ and the acTuisition of a maMorit\ staNe in the 
former %otswana 5einsurance Compan\ /imited� now operating 
as Continental 5einsurance Compan\ /imited� Gaborone in ����. 

7he other offices in Douala �established in ������ AbidMan �established 
in ����� and 7unis �established in ����� together with /agos which 
doubles as both the regional office for the Anglophone :est Africa 
and Group +ead 2ffice operated as regional offices in ����. 

7he Group business lines are arranged as follows�

 △ )ire which covers 3ropert\ and all (ngineering sub-classes
 △ General Accident
 △ Marine which includes Aviation
 △ /iabilit\ which includes Motor
 △ (nerg\ �2il and Gas�
 △ /ife comprising Individual and Group /ife.

Non-life business
Premium income
7he Group’s 1on-/ife Gross :ritten 3remium grew b\ �� percent 
in ���� over the performance in ���� from 1G1��.�� billion to 
1G1��.�� billion. 7his performance is a confirmation of the 
positive impact of regional e[pansion strateg\ adopted b\ management 
and assisted b\ the economic growth in man\ African countries. 

7he chart below shows Continental 5e’s stead\ 1on-/ife business 
growth in the last five \ears growing at �� percent Average Annual 
Growth 5ate �AAG5�.
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Life business
Premium income
/ife business slowed down in ���� recording for the first time ever 
a \ear-on-\ear decrease of �� percent compared to an increase of 
�� percent in ����. 7he drop in gross premium income was mainl\ 
due to reversals of ���� group scheme business premium not paid 
in ���� to conform to the “no premium� no cover rule”. Despite this 
drop in ����� the potential for growth of /ife business across the 
African continent remains largel\ untapped and is regarded as ver\ 
high. In this regard� contributions to /ife revenue from the regional 
offices has continued to grow moving from �� percent in ���� to 
�� percent in ����. As shown in the 3ie Chart below� AAG5 for the 
last five \ears was �� percent and this trend is e[pected to continue. 

Group /ife contributed �� percent of the total of 1G1�.��� billion 
gross premium generated in ����� down from �� percent in ����. 
7his mi[ shows the continued dominance of Group /ife business� a 
trend e[pected to continue over the \ears mainl\ due to the impact 
of the 1igerian 3ension 5eform Act where the bulN of the 
premiums are generated. 7his trend is however e[pected to taper 
as the individual life business gains more acceptance.

Life premium development
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Life premium analysis
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Life business outgo
/ife Gross claims paid in ���� totalled 1G1�.�� billion compared to 
1G1�.�� billion in ����� an increase of �� percent. At an Incurred 
Claims ratio of �� percent� the claims e[perience got relativel\ 
worse in ���� compared to �� percent in ����. 

Commission and Charges paid were 1G1��� million in ���� 
compared to NGN747 million in 2013 representing a 27 percent 
decrease in line with changes in premium income.

���� )inancial \ear business review
continued

Lines of business
All the business lines except the Energy class recorded absolute 
increases \ear-on-\ear in ���� even though the proportionate 
performances were mi[ed. :hereas the biggest \ear-on-\ear 
change came from /iabilit\ at �� percent� with overall contribution 
increasing from 8 percent in 2013 to 10 percent in 2014, Fire 
�which remains the dominant class of business� recorded an increase 
of 9 percent in 2014 compared to a 39 percent increase in 2013 
but retained the same proportion at �� percent of the total income. 
7he proportions of Marine� Accident and (nerg\ classes were 
�� percent� �� percent and �� percent respectivel\ in ���� compared 
to �� percent� �� percent and �� percent in ����. In absolute terms� 
while Marine and Accident witnessed \ear-on-\ear improvements 
increasing b\ �� percent and �� percent respectivel\� the (nerg\ 
class decreased b\ � percent.

Management plans to consolidate on the 2014 gains by pursuing 
further the twin growth strateg\ of consolidation in e[isting and 
growth in new marNets and segments.

2013 Gross premium income per line of business

Fire 42%

Accident 22%

Marine 10%

Liability 8%

Energy 18%

2014 Gross premium income per business line

Fire 42%

Accident 22%

Marine 11%

Liability 10%

Energy 15%

Combined ratio
1on-/ife combined ratio is calculated as a percentage of Claims 
incurred, Commissions and charges and Management expenses to 
1et (arned 3remium. 7he combined ratio for 1on-/ife operations 
increased by 6 percent from 87 percent in 2013 to 93 percent in 
���� mainl\ due to increased management e[penses. 

Claims
1on-/ife Gross Claims paid in ���� were 1G1�.�� billion� a 
�� percent increase from the 1G1�.�� billion recorded in ����. 
7his compares adversel\ to the growth in Gross 3remium Income 
of �� percent. 1et Claims Incurred �net of reserves for outstanding 
claims and retrocession recoveries� of 1G1�.�� billion in ���� 
is �� percent higher than the 1G1�.�� billion out-turn for ����. 
1et Incurred Claims �/oss� ratio improved marginall\ in ���� 
at �� percent compared to �� percent in ����.

7he claims e[perience in ���� can be regarded as unfavourable 
characterised by slightly higher frequency of and magnitude 
especiall\ in the (nerg\ class of business. 

Commissions and charges
Commissions and charges amounted to 1G1�.�� billion in ���� 
compared to 1G1�.�� billion in ���� representing an increase of 
�� percent in nominal terms. 7he Commission ratio increased 
marginall\ from �� percent in ���� to �� percent in ����.
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regarding the impending general elections in ����. 7he ([ternal 
5eserves which opened the last Tuarter at ���.�� depreciated b\ 
��.�� percent to close the \ear at ���.�� while the e[change rate 
which opened at 8SD�1G1���.�� in the inter-banN marNet 
depreciated b\ ��.�� percent to close at 8SD�1G1���.�� due to 
reversal of foreign flows. 

7hus� the ��� ��� and ��� da\ 7reasur\ %ills which opened at the 
beginning of the last Tuarter at �.��� percent p.a.� ��.��� percent 
p.a. and ��.��� percent p.a. respectivel\ closed higher across 
the curve at ��.��� percent p.a.� ��.��� percent p.a. and 
��.��� percent p.a. respectivel\ at the end of the \ear.

Cash and cash equivalent were purel\ mone\ marNet instruments 
that comprise of Bankers Acceptances, Commercial Papers and 
7erm Deposits with a tenure of less than � months. 7he \ield of 
��.�� percent is the average of the rates across the various 
currencies’ banN placements. 7he cash and cash eTuivalent 
decreased b\ �� percent from 1G1�.��� billion as at December 
��st� ���� to 1G1�.��� billion as at December ��st� ����. 7he 
reason for the decline was attributable to the use of cash for 
acTuisition of investment propert\ in AbidMan and further e[pansion 
to localise the business in the Southern Africa region. 

Securities Available for Sale (AFS) comprised of equity instruments, 
)ederal Government %onds and mutual funds. 7he annualised \ield 
as at December ��st� ���� was �.�� percent out of which eTuit\ 
was �.�� percent e[cluding unrealised loss on eTuit\ �return on 
eTuit\ was �.�� percent net of unrealised loss�. 7he income on 
eTuit\ was basicall\ dividend income and capital gain realised from 
trading. During the \ear� the eTuit\ marNet could not sustain the 
bullish run e[perienced in the second Tuarter of the \ear. 7he All 
Share Inde[ had a negative return of ��.�� percent for the \ear. 

Securities Held to Maturity (HTM) were made up of corporate 
%onds and Government securities and the income was interest 
income that provided stead\ cash flow. 7he \ield was �.� percent 
������ �.� percent�.

Investment property� investment propert\ increased b\ 
��.�� percent from 1G1�.��� billion as at December ��st� ���� 
to 1G1�.��� billion as at December ��st� ����. 7he increase 
was the result of pa\ment for propert\ acTuired in AbidMan for 
investment purpose and revaluation surplus. 7here was low 
demand for propert\ in the highbrow areas of INo\i� /eNNi and 
9ictoria Island even though more constructions of residential 
accommodation were being undertaNen. 7he low demand was 
attributed to high rent asNing compared to affordabilit\ which 
created a suppl\ gap thereb\ increasing the rate of vacant residential 
accommodation in these areas.

Conclusion
7he operating environment in ���� remained challenging due to 
increased competition, tighter regulations and increased costs of 
doing business. Despite the increase in revenues� the bottom line 
was hampered b\ challenges� with the main being an unfavourable 
claims e[perience and� given our pan-African base� foreign e[change 
losses suffered across a number of African currencies which 
depreciated against our reporting currenc\� the 1aira. 7his 
performance however did not affect the Compan\’s financial 
position as evidenced b\ the growth in assets and shareholders’ 
funds and the improvement in solvenc\ margin.

2014 Group investment performance
Value Return Yield

Investment Classification
2014 

N’000
2013 

N’000
2014 

N’000
2013 

N’000
2014 

%
2013 

%

Cash and cash eTuivalent 3,963,090 4,787,639 480,757 562,012 ��.��� ��.���
Available for sale 2,406,037 2,259,534 202,868 183,742 �.��� �.���
Held to maturity 4,878,062 5,830,270 331,989 334,052 �.��� �.���
)inancial assets designated as fair value through 3 	 / 1,227,512 170,285 48,438 38,591 �.��� ��.���
Investment propert\ 2,926,956 1,746,800 172,396 136,218 �.��� �.���
Statutory deposit 1,000,000 1,000,000 127,696 105,537 ��.��� ��.���
Total 16,401,657 15,794,528 1,364,144 1,360,152 8.32% 8.61%

7he overall \ield as at the end of ���� was �.� percent ������ �.� percent� against the budgeted \ield of � percent.

���� )inancial \ear business review
continued

Investments
Guided b\ the Compan\’s investment obMectives of capital 
preservation� liTuidit\ and optimal returns� our strateg\ is to 
optimise the use of the available investible funds to improve our 
staNeholders’ wealth. 7his section of the report highlights our 
investment activities in ���� to achieve these obMectives. 7he 
obMectives are driven b\ our %oard approved investment polic\ that 
taNes into consideration the various risNs in the investment space to 
ensure a well-diversified investment portfolio. 

���� was a tough \ear for 1igeria. 7he d\namic of pre-election 
intrigue and uncertaint\ was aggravated b\ various e[ternal factors 
that included the significant drop in the oil price� which affected 
e[ternal reserves leading to pressure on the 1aira and resulting in 
its devaluation. 3rior to the devaluation� the Central %anN of 1igeria 
�C%1� had tightened liTuidit\ in the econom\ b\ increasing the cash 
reserve ratio for private funds from �� percent to �� percent while 
public funds remained at �� percent with banNs. 7owards the end 
of ���� on the bacN of 1aira devaluation� the C%1 e[panded the 
official 8SD�1G1 midpoint to 1G1����8SD from 1G1����8SD 
representing a devaluation of around � percent and increased 
Monetar\ 3olic\ 5ate �M35� from �� percent to �� percent.

%elow is the summar\ of investment return for the \ear�
N’000

Assets under management as at 31st Dec 2014 16,401,657
Investment Income
5ealised 1,232,148

Unrealised:
)air value gain on propert\ 83,559
)air value gain��loss� on )973/ 48,437
)air value gain��loss� on )972CI ���������
7otal unrealised gain��loss� 30,323
7otal Investment Income 1,262,471
ROI 7.70%

7he devaluation of the 1aira had a positive impact on our 
investment in the form of e[change gains treated in the booNs in 
respect of the Compan\’s e[posure to 8S dollars. Currentl\ Dollar 
investments across the group are worth 8S��.��� million 
distributed among the following asset classes�

Unquoted Equity 50%

Mutual Fund (HSBC Life Bond) 6%

Eurobond 44%

On the other hand, the Naira appreciated against the CFA Franc 
�;2)� resulting in huge e[change losses on our ;2) denominated 
investments. In addition to the ;2) depreciation against the 1aira� 
there are ver\ limited investment asset options in the )rancophone 
region of :est and Central Africa in which we hold a si]eable amounts 
of our Cash and Cash (Tuivalent balances in low \ield instruments 
returning less than � percent per annum. 7he loss was however 
slightl\ mitigated b\ the 1aira devaluation against the Dollar.

Combined� the investment portfolio achieved a 5eturn 2n 
Investment �52I� of �.� percent as against the budget of � percent. 
7his e[cludes the unrealised loss on the available for sale investment 
�comprised mainl\ of Tuoted eTuities�. If the effect of unrealised loss 
on the Tuoted eTuities is adMusted� the 52I will drop to �.� percent 

Market performance in 2014
The equity market
7he 1igeria (Tuit\ MarNet closed the \ear on a negative note. 
7he All Share Inde[ closed the \ear at ������.�� from ������.�� 
as at -anuar\ �st� ���� resulting in a negative return of ��.�� percent 
for the \ear. 9arious factors contributed to the negative return 
among which are� the unstable political environment in a pre-
election year, significant decrease in oil prices and imminent and 
eventual 1aira devaluation. 

Money and fixed income market
7he 1igerian fi[ed income marNet opened with a liTuidit\ of 
circa 1G1��� billion dail\ leading to depressed \ields between 
��.� percent p.a. and ��.� percent p.a. across the \ield curve. 7his 
was partl\ due to the less aggressive mop-up b\ the Central %anN 
of 1igeria �“C%1”� via 2pen MarNet 2peration auctions. +owever� 
later in the last Tuarter of the \ear� the marNet witnessed a spiNe in 
\ields due to sell-off b\ foreign investors� who are maMor holders of 
7reasur\ %ills and )ederal Government bonds� following a stead\ 
decline in oil prices� the ([ternal 5eserves and apparent tension 
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COMMITMENT TO 
C8S72M(5-C(175ICI7<
)ocusing our localised marNet development b\ empowering staff 
through an internalisation programme, designed to deepen the 
understanding of our strategic drivers and how ever\one will 
ultimatel\ be able to contribute to our growth and professional 
development aims.

28 Continental Reinsurance Plc

�� Directors’ report
�� Corporate governance report 
�� Audit Committee’s report

5(3257S

4

Client base in key 
insurance markets
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Number of 50 kobo ordinary shares held as at December 31st
2014 2013

Directors Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi 11,140,500 Nil 9,640,500 Nil
Mr. 5asacN 2. )aleNulo 

�5esigned ��������� 7,346,367 Nil 35,266,666 Nil
Mr. /awrence M. 1a]are Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. +urle\ Dodd\ Nil ï Nil ï
Mr. 9incent /e Guennou Nil ï Nil ï
Mr. David S. SobanMo 2,140,350 218,714,265 2,140,350 218,714,265
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang Nil ï Nil ï
Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara Nil ï Nil ï
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ Nil ï Nil ï
Mr. )oluso /aguda 200,000 425,080,999 200,000 406,975,795

Note

  7he indirect interest of Mr. 9incent /e Guennou� Mr. +urle\ Dodd\� Ms. 1. Appiah-.orang�  

Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara and Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ who represent C-5e +olding /td� the maMorit\ 
shareholder� is ������������� shares. 


  Mr David SobanMo represents AIIC2 Insurance 3lc.

  Mr. )oluso /aguda represents Salag /td.

11. Directors’ interests in contracts
For the purpose of Section 277 of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act, CAP C20, LFN 2004, none of the Directors has 
notified the Compan\ of an\ declarable interest in contracts with 
which the Compan\ was involved as at December ��st� ����.

12. Substantial shareholding

According to the register of members� the following shareholders 
held more than 5 percent of the issued share capital of the 
Company as at December 31st, 2014:

Ordinary Shares of 50 kobo each
2014 2013

Number % Number %

C-5e +olding /td 5,563,870,691 ��.�� 5,251,041,322 ��.��
S7A1%IC 1ominees 1ig. /td 

>7rading A�C@ 570,000,000 �.�� 598,130,840 �.��

13. Acquisition of own shares

7he Compan\ did not purchase an\ of its own shares during the 
\ear ������ 1il�.

14. Ownership structure
December 31st, 2014 December 31st, 2013

No. of  
holders No. of shares %

No. of  
holders No. of shares %

Foreign 30 5,757,753,438 ��.�� 29 5,542,230,147 ��.��
Nigeria 5,867 4,614,990,874 ��.�� 5,854 4,830,514,165 ��.��

15. Notification of potential divestment

During the second half of the \ear� a notification was received from 
C-5e +olding /td of the potential divestment b\ (C3 Africa )und II 
and its partners �the “(C3 )und II Consortium”� of their interests in 
C-5e +olding /td �“C-5e +olding”�. C-5e +olding is a Mauritius 
based limited liabilit\ compan\ wholl\ owned b\ the (C3 )und II 
Consortium and is currentl\ the maMorit\ shareholder of 
Continental 5einsurance 3lc. SubseTuentl\� similar notifications 
were sent to the Compan\’s primar\ regulator� 1AIC2M and the 
1igerian StocN ([change.

The Consortium is currently engaged in the process of the sale of 
C-5e +olding to a reputable part\ that is capable of supporting the 
growth and further development of Continental 5einsurance 3lc. 
:hilst the transaction is not e[pected to affect C-5e +olding’s 
status as a registered shareholder of Continental 5einsurance 3lc� 
it will result in a change in the beneficial holding of the interest 
currentl\ held b\ C-5e +olding. 

16. Retrocessionaires
Swiss 5e
Canopius �/lo\ds�
Advent 5e
4-5e
7rust 5e
Sirius Syndicate
Milli 5e
Sava 5e
Antares Syndicate
Santam 5e
Lanssforsakkringar
GIC 5e� India
China 5e
Cathedral Syndicate, London
+annover 5e
(verest 5e
Ghana 5e
Ascot

Catlin 5e� /ondon 
Chauser �/lo\ds�
CC5 Algeria 
37A 5e 
2d\sse\ 5e
Amlin
/abuan 5e 
.uwait 5e
7ransatlantic 5e
Kiln
Ingosstrakh
Intern. Gen. Ins. �IGI� 
;/ 5e
+elvetia 5e 
CICA 5e 
.en\a 5e
)air 5e 3ool

Directors’ report

7he Directors present their report together with 
the audited financial statements of the Group 
for the \ear ended December ��st� ����.

1. Legal form
Continental 5einsurance 3lc �or “the Compan\”� was incorporated 
as a private limited liabilit\ Compan\ on -ul\ ��th� ����. It was 
registered b\ the 1ational Insurance Commission �1AIC2M� as a 
reinsurer on 1ovember ��th� ����. It initiall\ commenced business 
as a general reinsurer and became a composite reinsurer in -anuar\ 
����. 7he Compan\ was converted to a public limited liabilit\ 
Compan\ on March ��th� ����. Its shares were officiall\ listed 
on the 1igerian StocN ([change on Ma\ ��th� ����.

2. Principal activity
The Company is principally engaged in the business of reinsuring all 
classes of insurance business, including Life, Fire, Engineering, Bond, 
General Accident� Marine� Aviation� Motor� /iabilit\ and (nerg\ 
within and outside 1igeria. Its product mi[ includes a full range of 
treat\ and facultative reinsurance services.

7he Compan\ is a pan-African reinsurance Compan\ operating in 
more than �� African countries with four regional offices in /agos 
�1igeria�� Douala �Cameroon�� AbidMan �CÎte d’Ivoire�� 7unis �7unisia� 
and two subsidiaries in 1airobi �.en\a� and Gaborone �%otswana�. 
7he Compan\ also has � percent shareholding each in Aveni 
5einsurance and 8ganda 5einsurance.

3. Results for the year

7he results of the two subsidiaries have been consolidated in the 
financial statements on pages �� to ��. %elow is a summar\ of the 
results for the \ear under review�

Group 
N’000

Company 
N’000

Profit before taxation 1,587,969 1,279,994

Income tax expense ��������� ���������

Profit after taxation 855,644 661,523

4. Business review
A review of the ���� operating results compared to the group’s 
performance in 2013 and outlook for the ensuing year are contained 
in the financial \ear business review on pages �� to ��.

5. Property, plant and equipment
Movements in propert\� plant and eTuipment during the \ear are 
shown in note �� on page ��. In the opinion of the Directors� the 
marNet value of the Compan\’s properties is not less than the value 
shown in the accounts.

6. Dividend
7he %oard recommends� for approval and pa\ment to shareholders 
whose names appear in the register of members on )rida\� -ul\ ��th� 
����� a dividend of �� Nobo ������ �� Nobo� on each ordinar\ share 
of �� Nobo each� amounting to 1G1�������������.�� 
������ 1G1�������������.��� from the profit after ta[ and from 
retained earnings account. 7he dividend is subMect to deduction of 
withholding ta[ at the appropriate rate. 

7. Event after reporting date
SubseTuent upon the \ear end� the Compan\ received regulator\ 
approval to set up a 3ropert\ and (ngineering 5isN Services 
subsidiar\ in South Africa to provide specialist engineering risN 
advisor\ services and underwriting support to insurance and 
reinsurance companies across Africa. 2ther than as disclosed� there 
are no post-%alance Sheet events which could have had a material 
effect on the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31st, 
���� or on the profit for the \ear ended on that date that have not 
been adeTuatel\ provided for or disclosed.

8. Change on the Board
During the \ear Mr. Gbenga )aleNulo� the ([ecutive Director �/ife�� 
resigned from the %oard with effect from -anuar\ ��th� ���� having 
retired from the Compan\ with effect from -anuar\ �st� ����.

9. Retirement by rotation
In accordance with Article ��� of the Compan\’s Articles of 
Association� Mr. 9incent /e Guennou and Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ retire 
b\ rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

10. Directors’ interests 
The direct and indirect interests of Directors in the issued share 
capital of the Compan\ as recorded in the register of Directors’ 
Shareholdings and�or as notified b\ them for the purpose of Section 
275 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, LFN 2004 
are as follows�



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 33Continental Reinsurance Plc32

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

environment. Currentl\� the Compan\ does not have an\ 
ph\sicall\ challenged person.

 △ Health, safety at work and welfare of employees 
+ealth and safet\ regulations are ensured in all the Compan\’s 
offices and emplo\ees are aware of the e[isting regulations while 
adeTuate information on health related issues are provided 
regularl\. 7he Compan\ provides free medical care to emplo\ees 
and a number of their immediate family members through 
retainer agreement with reputable medical care providers� as well 
as through health insurance schemes. (mplo\ees also undergo 
comprehensive medical e[amination regularl\. In addition� 
employees are adequately insured against occupational and other 
ha]ards. )ire prevention and fire-fighting eTuipment are installed 
in strategic locations in all the offices. 

Furthermore, the Company has in place, Personal Accident 
Insurance Scheme and Group /ife insurance covers for all its 
emplo\ees. It contributes to (mplo\ees’ Compensation in 
accordance with the (mplo\ees Compensation Act ����. It also 
operates a contributor\ pension plan in line with the Amended 
3ension 5eform Act� ���� as well as 5etirement %enefit Scheme 
approved b\ the -oint 7a[ %oard.

 △ Learning and development 
7he Compan\ places high premium on the development of its 
manpower. ConseTuentl\� emplo\ees are sponsored to attend 
both local and internationally organised training courses, 
worNshops� seminars and conferences for Nnowledge acTuisition 
and professional networNing. 7hese are complemented b\ 
e-learning and on-the-Mob training and training attachments in 
reputable reinsurance companies and with retrocessionaires.

 △ Employees involvement and engagement 
7he Compan\ encourages participation of emplo\ees in arriving 
at decisions in respect of matters affecting their well-being and to 
achieve this� ensures� through various fora� that emplo\ees are 
informed on matters concerning them. Management and team 
retreats� informal lunch sessions with the leadership continued to 
be used to promote emplo\ee engagement. )ormal and informal 
channels are also utilised in communication with emplo\ees with 
an appropriate two-wa\ feedbacN mechanism.

 △ Employee remuneration and talent management 
It is the polic\ of the Compan\ to pa\ its emplo\ees competitive 
remuneration. In line with this� Mob evaluation and remuneration 
surve\s are carried out regularl\ to guide in recruiting� motivating 
and retaining high talents for the achievement of the Compan\’s 
business obMectives.

 △ Internal communication/employee relationship 
The Company recognises the importance of internal 
communication and employee relationship for the success of its 
diversification and growth strateg\. It has put in place s\stems 
that stimulates information flow and information sharing among 
its emplo\ees and throughout the Group. 7he channels of 
communication adopted include face-to-face interaction� use of 
telecommunication devises� meetings� social media platforms� 
newsletters� notice boards� intranet� e-mails and other appropriate 
communication platforms. Internal communication promotes 
emplo\ee involvement harnessing contributions towards the 
achievement of the Compan\’s strategic goals and initiatives.

22. Auditors
7he Auditors� Messrs. (rnst 	 <oung have indicated their willingness 
to continue in office as Auditors of the Company and in accordance 
with Section ��� ��� of the Compan\’s and Allied Matters Act� 
CA3 C��� /)1 ����� a resolution will be proposed at the Annual 
General Meeting to authorise the Directors to fi[ their remuneration.

%< 25D(5 2) 7+( %2A5D

Abimbola A. Falana (Mrs.)
Company Secretary
)5C������1%A������������

�� Catholic Mission Street ��th )loor� 
Lagos

Dated: February 25th, 2015

Directors’ report
continued

17. Principal brokers
7he following broNers transacted business with the Compan\ during 
the \ear under review�

Local
Glanvill (nthoven 5einsurance %roNers /imited
YOA Insurance Brokers
United African Insurance Brokers Limited
ArN 5einsurance %roNers
SCIB Insurance Brokers
-omola Insurance %roNers
FBN Insurance Brokers
IBN Insurance Brokers
-ordan Global Insurance
Feybil Insurance Brokers

Foreign
Afro Asian 5einsurance %roNers
Alsford Page
AON Benfield, London
Atlas 5e
C. 5e 
-% %oda 	 Compan\ 3rivate /imited� %omba\
7\sers 	 Compan\ /td
Gras Savo\e
Arab African Insurance r 5einsurance %roNers
5einsurance Solution
Guy Carpenter
)irst 5einsurance /td
.(. 5einsurance /td
:illis 5e
Alwen +ough -ohnson
United Insurance Brokers
Pioneer Insurance Brokers

18. Donations 
During the \ear under review� the Group made donations 
amounting to 1G1��������� to various charitable organisations 
within and outside 1igeria. 7he recipients are the following�

N

S2S Children’s 9illage� 1igeria 2,308,932
(bola r /iberian Government 776,250
5ed Cross 5oad Safet\ Initiative� .en\a 557,316
:esle\ Schools for +earing Impaired Children� /agos 300,000
Dispensaire De (dingding� 2bala Centre 5egion� Cameroon 289,542
:aNe up Africa 1G2� AbidMan 273,896
3acelli School for the %lind 	 3artiall\ Sighted Children� /agos 200,000
Onikan Health Centre, Lagos 200,000
1ational +andicap Carers Association of 1igeria �1A+CA1�� /agos 200,000
Little Saints Orphanage, Lagos 200,000
Hearts of Gold Children Hospice, Lagos 200,000
/agos State 5ehabilitation Centre� INorodu 150,000
Star Children Development Initiative� Ibadan 150,000
Special Persons Association of Nigeria 100,000
Cerebral 3als\ Awareness Charit\ :alN� .en\a 87,700
5otar\ Club of Milimani r Scholarship )und� .en\a 87,700
5o\al Golf Club-(ducation and Safet\ Initiative in the Slum� .en\a  43,850

19. Analysis of shareholding
The issued and fully paid up share capital of the Company as at 
December ��st� ���� was 1G1�������������.�� divided into 
�������������� ordinar\ shares of �� Nobo each. 7he range of 
shareholding is as follows�

Range Holdings
Number of 

Holders Holdings %

� r ����� 676 410,788 ��.�
����� r ����� 1,193 3,920,792 �.��
����� r ������ 927 8,158,990 �.��
������ r ������ 1,620 45,080,057 �.��
������ r ������� 623 53,413,037 �.��
������� r ������� 560 135,427,864 �.��
������� r ��������� 129 95,673,484 �.��
��������� r ��������� 93 216,394,938 �.��
��������� r ���������� 29 204,324,304 �.��
���������� r ���������� 25 671,454,188 �.��
���������� r ����������� 10 719,341,981 �.��
����������� r ��������������� 12 8,219,143,889 ��.��

10,372,744,312 100

20. Unclaimed dividends 
2f the dividends declared from ���� to ����� total unclaimed 
dividends as at December ��st� ����� was 1G1�����������.��. 
7he bulN of the unclaimed dividends for the \ears ���� and ���� 
were transferred b\ the 5egistrars in ���� to a fi[ed deposit account 
maintained with Sterling %anN 3lc. 7he account is Mointl\ managed b\ 
both the Compan\ and Sterling 5egistrars. 7he total amount in the 
account as at December ��st� ���� was 1G1�����������.��. 

21. Employment and employees
 △ Employment policy 
The Company appreciates that people are its most important 
asset in achieving its business obMectives. It therefore provides 
policies and best practices that will maNe emplo\ees to deliver the 
best results b\ giving priorit\ to their professional fulfilment and 
ensuring that the\ acTuire the right competencies. As an eTual 
opportunit\ emplo\er� the Compan\ ensures diversit\ and 
inclusion in its people management activities.

It is the policy of the Company that there should be no 
discrimination in considering applications for employment, 
including those of the ph\sicall\ challenged persons. All emplo\ees 
are given eTual opportunities to develop. In the event of an 
employee becoming disabled in the course of employment, the 
Company is in a position to arrange appropriate training to ensure 
continuous emplo\ment of such emplo\ee without subMecting 
him�her to an\ disadvantage in his�her career development and� 
in addition� ensure that the\ fit into the Compan\’s worNing 
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Term of office of Directors
In Neeping with best practice and as provided in the Compan\’s 
Articles of Association one third of the Directors excluding the 
([ecutive Directors and those appointed b\ the %oard during the 
\ear� retire b\ rotation at each Annual General Meeting. 7he 
Directors who retire b\ rotation in each \ear are those who have 
been longest in office since their last election�re-election. Directors 
appointed b\ the %oard during the \ear either to fill casual vacancies 
or as additions to the e[isting Directors are subMect to election at the 
Annual General Meeting immediatel\ following their appointments. 

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
To protect Directors against the risk of personal liability, the 
Compan\ has taNen out Directors’ and 2fficers’ /iabilit\ Insurance 
cover for all the Directors.

Directors’ induction, training and development
Although no new Director was appointed during the \ear� the 
Compan\ has in place an orientation process for new Directors. 
It is also customar\ for new Directors to receive an induction 
pacN containing the corporate profile� s\nopsis of the Compan\’s 
business� products and services� ethics and philosoph\� duties of 
Directors� organisation structure� Directors’ Code of Conduct� rules 
on Insider 7rading and Directors’ dealing in the Compan\ shares� 
details and terms of reference of each of the Board Committees and 
copies of the Compan\’s strategic plan� Memorandum and Articles 
of Association� statutor\ codes of Corporate Governance� approved 
policies� staff handbooN� schedule of Meetings for the \ear� minutes 
of most recent meetings and other relevant information. 

In line with the approved training plan for Directors� formal 
training on International )inancial 5eporting Standards �I)5S� and 
(nterprise 5isN Management were held for Directors in April 
and 2ctober ���� respectivel\.

7o update their sNills and Nnowledge and thus enhance their 
performance, Directors are also encouraged to attend external 
courses� conferences� seminars� worNshops and other relevant 
training programs at the Compan\’s e[pense.

Right of Directors to seek independent professional advice
7he Directors are aware of their right to seeN independent 
professional advice in furtherance of their duties if necessar\ and 
in appropriate circumstances. 7here was no indication from an\ 
of the Directors as to whether the\ did or did not taNe advantage 
of the polic\.

2. Responsibilities of the Board
The Business and affairs of the Company are managed, controlled 
and operated in accordance with the Compan\’s Memorandum 
and Articles of Association under the direction of the Board and 
in conformit\ with applicable laws and regulations guiding the 
Compan\’s operations both locall\ and internationall\. 7he %oard 
continued to ensure good corporate governance practices and 
effectivel\ monitors and oversees the performance of the ([ecutive 
Management in order to protect and enhance shareholder value 
as well as meet the Compan\’s obligations to its emplo\ees and 
other staNeholders.

7he responsibilities of the %oard include the following�

 △ formulating policies and setting long term strategic obMectives 
of the Company

 △ reviewing and approving the Compan\’s strategic plan
 △ monitoring corporate expenditures and acquisitions
 △ authorising and effectivel\ monitoring strategic decisions and 
ensuring compliance with policies and achievement against 
obMectives through Tuarterl\ performance reporting and 
budget reviews

 △ reviewing and evaluating the implementation of strategies� policies 
and corporate performance

 △ overseeing maMor capital e[penditures and acTuisitions
 △ formulating risN polic\� monitoring potential risNs within the 
Company including recognising and encouraging honest 
whistle blowing

 △ monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of key 
e[ecutives� %oard members and Shareholders including misuse 
of corporate assets

 △ selecting� compensating and monitoring Ne\ e[ecutives and 
overseeing succession planning

 △ ensuring compliance with relevant laws and statutor\ regulator\ 
reTuirements through Tuarterl\ reviews of compliance reports

 △ ensuring the integrit\ of the Compan\’s financial reporting s\stem
 △ ensuring that ethical standards are maintained.

In performing its responsibilities, the Board is guided by the need for 
obMective Mudgment of issues independent of the ([ecutive 
Management� the need for transparenc\ and avoidance of conflict of 
interest and taking decisions on fully informed basis, in good faith, 
with due diligence and care in the best interest of the Compan\ and 
shareholders. 7o this end� the Compan\ is structured to allow for 
effective and efficient decision maNing.

Corporate governance 
report

The embedding of the highest standards of 
corporate governance throughout the 
Continental 5einsurance group is identified as 
fundamental in the attainment of the group’s 
strategic goals and strengthening its 
competitive advantage. 7he %oard is thus 
committed to sound and effective corporate 
practices and has continued to exercise its 
oversight responsibilities of the business and 
affairs of the Compan\ and the group with the 
highest standards of ethics and integrity 
ensuring compliance with corporate 
governance reTuirements in all countries in 
which the Compan\ has operations while also 
maintaining its commitment to international 
best practices.

1. Board of Directors
Composition and structure
7he %oard is comprised of individuals with diverse mi[ of sNills� 
e[perience and e[pertise appropriate for the Compan\’s business 
needs. Individual Directors are persons with upright personal 
characters and Nnowledge on %oard matters� a sense of accountabilit\� 
integrit\ and are full\ committed to enhancing shareholder value. 

7here are currentl\ nine ��� directors on the %oard� seven ��� 
of whom are 1on-([ecutive Directors while two are ([ecutive 
Directors as shown below�

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. +urle\ Dodd\ �American� r Chairman
Mr. 9incent /e Guennou �)rench�
Mr. David S. SobanMo
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang �Ghanaian�
Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara �Mauritanian�
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[
Mr. )oluso /aguda

Executive Directors

Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi r Group Managing Director�C(2
Mr. /awrence M. 1a]are �=imbabwean� r ([ecutive Director and 
Group Head of Operations

7he %oard has commenced the process of identif\ing an individual 
to be appointed as an independent Director. 

7he roles of the Chairman and the Group Managing Director�C(2 
are separate and are clearl\ defined. :hilst the responsibilit\ of the 
Chairman is primaril\ leadership and governance of the %oard as a 
whole and creating a conducive atmosphere at %oard Meetings for 
the effective performance of the individual Directors� the Managing 
Director is responsible for the overall performance of the Compan\ 
including responsibilities for effective da\ to da\ monitoring and 
management controls.

7here is also clear separation of responsibilities between the %oard 
and the Management which ensures non-interference of the %oard 
in Management functions and vice versa. 
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Mr. Lawrence Nazare 
Mr. /awrence 1a]are is currentl\ ([ecutive Director and Group 
+ead of operations. +e holds a %achelor of /aw �+ons� Degree� 
������ and a post-graduate %achelor of /aws Degree ������ from 
the 8niversit\ of =imbabwe and is an admitted /egal 3ractitioner. 
Mr. 1a]are’s e[perience in reinsurance spanned over twent\ one 
���� \ears. 3rior to Moining Continental 5einsurance in Ma\ ����� he 
was the Managing Director of =% 5einsurance /td� formerl\ Inter-
marNet 5einsurance /imited� =imbabwe� a +annover 5e -oint 
9enture Compan\. +e was Chairman of Credit Insurance 
=imbabwe /imited� 9ice 3resident of the Insurance Institute of 
=imbabwe� a member of the regulator\ 1on-/ife advisor\ 
Committee and Chairman of the organisation of Eastern and 
Southern Africa Insurers �2(SAI�. +e served as Chairman of 7he 
Insurance Council of =imbabwe for three consecutive terms� was 
co-Chairman of the 1on-/ife Advisor\ Committee and Chairman 
of the =imbabwe 5einsurance Association. 

Mr. Vincent Le Guennou
Mr. 9incent /e Guennou was appointed to the %oard of Continental 
5e on Ma\ ��th� ����. +e is a graduate of I’(cole des +autes 
(tudes Commerciales �+(C� in 3aris. +e holds a %achelor in 
(conomics from 8niversite de 3aris Dauphine and an M.%.A from 
+arvard %usiness School. +e is currentl\ the co-C(2 of (merging 
Capital 3artners �(C3� as well as Managing Director and founding 
partner. Mr. /e Guennou Moined (C3 in ���� as Director for :est 
Africa and the Maghreb. 3rior to this he was member of the 
international department of the Saur group for si[ \ears �Saur was a 
former affiliate of the %ou\gues group which specialises in water and 
electricit\ distribution and waste water treatment�. :hile on 
secondment from Saur� Mr. /e Guennou served as Chief )inance 
2fficer of Compagnie Ivoirienne d’(lectricitÃ in CÎte d’Ivoire� a 
compan\ listed on the regional stocN e[change.

Mr. /e Guennou began his career in ���� with Arthur Andersen in 
3aris� where he rose to become senior auditor in the banNing and 
capital marNets division. Mr. /e Guennou has served on the %oards 
of various companies including Charaf Corporation �Morocco�� 
(ranove �:est Africa�� SI3+ �:est Africa�� 9eolia :ater Maroc 
�Morocco�� General Assurance Mediterraneenne �Algeria�� 2ragroup 
�:est Africa�� All Africa Airwa\s �Mauritius�� SA+ �7unisia�� Air Ivoire 
�CÎte d’Ivoire� and Maarifa (ducation �(ast Africa�.

Mr. David S. Sobanjo
Mr. David SobanMo is a graduate of Actuarial Science ������ from the 
8niversit\ of /agos. +e also holds an MSc in %usiness 
Administration ������ from the same 8niversit\ and an M%A 
�MarNeting� ����� from (nugu State 8niversit\ of Science and 
7echnolog\. +e has vast e[perience in insurance and management 
spanning over �� \ears. +e became an Associate of the Chartered 
Insurance Institute� /ondon in ����� a fellow of the Institute in ���� 
and a fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of 1igeria in ����. 
+e was the Group Managing Director and Chief ([ecutive 2fficer 
of AIICO Insurance Plc before his retirement in September 2013 
and continues to serve the compan\ as a non-e[ecutive director. 
+e Moined the %oard of Continental 5e as a non-e[ecutive director 
in )ebruar\ ����.

Ms. Nana Appiah-Korang 
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang Moined the %oard in Ma\ ����. She holds 
a bachelor’s degree in mathematics and a minor in economics from 
Mount +ol\oNe College. She is currentl\ an e[ecutive Director of 
(merging Capital 3artners �(C3�. 3rior to Moining (C3� she worNed 
for the 5eal (state 3rincipal Investment Group of Goldman� 
Sachs 	 Co. in 1ew <orN where she e[ecuted real estate private 
eTuit\ transactions in the 8S and pla\ed an active role in the 
marNeting of the :hitehall ;II funds to potential investors in the 
8S� (urope and Asia. 

Mr. Bakary Kamara
Mr. %aNar\ .amara’s appointment to the %oard was effective from 
-ul\ ��th� ����. +e holds a Diploma of the Insurance Institute of 
7ours �)rance�� ����� Diploma of +igh Studies in Insurance /aw 
�D.(.S.S.� from )ranÁois 5abelais 8niversitÃ r 7ours �)rance�� 
������� a %achelor’s Degree �%A� in General /aw ������ and a 
Master’s Degree �MA� in Civil /aw ������ from the 8niversit\ 
CheiNh Anta Diop� DaNar. +e was the Managing Director�C(2 of 
African 5einsurance Corporation �Africa 5e�� and currentl\ serves 
on various %oards and Councils. +e belongs to a number of 
professional bodies and is a permanent member of the ([ecutive 
Committee of the African Insurance 2rganisation. +e is also a 
member of the Ouagadougou Forum, a gathering of prominent 
African captains of industry, professionals and scholars and Member 
of the Association of African Insurance /aw\ers.

Corporate governance
continued

In line with the strategic plan of setting up subsidiaries in the different 
regions in Africa due to local regulatory requirements and to capture 
growth� the %oard during the \ear� approved a new group structure 
with clear Mob description and authorit\ levels and worNing 
relationships for members of the management. 7he group structure� 
which is in the process of being implemented� is highlighted above.

The Board directs the affairs of the Company through Board 
Committees and delegates many of the operational decision making 
responsibilities to the ([ecutive Management led b\ the Group 
Managing Director�C(2� with authorit\ to sub-delegate and power 
to manage the Compan\’s and the Group’s business subMect to the 
Articles and other regulations of the Company and the subsidiaries 
and with appropriate structures in place for the authorities 
delegated. 7he %oard however� retains for itself� maMor decisions 
and has e[clusivel\ reserved for its consideration and decision 
maNing� the following matters which it does not delegate�

 △ approval of business strateg\
 △ approval of annual operating budget and capital e[penditure budget
 △ approval of financial statements
 △ formulation of dividend polic\
 △ formulation of investment polic\
 △ approval of material investments and disposals
 △ formulation of risN management strateg\�risN appetite
 △ matters relating to share capital
 △ approval of maMor capital proMects
 △ staff matters including remuneration� reward� recruitment and 
promotion of senior management.

3. Profiles of Directors
Mr. Hurley Doddy 
Mr Hurley Doddy is an economics graduate from Princeton 
8niversit\. +e holds a Chartered )inancial Anal\st �C)A� designation 
from the C)A Institute. +e has over twent\ five ���� \ears of private 
eTuit\ and finance e[perience. +e is a Managing Director� founding 
partner and co-C(2 of (merging Capital 3artners �(C3�. %efore 
Moining (C3 in ����� Mr. Dodd\ was an ([ecutive Director at 
Sumitomo )inance International� /ondon. Mr. Dodd\ began his 
career in finance at Salomon %rothers in ���� where he gained a 
wealth of e[perience and later became the Managing Director. +e 
has served on numerous boards including African 9enture Capital 
Association �A9CA�� 2ragroup �:est and Central Africa�� Celtel 
International �3an African�� Charaf Corporation �Morocco�� 
Agromed S.A. �7unisia�� All Africa Airwa\s �Mauritius�� Air Ivoire 
�CÎte d’Ivoire�� SociÃtÃ Internationale de 3lantations d’+eveas 
�SI3+� :est Africa and Maarifa (ducation �(ast Africa�. +e was 
appointed to the Board in May, 2007 and is currently the Chairman 
of the %oard.

Dr. Olufemi Oyetunji 
Dr. )emi 2\etunMi holds a 3hD in Statistics from the 8niversit\ of 
Manchester� Institute of Science and 7echnolog\� (ngland ������� a 
Master of Science �M.Sc� degree in Statistics from Imperial College� 
/ondon ������ and a %achelor of Science �%.Sc� )irst Class +onours 
degree in Statistics and 2perational 5esearch from the 8niversit\ of 
Manchester� Institute of Science and 7echnolog\� (ngland ������. +e 
is a )ellow of the Institute of Actuaries� 8nited .ingdom and has 
attended several management development programmes locall\ 
and overseas. +e Moined Continental 5einsurance as Managing 
Director�C(2 on -anuar\ �rd� ����. Dr 2\etunMi was the founding 
Managing Director�C(2 of Ale[ander )orbes Consulting Actuaries 
1igeria /imited and as the Chief Actuar\� supervised man\ large 
insurance and pension schemes� a position he held before Moining 
Continental 5einsurance. +e continued to serve on the %oard of 
the compan\ as a non-e[ecutive director until his resignation earl\ 
in the current \ear. +e is currentl\ a non-e[ecutive director of 
CrusaderSterling 3ensions /td.

Continental Re Plc
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5. Board Committees
There are three standing Board Committees that assists the Board 
in the e[ecution of its responsibilities. During the \ear� the Corporate 
Governance� Compliance and (stablishment Committee was 
renamed ‘Corporate Governance, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee’ and its terms of reference amended to include agreeing 
the conditions of service of staff� management and Directors and 
recommending Directors’ nomination and remuneration to the 
%oard. 7he three Committees were reconstituted at the %oard 
meeting held on March �th� ���� as follows�

 △ Corporate Governance, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee
Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara �Chairman� 
Mr. David S. SobanMo 
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang 
Mr. )oluso /aguda

 △ Underwriting Committee
Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara �Chairman�
Mr. David S. SobanMo
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[
Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi 
Mr. /awrence M. 1a]are

 △ Investment/Finance, General Purposes and Enterprise Risk 
Management Committee
Mr. 9incent /e Guennou �Chairman�
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[
Mr. )oluso /aguda
Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi
Mr. /awrence M. 1a]are

7he Committees functioned effectivel\ during the \ear and 
operated within the powers delegated to them b\ the %oard.

Terms of reference of the Committees 
Corporate Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 △ )ormulate Corporate Governance 3olic\ for the Compan\.
 △ (nsure effective implementation of the 3olic\.
 △ (nsure compliance with relevant laws and regulations in the 
course of business. 

 △ )ormulate recruitment polic\ for the Compan\.
 △ Agree the conditions of service.
 △ 5eview remuneration from time to time.
 △ 5ecruitment of top Management staff.
 △ 5eview organogram of the organisation from time to time for 
effective performance.

 △ Agree the conditions of service of staff� management and Directors.
 △ 5ecommend Directors’ nomination and remuneration to the %oard.

Underwriting Committee

 △ 5eview underwriting polic\ of the Compan\.
 △ )ormulate geographical e[pansion of the Compan\.
 △ 5eview the retrocession cover of the Compan\.
 △ 3roduct development.
 △ Consider adeTuac\ of technical reserve.
 △ )ormulate 5isN Management 3olic\.
 △ Consider Actuarial 5eports.

Investment/Finance, General Purposes and Enterprise Risk 

Management Committee

 △ Approve and review Investment 3olic\ of the Compan\.
 △ 5eview and approve assets allocation and Managers.
 △ Consider Tuarterl\ and annual accounts.
 △ Approve investment within limits stipulated b\ the %oard.
 △ Consider annual budgets.
 △ Consider capital raising e[ercise and�or financial restructuring of 
the Compan\.

 △ Consider internal audit report.
 △ Consider investment Tuarterl\ reports.
 △ 7ogether with the Compan\’s legal adviser� review an\ legal matters 
that could have a significant impact on the Compan\’s business.

 △ 5eview the ([ecutive Committee’s �“(;C2”� reports detailing 
the adeTuac\ and overall effectiveness of the Compan\’s risN 
management function and its implementation by management, 
and reports on internal control and any recommendation and 
confirm that appropriate action has been taNen.

 △ 5eview the risN philosoph\� strateg\ and policies recommended 
b\ (;C2 and consider reports b\ (;C2� ensure compliance 
with such policies� and with the overall risN profile of the 
Compan\. 5isN in the widest sense includes marNet risN� credit 
risN� liTuidit\ risN� operation risN and commercial risN� which 
together cover detailed combined risNs such as� interest rate risN� 
countr\ risN� counterpart risN� including provisioning risN� currenc\ 
and foreign e[change risNs� technolog\ risN� price risN� disaster 
recover\ risN� operational risN� prudential risN� reputational risN� 
competitive risN� legal risN� compliance and control risNs� sensitive 
risNs� e.g. environmental� health and safet\� concentration of risNs 
across a number of portfolio dimensions� investment risN� asset 
valuation risN� and other risNs appropriate to the business which 
ma\ be identified from time to time.

 △ 5eview the adeTuac\ of insurance coverage.
 △ 5eview risN identification and measurement methodologies.
 △ Monitor procedures to deal with and review the disclosure of 
information to clients.

Meetings of the Committees/Record of attendance
During the \ear� the Corporate Governance� 1omination and 
5emuneration Committee met four ��� times while the 

Corporate governance
continued

Mr. Johnnie F. Wilcox
Mr. -ohnnie ). :ilco[ is )ellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute 
of /ondon with over �� \ears worNing e[perience in the Insurance 
Industr\ covering direct Insurance� reinsurance� risN management� 
reinsurance broNing and insurance education. +e was appointed to 
the %oard of Continental 5e in Ma\ ����. 3rior to that he was the 
former Managing Director of United African Insurance Brokers Ltd 
�8AI%� and during his tenure led a team of professionals at 8AI% 
providing risN solutions and consulting services to Insurance and 
reinsurance companies within the continent of Africa. +e has 
e[tensive contacts within the African continent and has served on 
the e[ecutive of numerous regional Associations including the 
African Insurance Association �AI2�� :est African Insurance 
Companies Association �:AICA�� and the :est African Insurance 
Institute� amongst others.

Mr. Foluso Laguda
Mr. )oluso /aguda Moined the %oard of Continental 5e in September 
����. +e holds an M%A from Imperial College� /ondon� 8. with 
speciali]ation in (ntrepreneurship and Corporate )inance� a 
Bachelor of Engineering Honours Degree in Mechanical Engineering 
from 8MIS7� Manchester� 8.. +e is an e[perienced Strateg\ 
Consultant with over �� \ears of leadership in advisor\� information 
and research businesses. +e has worNed with several global 
corporations across Consumer Packaged Goods, Technology Media 
and 7elecoms� and )inancial Services sectors r on the development 
and implementation of business growth and innovation 
programmes. +e is a member of the Institute of Directors �MIoD� 
in both 1igeria and the 8. and currentl\ serves on the board of 
several companies including SA/AG /imited.

Multiple Directorship
Although all the Directors serve on other %oards� this has not 
interfered with their abilit\ to discharge their responsibilities on the 
%oard of the Compan\. 7he\ have demonstrated that the\ have 
sufficient time to the business of the Company through regular 
attendance at all Board and Board Committee meetings and 
effectivel\ discharged their duties during the \ear.

Board evaluation
 A formal evaluation of the performance of the %oard and of 
individual directors to be carried out b\ an e[ternal consultant has 
been scheduled for the current \ear ����.

4. Board meetings
7he %oard met five ��� times during the ���� financial \ear for the 
review of Annual and Tuarterl\ financial Statements� review of 
management reports� review of performance of regional offices 
and subsidiaries� approval of group strateg\�structure� review of 
reports and recommendations of %oard Committees� approval 
of retrocession strateg\ for ����� review and approval of annual 
operating and CA3(; budgets� policies and other issues on the 
operations and strategies of the Compan\ and the group. %oard 
papers were sent in advance of meetings and Directors were 
provided appropriate and relevant information to enable them 
maNe informed decision on an\ matter before them.

7he dates of the meetings and details of Directors’ attendance at 
the meetings are shown in the table below�

Directors 05/03/2014 25/04/2014

Meetings No. of  
Meetings Attended22/07/2014 21/10/2014 09/12/2014

Mr. +urle\ Dodd\ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Mr. /awrence M. 1a]are ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Mr. 9incent /e Guennou ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Mr. David S. SobanMo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
Mr. )oluso /aguda ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 5
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Compan\ 
Secretary and apart from being Secretary to the Board, the 
Compan\ Secretar\ also acts as Secretar\ to all the Committees. 
During the \ear� the Compan\ Secretar\ provided necessar\ 
assistance and information as were reTuired b\ members of the 
%oard and the Committees.

7. Management Committees
Executive Management Committee 
7he Committee comprising the Group Managing Director�C(2� 
the ([ecutive Director�Group +ead of 2perations� the Chief 5isN 
Officer and the Head of Finance, is responsible for the day to day 
operations and management of the Compan\. 7he Committee 
worNs with and assists the Group Managing Director�C(2 to define 
business goals and obMectives� chart and define corporate strategies� 
track and manage strategic business performance against formulated 
plans and e[pected results and outcomes� maNe decisions on 
operating plans and budgets as well as review financial results and 
control and maNe recommendations on maMor policies to the %oard 
for approvals as reTuired through the relevant %oard Committees. 
7he Committee effectivel\ discharged its responsibilities and acted 
within the authorit\ delegated to it b\ the %oard.

Other Committees
7hese include (nterprise 5isN Management Committee� 7echnical 
Committee� Credit Control Committee and 7reat\ :ording 
Committee while ad-hoc Committees are set up from time to time 
and as the need arises to address specific issues. 

8. Remuneration 
Non-Executive Directors
1on-([ecutive Directors’ remuneration is b\ wa\ of annual 
Directors’ fees as approved from time to time b\ the Compan\ in 
general meeting based on the recommendation of the %oard. 
1on-([ecutive Directors are also paid sitting allowance and are 
reimbursed expenses incurred by them in attending and returning 
from meetings of the Compan\. 7he %oard undertaNes a peer 
review of its compensation and remuneration levels ever\ two \ears 
to ensure that the Compan\ remains competitive.

Managing Director and other senior executives
The remuneration policy of the Company is formulated to attract, 
retain and compete for talents both locall\ and internationall\. 7he 
polic\ is also formulated to motivate and enhance commitment of 
([ecutive Directors and Senior ([ecutives and to ensure 
improvement in their productivit\ impacting positivel\ on overall 
Compan\’s performance.

The remuneration package of the Managing Director and other 
Senior ([ecutives which is a mi[ of fi[ed pa\ and performance 

related element is approved b\ the %oard on the recommendation 
of the Corporate Governance� 1omination and 5emuneration 
Committee. Annual increments and benefits are also approved b\ 
the %oard on the recommendation of the Committee. 7he fi[ed 
pa\ comprises basic salar\� benefits and allowances while the 
performance related element consists of an annual performance 
bonus. 7he bonus which is a percentage of the Compan\’s profit 
before ta[ is subMect to the approval of the %oard and its distribution 
is based on laid down criteria.

([ecutive Directors do not receive Director’s fees and sitting 
allowance paid to 1on-([ecutive Directors.

9. Code of business conduct
7he Directors’ code of conduct was recentl\ revised as part of the 
%oard’s commitment to entrenching best practices in the Compan\ 
and in its continued recognition that honesty, integrity and 
accountabilit\ are crucial for the success of the Compan\’s business. 
7he code is sufficientl\ detailed and gives clear guidance to the 
Directors in the discharge of their duties. 

7he %oard has also approved a new code of conduct and ethics for all 
emplo\ees. 7he code outlines the general ethical standards that all 
emplo\ees are e[pected to compl\ with and has been formall\ 
communicated to all emplo\ees. 

10. Insider trading and dealing in company’s shares
7he %oard has approved a Securities 7rading 3olic\ which sets out 
the guidelines on the purchase and sale of securities by Directors, 
emplo\ees and associates. 7he polic\ is to assist all Directors� and 
employees to understand the restrictions placed on them as insiders 
of the Compan\ with respect to their securities transactions and to 
avoid the conduct Nnown as “insider trading”. Insider trading is 
prohibited by the Company and the prohibition extends to dealings 
through nominees, agents or other associates including family 
members. 7he polic\ is available on the Compan\’s website.

11. Conflict of interest
7he Compan\’s polic\ reTuires Directors to conduct their affairs in 
such manner and with such ethics and integrit\ that no conflict of 
interest, real or implied could exist and to promptly disclose any 
real or potential conflict of interest that the\ ma\ have regarding 
an\ matters that ma\ come before the %oard or its committees. 

7he %oard noted the Managing Director’s disclosure with respect 
to the calculation of reserves as at December ��st� ���� which 
was carried out b\ Ale[ander )orbes Consulting Actuaries 1igeria 
/imited� a compan\ in which the Managing Director� Dr. )emi 
2\etunMi� was a 1on-([ecutive Director. Apart from this� no other 
real or potential conflict of interest situation was disclosed.

Corporate governance
continued

8nderwriting Committee and Investment�)inance� General 
3urposes and (nterprise 5isN Management Committee met three 
��� times. 5ecords of attendance at the meetings are set out in the 
tables below�

Corporate Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Members 04/03/14 25/04/14 21/07/14 20/10/14
Total 

Attended

Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4
Mr. David S. SobanMo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4
Mr. )oluso /aguda n�a ✓ ✓ ✓ 3

n�a r Mr. )oluso /aguda had not become a member of the Committee on ��������

Underwriting Committee

Members 04/03/14 21/07/14 20/10/14
Total 

Attended

Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
Mr. David S. SobanMo ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ n�a ✓ ✓ 2
Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
Mr. /awrence 1a]are ✓ ✓ ✓ 3

n�a r Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ had not become a member of the Committee on ��������

Investment/Finance, General Purposes and ERM Committee

Members 04/03/14 21/07/14 20/10/14
Total 

Attended

Mr. 9incent /e Guennou ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ n�a ✓ ✓ 2
Mr. )oluso /aguda n�a ✓ ✓ 2
Dr� 2lufemi 2\etunMi ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
Mr. /awrence 1a]are ✓ ✓ ✓ 3

n�a r Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ and Mr. )oluso /aguda had not become members of the Committee ��������

An ad-hoc %uilding Committee comprising Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang� 
Mr. David S. SobanMo� Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[ and Dr. )emi 2\etunMi 
was constituted during the \ear charged with reviewing proposals 
in respect of the development of the Compan\’s properties and 
maNing recommendations to the %oard.

The Chairman of each of the Committees reports to the Board on 
the deliberations of the Committees while minutes of meetings of 
all the Committees are circulated to all the Directors.

2ther ad-hoc Committees are set up from time to time and as the 
need arises to address specific issues.

6. Statutory Audit Committee
7he Audit Committee which is a statutor\ Committee established 
in accordance with the provisions of Section ���� subsections � and 
4 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20, LFN 2004 
comprises si[ members� three of whom are representatives of the 
%oard namel\ r Mr. David S. SobanMo� Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara and 
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang while the remaining three namel\ Custodian 
	 Allied Insurance 3lc represented b\ Mr. :ole 2shin �Chairman�. 
S21A5 r %urNina )aso represented b\ Mr. Andre %a\ala and 
I 	 I Investment represented b\ Mr. %laNe\ 2. IMe]ie r are representatives 
of shareholders elected at the last Annual General Meeting. 7he 
representatives of the %oard on the Committee are 1on-([ecutive 
Directors. 7he terms of reference of the Committee remained 
unchanged. 7he Committee met four times during the \ear and 
reviewed �i� audited and interim financial statements ensuring that 
the\ are in line with regulator\ reTuirements and are in accordance 
with acceptable accounting standards� �ii� the Management /etter on 
the Audit of the )inancial Statements� �iii� Tuarterl\ claims report� �iv� 
the scope and planning of audit reTuirements� and made 
recommendations to the Board in regard to the remuneration of the 
e[ternal auditors of the Compan\. 7he Committee also received 
and reviewed Tuarterl\ internal audit reports and other reports 
from the management in the discharge of its duties. 7he group 
Managing Director� the ([ecutive Director� the C52� the +eads of 
)inance and Internal Audit attend meetings of the Committee.

5ecord of attendance of members at the meetings of the 
Committee is set out below.

Members of the Committee

Meetings No. of  
Meetings Attended03/03/2014 22/4/2014 21/7/2014 20/10/2014

Custodian 	 Allied Insurance 3lc represented b\ Mr. :ole 2shin �Chairman� ✓ ✗ ✓ ✓ 3
S21A5 r %urNina )aso represented b\ Mr. Andre %a\ala ✗ ✓ ✓ ✓ 3
I 	 I Investment represented b\ Mr. %laNe\ 2. IMe]ie ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4
Mr. David S. SobanMo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4
Mr. %aNar\ +. .amara ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4
Ms. 1ana Appiah-.orang ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 4

Mr. Andre %a\ala died after the \ear end on March ��th ����.



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 43Continental Reinsurance Plc42

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

In addition� we are addressing our environmental impacts through 
monitoring and reducing our direct impacts by making our 
operations more efficient. :e put particular effort in managing our 
energ\ consumption and reducing our carbon footprint.

17. Risk management 
Organisation structure 
5isN Management is an intrinsic function of the Compan\. 
Continental 5e has a Group 5isN Management )unction headed b\ 
a Chief 5isN 2fficer. %e\ond the implementation of enterprise risN 
management �“(5M”�� the risN management function is also 
involved in a number of areas including business planning� reserving 
methodolog\� retrocession and capital adeTuac\. Continental 5e’s 
risk management approach is built on the three lines of defence 
frameworN with individual business units as the first line of 
defence �full\ responsible for ensuring a risN and control process 
is established as part of their da\-to-da\ operations�� the risN 
management function as the second line of defence and internal 
audit as the third line of defence.

Risk appetite and strategic plan
7he Compan\’s risN appetite is set b\ the %oard of Directors and 
Continental 5e’s strategic plan is derived from the Compan\’s risN 
appetite. It focuses on how we can achieve growth in a rapidl\ 
evolving terrain� through e[pansion initiatives that drive geographic 
diversification and deeper marNet penetration. 7he plan also aims to 
aid strateg\ implementation and uses a mMulti-Domestic (nterprise’ 
model as the fulcrum of the growth strateg\.

Enterprise risk management
Continental 5e is continuousl\ embedding the (nterprise 5isN 
Management �(5M� frameworN across all business units in the 
group. 7he (5M frameworN enables the compan\ to identif\� 
monitor and control current risNs as well as emerging risNs 
consistentl\ across the Group.

2ur significant risN categories encompass the following�

 △ Underwriting risk:
8nderwriting risN is the risN that the insured losses are higher 
than e[pected. 7his is the risN that the premium income does 
not adeTuatel\ cover the claims that Continental 5e is obliged 
to pa\. 7his risN could arise from unNnown accumulations� 
inadeTuate pricing� human error and�or provisioning assumptions. 
Continental 5e has a well-documented underwriting guideline 
for all our classes of businesses. 7he guideline sets out the 
Compan\’s underwriting procedures on how to manage and 
oversee technical operations in the core business. 

 △ Market/investment risk:
MarNet risN is the risN of loss� or of adverse change in the financial 
situation, resulting directly or indirectly from fluctuations in the 
level and in the volatilit\ of marNet prices of assets� liabilities and 
financial instruments. Continental 5e has a well-defined 
investment guideline polic\� which states the counterpart\ credit 
limits� asset allocation parameters� investment authorit\ limits and 
includes limitations on credit rating, interest, liquidity, and 
currenc\ risN e[posures.

 △ Credit risk:
Credit risN is the risN of loss or adverse change in the financial 
position resulting directly or indirectly, from fluctuations in the 
credit standing of issuers of securities, counterparties and any 
debtors to which undertaNings are e[posed� in the form of 
counterparty default risk, spread risk, or market risk 
concentrations. 7he compan\’s investment and credit control 
policies cover this risN� as well as monitoring receivables and 
adherence to 1AIC2M’s “no premium no cover” polic\.

 △ Liquidity risk:
/iTuidit\ risN is the risN that a firm would not have enough cash or 
liTuid assets to meet its short term obligations. 7he Compan\’s 
liTuidit\ polic\ is documented in the Investment 3olic\ as well as 
the Group’s risN register.

 △ Operational risk:
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or 
failed strategy, internal processes or from personnel, systems, and 
e[ternal events including reputational damage. In addition to the 
various processes and guidelines� Continental 5e continues to 
review and develop a set of measures and controls aimed at 
effectivel\ managing operational risNs. 

 △ Reputational risk:
5eputation is arguabl\ the most valuable asset an organisation 
possesses. 5eputational risN relates to the trustworthiness and 
standing of the firm with its staNeholders� in its marNet and its 
wider environment. 5eputation risN is of utmost importance to 
Continental 5e and the Compan\’s frameworN for corporate 
communication is built to serve the corporate strateg\. 
Communication in Continental 5e is coordinated in order to 
ensure inclusivit\ as well as build� maintain and protect the 
Compan\’s reputation with its various staNeholders.

Corporate governance
continued

12. Human resources policy
The Company pays great attention to employee engagement, health 
care� development and motivation in line with its conviction that 
people remain the most valuable assets to achieving the corporate 
obMectives. Sound human resources policies and global best practices 
are adopted in all the areas of people management. 7he policies are 
documented� communicated and reviewed regularl\.

13. Anti-bribery and corruption policy
7he Group Anti-%riber\ 	 Corruption polic\ was reviewed during 
the \ear. 7he polic\ prohibits corrupt practices generall\ and prevents 
the maNing or offering of pa\ments to government officials or an\ 
other persons in order to obtain or keep business or to obtain some 
other benefit for the Compan\ or an emplo\ee of the Compan\. 
Along with the Compan\’s %oard of Directors� the Compan\’s 
Senior Management is responsible for ensuring that the Company 
complies with the 3olic\ as well as applicable anti-corruption laws. 
7here were no reported cases of fraud during the \ear. 

14. Whistle-blowing policy
7he Group has in place� a whistle-blowing 3olic\ and procedure that 
encourage honest whistle-blowing. 7he polic\ is currentl\ being 
reviewed and will include an online mechanism for reporting an\ illegal 
or unethical behaviour as internal control and compliance measures.

15. Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
:e continue to tailor our CS5 to meet the needs of local 
communities in consonant with the Compan\’s mission and values 
and also driven b\ staNeholder e[pectations. In order to achieve 
the benefits of our localisation aims� CS5 application remains the 
responsibilit\ of the various regional offices in which the Compan\ 
is represented. :e continue to infuse this throughout the corporate 
culture� the Ne\ being to build a coordinated s\stem for CS5 planning� 
e[ecution� and communication. It is the focus of the Compan\ to 
expand its social responsibility to more areas, communities and 
locations across the continent.

In ����� we proactivel\ responded to the needs of communities 
b\ engaging various staNeholders in ongoing dialogues on social 
concerns such as particular educational needs and promoting local 
activities that aim to enrich public and communit\ life. A list of the 
recipients of our CS5 activities during the \ear can be found in the 
Directors’ 5eport. 2ur global CS5 e[penditure in ���� was 
1G1��������� ������ 1G1���������.���.

:e are still full\ committed to the sponsorship of the �� minutes 
)rench language education programme tagged mAmbience 
Continental 5e’� aired on 5a\ 3ower ���.� )M 5adio ever\ 
7hursda\ from �.�� p.m. to �.�� p.m. :e also provide significant 
support to a house for the less privileged at the S2S village in 
IMebu-2wu� 2gun state� 1igeria� and other less privileged 
institutions in /agos� Douala� AbidMan and 1airobi. 

:e shall continue to fulfil our corporate commitment of fostering 
mutuall\ beneficial relationships b\ worNing in concert with various 
partners and devoting resources to support various communit\ 
needs that reflect the Compan\’s obMectives.

16. Principles of sustainable insurance
7he Compan\ continues to affirm its commitment to the 81(3-)I 
3rinciples of Sustainable Insurance �3SI� through its signator\ status 
and has embedded (nvironmental� Social and Governance �(SG� 
issues in its decision maNing.

The Board and Management of the Company is fully committed to 
embracing fundamental aspirations of the PSI and turning them into 
concrete actions. 7hese include integrating (SG issues into the 
Compan\’s management and operational D1A� to worNing 
together with clients� suppliers and governments to raise awareness 
of (SG issues� alongside developing new Ninds of risN management 
products and services.

Continental 5e is cogni]ant of the fact that the management of risN 
in a holistic manner is a critical element of business success and 
sustainabilit\. A strong (nterprise 5isN Management �(5M� culture 
has been adopted and is currentl\ being embedded group-wide. 
7he aim is to ensure that Continental 5e’s business strateg\ and 
values are accuratel\ aligned with its risN appetite in order to achieve 
a resilient business� brand as well as protect its staNeholders� 
including shareholders, clients, employees, regulators and the 
broader public. 7he risN appetite statement approved b\ the %oard 
of Directors addresses all relevant (SG issues to ensure a sustainable 
insurance governance model. 

Continental 5e is aware of the (SG issues that could affect the 
insurance industr\ such as ageing and demographic changes� water 
and food scarcit\� biodiversit\ loss and ecos\stem degradation� 
e[treme weather events and climate change� human rights and 
labour standards. 7his is wh\ Continental 5e is committed to 
addressing (SG issues within its portfolio at product development� 
underwriting stages while providing relief and support at claims 
stage. 2ur (5M and capital adeTuac\ models include allowances 
for (SG related risNs to raise awareness and assess impact at capital 
level. :e also continue to invest valuable time and resources in 
research on topics covering products adeTuac\ and distribution.
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Audit Committee’s report
7o the members of Continental 5einsurance 3lc

In accordance with the provisions of Section ������ of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, LFN 2004 members 
of the Audit Committee of Continental 5einsurance 3lc hereb\ 
report on the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended December ��st� ���� as follows�

 △ the scope and plan of the audit for the year ended 
December ��st� ���� were adeTuate

 △ we have reviewed the financial statements and are satisfied with 
the explanations obtained

 △ we have reviewed the e[ternal Auditors’ management letter for 
the period and are satisfied with the management’s responses 
and that management has taken appropriate steps to address the 
issues raised by the Auditors

 △ we are of the opinion that the accounting and reporting policies of 
the Compan\ are in accordance with legal reTuirements and 
ethical practices.

7he e[ternal Auditors confirmed having received full co-operation 
from the Compan\’s management in the course of their statutor\ 
audit and that the scope of their worN was not restricted in an\ wa\.

Mr. Wole Oshin
Chairman, Audit Committee
)5C������CII1������������

February 25th, 2015

Members of the Audit Committee
Custodian 	 Allied Insurance 3lc represented b\  
Mr. Wole Oshin  
Shareholder �Chairman�

S21A5 r %urNina )aso represented b\  
Mr. Andre Bayala �died on March ��th� ����� 
Shareholder

I 	 I Investments /td represented b\  
Mr. Blakey Ijezie 
Shareholder

Ms. Nana Appiah-Korang 
Director

Mr. David S. Sobanjo 
Director

Mr. Bakary H. Kamara 
Director

18. Relationship with shareholders
7he Compan\ is committed to maintaining good relations with 
shareholders. All shareholders have eTual rights� are treated fairl\ 
and are provided with full and timel\ information about the Compan\’s 
performance and strategies. 7his is achieved through the release of 
quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results in the local press, 
media releases for strategic announcements and distribution of 
annual report and corporate brochure� features� advertisements� 
press interviews� corporate opinion on topical issues etc. 7he 
quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results are promptly displayed 
on the Compan\’s website. 2ther information is also available on 
the Compan\’s website and its social media platforms. 

7he Compan\’s Annual General Meetings are conducted in an open 
manner and shareholders are given sufficient time and opportunit\ 
to participate full\ at the meetings. Comments�suggestions of 
shareholders at the meetings are considered by the Board and 
immediate action taNen where appropriate. 4ueries and reTuests 
for information or clarification by shareholders are promptly dealt 
with and following the release of the Compan\’s annual and 
Tuarterl\ results� meetings are held with a number of institutional 
shareholders to discuss the results. 7he %oard and management 
also meet with shareholders upon reTuest. 

19. External auditors
7he %oard continued to maintain an obMective and professional 
relationship with the e[ternal auditors. 7he auditors did not render 
an\ other service to the Compan\ during the \ear outside their 
statutor\ obligations. Information on remuneration of the auditors 
can be found in note � to the consolidated financial statements.

20. Compliance with regulatory requirements
As part of its commitment to achieving ��� percent compliance with 
statutory and other regulatory requirements, the Company has 
developed a compliance manual of all regulator\ reTuirements to 
assist in ensuring timel\ compliance within the laid down statutor\ 
compliance periods. 7he Compan\’s level of compliance is monitored 
regularl\ b\ the Internal Auditor on a weeNl\ basis and b\ the Audit 
Committee and the Board through quarterly compliance reports 
detailing the Compan\’s level of compliance and sanctions imposed� 
if an\� prepared b\ the Chief Compliance 2fficer. 7he following 
penalties were paid during the \ear�

7he sum of 1G1����������.�� to the Securities 	 ([change 
Commission in respect of outstanding penalties for late filing 
of returns from -anuar\ ���� to December ����

 △ 7he sum of 1G1���������.�� to the )inancial 5eporting 
Council for late-submission of documents reTuired b\ the 
Council in ���� indicating the Compan\’s I)5S readiness

 △ The sum of NGN3,250,000 to the National Insurance 
Commission for late filing of returns.

21. Internal audit
There is an internal audit unit headed by a professionally qualified 
Accountant who reports to the Audit Committee and the %oard 
through the Managing Director. 7he unit assists the %oard in 
assessing the effectiveness of the internal controls put in place and 
ensures that all the controls including financial, operational, 
compliance and risN management are functioning effectivel\. 7he 
purpose� authorit\ and responsibilit\ of the internal Audit activities 
are clearl\ defined in the Compan\’s Internal Audit Charter and 
annual audit plan approved b\ the %oard on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee. During the \ear� the internal audit reviewed 
the effectiveness of the internal controls at the head office� the 
regional offices in Cameroon and Tunis and the subsidiary in Kenya 
and submitted its quarterly findings to the audit Committee and the 
%oard. Corrective actions were taNen where control weaNnesses 
were identified. 7here were however� no maMor breaches of internal 
controls and procedures during the \ear. 

22 . Communication 
)ollowing e[pansion to new marNets and as part of our drive to 
deliver unified communication� we engaged a consulting firm to 
develop Continental 5e’s brand strateg\ b\ carr\ing out a Ne\ 
staNeholder perception audit. After anal\sing the results� 
recommendations on visual designs and communication messages 
that capture the Compan\’s heritage and evolution which will aid 
our pan-African growth across the continent were given. :e now 
have in place a centralised strategic focus approach of articulating our 
pan-African strength that is rooted in our vision and aligned to our 
business strateg\ which is e[pected to guide and build 
successful marNet evolution over time.

7hrough various staNeholder engagements� we shall continue to 
build trusted relationships and achieve greater collaboration b\ our 
responsive service and consistent brand applications thereb\ creating 
an enabling environment for the successful growth of our business 
and our evolving position as the premier pan-African reinsurer.

Corporate governance
continued
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Statement of Directors’ 
responsibilities
in relation to the preparation of the financial statements 
for the \ear ended December ��st� ����
7he Companies and Allied Matters Act� CA3 C�� /aws of the 
)ederation of 1igeria ����� reTuires the Directors to prepare 
financial statements for each financial \ear that present fairl\� in all 
material respects� the state of financial affairs of the Compan\ and its 
subsidiaries at the end of the \ear and of its profit or loss. 7he 
responsibilities include ensuring that the Compan\ and its 
subsidiaries� 

�a�  Neep proper accounting records that disclose� with reasonable 
accurac\� the financial position of the Compan\ and compl\ with 
the reTuirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act� 
CA3 C�� /aws of the )ederation of 1igeria ����� 

�b�  establish adeTuate internal controls to safeguard their assets and 
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities� and

�c�  prepare their financial statements using suitable accounting 
policies supported b\ reasonable and prudent Mudgments and 
estimates� and are consistentl\ applied.

7he Directors accept responsibilit\ for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the annual consolidated financial statements� which 
have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported 
b\ reasonable and prudent Mudgments and estimates� in conformit\ 
with International )inancial 5eporting Standards� the provisions of 
the Companies and Allied Matters Act� CA3 C�� /aws of the 
)ederation of 1igeria ����� the Insurance Act ���� and the 
)inancial 5eporting Council of 1igeria Act� 1o. �� ����. 

7he Directors are of the opinion that the consolidated financial 
statements present fairl\� in all material respects� the state of the 
financial affairs of the Compan\ and its subsidiaries and of its profit. 
7he Directors further accept responsibilit\ for the maintenance of 
accounting records that ma\ be relied upon in the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements� as well as adeTuate s\stems of 
internal financial control. 

1othing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that 
the Compan\ and its subsidiaries will not remain a going concern for 
at least twelve months from the date of this statement. 

Mr. David S. SobanMo
Director
)5C������CII1������������

March �th� ����

Dr. 2lufemi 2\etunMi 
Managing Director�C(2
)5C������1SA������������

Independent 
Auditors’ report
to the members of Continental 5einsurance 3lc

Report on the consolidated financial statements
:e have audited the accompan\ing consolidated financial statements 
of Continental 5einsurance 3lc �“the Compan\”� and its subsidiaries 
�“the Group”�� which comprise the consolidated statement of 
financial position as at December ��st� ����� and the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income� 
consolidated statement of changes in eTuit\� and consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the \ear then ended� and a summar\ 
of significant accounting policies and other e[planator\ notes.

Directors’ responsiEility Ior the consolidated 
financial statements
7he Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International )inancial 5eporting Standards� the 
provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act� CA3 C�� 
/aws of the )ederation of 1igeria ����� the Insurance Act ����� 
the )inancial 5eporting Council of 1igeria Act 1o. �� ���� and for 
such internal control as the Directors determines necessar\ to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement� whether due to fraud or error.

$Xditors’ responsiEility
2ur responsibilit\ is to e[press an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. :e conducted our audit 
in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. 7hose 
standards reTuire that we compl\ with ethical reTuirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
7he procedures selected depend on the auditors’ Mudgment� 
including the assessment of the risNs of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements� whether due to fraud or error. 
In maNing those risN assessments� the auditors consider internal 
control relevant to the entit\’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances� but not for 
the purpose of e[pressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entit\’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made b\ the Directors� as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

:e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion� the consolidated financial statements present fairl\� in 
all material respects� the financial position of the Group as at 
December ��st� ���� and of their financial performance and cash 
flows for the \ear then ended in accordance with International 
)inancial 5eporting Standards� provisions of the Companies and 
Allied Matters Act� CA3 C�� /aws of the )ederation of 1igeria 
����� the Insurance Act ���� and the )inancial 5eporting Council 
of 1igeria Act 1o. �� ����.

5eport on other legal and regXlatory 
requirements
In accordance with the reTuirement of Schedule � of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act� CA3 C�� /aws of the 
)ederation of 1igeria ����� we confirm that�

�i� we have obtained all the information and e[planations which to 
the best of our Nnowledge and belief were necessar\ for the 
purpose of our audit

�ii� in our opinion� proper booNs of account have been Nept b\ the 
Compan\� so far as appears from our e[amination of those booNs

�iii� the Compan\’s statement of financial position and statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in 
agreement with the booNs of account

�iv� in our opinion� the consolidated financial statements have been 
properl\ prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act� CA3 C�� /aws of the 
)ederation of 1igeria ���� so as to present fairl\ the state of 
affairs and profit or loss of the Compan\ and its subsidiaries.

Kayode Famutimi, )CA
)5C������ICA1�����������

)or� (rnst 	 <oung
/agos� 1igeria

April ��th� ����
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Summar\ of significant 
accounting policies

1. General information
7he consolidated financial statements of Continental 5einsurance 3lc 
and its subsidiaries �collectivel\� the Group� for the \ear ended 
December ��st� ���� were authorised for issue in accordance with 
a resolution of the Directors on )ebruar\ ��th� ����. 

Continental 5einsurance 3lc �the Compan\ or the parent� was 
incorporated in ���� as a professional reinsurance limited liabilit\ 
compan\ under the Companies Act ���� and obtained license 
to transact non-life 5einsurance business on December ��th� ����. 
It commenced business operation in -anuar\ ����. 7he Compan\ 
subseTuentl\ obtained the license to transact life reinsurance business 
in September ���� and commenced life reinsurance business in 
-anuar\ ����. In ����� the Compan\ was converted to a public limited 
liabilit\ compan\ and in Ma\ ����� its shares were listed on the 
1igerian StocN ([change. In -anuar\ ����� the Compan\ opened a 
business office in Douala� Cameroon� 1airobi� .en\a in \ear ���� 
�this was converted to a subsidiar\ in -anuar\ ����� and AbidMan� 
CÎte d’ Ivoire in March ����. In ����� the Compan\ opened a regional 
office in 7unis� 7unisia and acTuired a subsidiar\ in Gaborone� %otswana. 
7he registered office address of the Compan\ is St 1icholas +ouse 
��th )loor�� � Catholic Mission Street� /agos� 1igeria.

7he Compan\ is regulated b\ the 1ational Insurance Commission 
of 1igeria �1AIC2M�.

Principal activity
7he Group is licensed to carr\ out both life and non-life reinsurance 
business. 7he Group provides cover in all classes of reinsurance� 
basicall\ non-life and life treat\ and facultative reinsurance� bacNed b\ 
retrocessionaires in the /ondon and African reinsurance marNets. 
7he products and services b\ the Group cut across accident� 
energ\� fire� marine� liabilit\� individual and group life.

7he Group also has investment portfolio with diversified investment 
focus aimed at improving its profitabilit\� meet future claim obligations� 
and limit the Group’s e[posure to investment risN� preserve shareholders’ 
capital in order to ma[imise total return on investment.

In addition� the Group also provides top-class specialised training 
and development programmes to its esteemed clients in various 
classes of insurance and reinsurance including fire� energ\� business 
interruption� international reinsurance� life and pension� motor and 
general accident and engineering�bond insurance.

�. 6Xmmary oI signiIicant accoXnting policies
2.1 Introduction to summary of accounting policies
7he principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these 
financial statements are set out below. 7hese policies have been 
consistentl\ applied to all the \ears presented� unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Basis of preparation
7hese consolidated financial statements are the financial statements 
of Continental 5einsurance 3lc �“the Compan\’’� and its subsidiaries� 
Continental 5einsurance /imited� .en\a and Continental 
5einsurance /imited� %otswana �“the Group”�.

7he Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with International )inancial 5eporting Standards �I)5S� 
as issued b\ the International Accounting Standards %oard �IAS%�. 
Additional information reTuired b\ national regulations� the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act CA3 C�� /)1 ����� the 
)inancial 5eporting Council of 1igeria Act 1o. �� ����� Insurance 
Act ���� and its interpretations issued b\ the 1ational Insurance 
Commission in its Insurance Industr\ 3olic\ Guidelines is included 
where appropriate. 

7he consolidated and compan\ financial statements comprise the 
consolidated statement of financial position� the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income� the consolidated 
statement of changes in eTuit\� the consolidated statement of cash 
flows and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

7he consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the going concern principle under the historical 
cost convention� e[cept where otherwise stated.

7he Group classifies its e[penses b\ the nature of e[pense method.

7he consolidated financial statements are presented in 1aira� which 
is the Group’s presentation currenc\. 7he figures shown in the 
consolidated financial statements are stated in thousands. 7he 
disclosures on risNs from financial instruments are presented in the 
financial risN management report contained in 1ote ��.

7he consolidated statement of cash flows shows the changes in cash 
and cash eTuivalents arising during the \ear from operating activities� 
investing activities and financing activities. Cash and cash eTuivalents 
include highl\ liTuid investments. 

7he cash flows from operating activities are determined b\ using the 
direct method and the net income is therefore adMusted b\ non-cash 
items� such as measurement gains or losses� changes in provisions� 
as well as changes from receivables and liabilities in the 
corresponding note. Cash transactions from investing or financing 
activities are shown separatel\ from operating activities. Income ta[ 
paid is classified as operating cash flows.

7he cash flows from investing and financing activities are determined 
b\ using the direct method. 7he Group’s assignment of the cash 
flows to operating� investing and financing categor\ depends on the 
Group’s business model �management approach�.

2.3 Basis of consolidation
7he consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at December ��st� 
����. Control is achieved when the Group is e[posed� or has rights� 
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has 
the abilit\ to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 

Specificall\� the Group controls an investee if and onl\ if the Group has�

 △ power over the investee �i.e. e[isting rights that give it the 
current abilit\ to direct the relevant activities of the investee�

 △ e[posure� or rights� to variable returns from its involvement with 
the investee� and

 △ the abilit\ to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

:hen the Group has less than a maMorit\ of the voting or similar rights 
of an investee� the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances 
in assessing whether it has power over an investee� including�

 △ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of 
the investee

 △ rights arising from other contractual arrangements
 △ the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

7he Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts 
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of 
the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiar\ begins 
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiar\ and ceases 
when the Group loses control of the subsidiar\. Assets� liabilities� 
income and e[penses of a subsidiar\ acTuired or disposed of during 
the \ear are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains 
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiar\.

3rofit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income 
�2CI� are attributed to the eTuit\ holders of the parent of the 
Group and to the non-controlling interests� even if this results in the 
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. :hen necessar\� 
adMustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting 
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities� eTuit\� income� 
e[penses and cash flows relating to transactions between members 
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.4 New Standards and improvements
7he following new standards and amendments became effective as 
of -anuar\ �st� �����

 △ Investment (ntities r Amendments to I)5S �� Consolidated 
)inancial Statements� I)5S �� Disclosure of interest in other 
(ntities and IAS �� Separate )inancial Statements

 △ 2ffsetting )inancial Assets and )inancial /iabilities r 
Amendments to IAS �� )inancial Instruments� 3resentation

 △ 5ecoverable Amount Disclosures for 1on-)inancial Assets r 
Amendments to IAS �� Impairment of Assets

 △ I)5IC �� /evies
 △ Improvements to I)5Ss r ����-���� C\cle� Amendments to 

I)5S �� r Short-term receivables and pa\ables

1one of these standards and amendments impact the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements.

7he accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the ���� 
consolidated financial statements are consistent with those followed 
in the preparation of the Group’s ���� financial statements� e[cept 
for the adoption of new standards or interpretations effective as of 
-anuar\ �st� ����. 

2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates 
and assumptions
7he preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformit\ 
with I)5S reTuires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It also reTuires management to e[ercise its Mudgement in the process 
of appl\ing the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions 
ma\ have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period 
the assumptions changed. Management believes that the underl\ing 
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements therefore present the financial position and 
results fairl\. 7he areas involving a higher degree of Mudgement or 
comple[it\� or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant 
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below�

Judgements

In the process of appl\ing the Group’s accounting policies� 
management has made the following Mudgement� which has the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
consolidated financial statements�

2perating lease commitments r Group as lessor
7he Group has entered into commercial propert\ leases on its 
investment propert\ portfolio. 7he Group has determined� based 
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements� 
that it retains all the significant risNs and rewards of ownership of 
these properties and� therefore� accounts for the contracts as 
operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

7he Ne\ assumptions concerning the future and other Ne\ sources 
of  estimation uncertaint\ at the reporting date� that have a 
significant risN of causing a material adMustment to the carr\ing 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the ne[t financial \ear� are 
described below. 7he Group based its assumptions and estimates 
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on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements 
were prepared. ([isting circumstances and assumptions about 
future developments� however� ma\ change due to marNet changes 
or circumstances arising be\ond the control of the Group. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when the\ occur.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
7he Group reviews its debt securities classified as available-for-sale 
investments at each reporting date to assess whether the\ are impaired. 

7he Group also records impairment charges on available-for-sale 
eTuit\ investments when there has been a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value below their cost. 7he determination of what 
is msignificant’ or mprolonged’ reTuires Mudgement. In maNing this 
Mudgement� the Group evaluates� among other factors� historical 
share price movements and duration and e[tent to which the fair 
value of an investment is less than its cost.

)air value of financial instruments
:here the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded 
on the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be verified 
from active marNets� the\ are determined using a variet\ of valuation 
techniTues that include the use of mathematical models. 7he inputs 
to these models are derived from observable marNet data where 
possible� but if this is not available� Mudgement is reTuired to establish 
fair value. 7he Mudgements include considerations of liTuidit\ and 
model inputs such as volatilit\ for discount rates� prepa\ment rates 
and default rate assumptions for asset-bacNed securities. 

9aluation of Insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities:
7he liabilit\ for life insurance contracts is either based on current 
assumptions or on assumptions established at the inception of the 
contract� reflecting the best estimate at the time increased with a 
margin for risN and adverse deviation. All contracts are subMect to 
a liabilit\ adeTuac\ test� which reflect management’s best current 
estimate of future cash flows.

Certain acTuisition costs related to the sale of new policies are recorded 
as deferred acTuisition costs �DAC� and are amortised to the profit 
or loss over time. If the assumptions relating to future profitabilit\ of 
these policies are not realised� the amortisation of these costs could 
be accelerated and this ma\ also reTuire additional impairment 
write-offs to the profit or loss.

7he main assumptions used relates to mortalit\� morbidit\� 
investment returns� e[penses� lapse and surrender rates and 
discount rates. 7he Group bases mortalit\ and morbidit\ on 
standard industr\ mortalit\ tables which reflect historical 
e[periences� adMusted when appropriate to reflect the Group’s 

uniTue risN e[posure� product characteristics� target marNets and 
own claims severit\ and freTuenc\ e[periences.

Assumptions on future e[pense are based on current e[pense 
levels� adMusted for e[pected e[pense inflation� if appropriate.

/apse and surrender rates are based on the Group’s historical 
e[perience of lapses and surrenders.

Discount rates are based on current industr\ risN rates� adMusted for 
the Group’s own risN e[posure.

7he carr\ing value at the reporting date of life insurance contract 
liabilities for the Group is N������������� ������ N�������������� 
and Compan\ N������������� ������ N��������������.

Non-life insurance contract liabilities:
)or non-life insurance contract� estimates have to be made for the 
e[pected ultimate cost of all future pa\ments attaching to incurred 
claims at the reporting date. 7hese include incurred but not 
reported �“I%15”� claims. Due to the nature of reinsurance 
business� it taNes a significant period of time before ultimate costs of 
claims can be established with certaint\ and therefore considerable 
Mudgement� e[perience and Nnowledge of the business is reTuired 
b\ management in the estimation of amounts due to contract 
holders. Actual results ma\ differ resulting in positive or negative 
change in estimated liabilities.

7he ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated b\ using a range 
of standard actuarial claims proMection techniTues� such as Chain 
/adder and %ornheutter-)erguson methods. 7hese methods 
primaril\ use historical claim settlement trends as a base for 
assessing future claims settlement amounts. +istorical claims 
developments are mainl\ anal\sed b\ underwriting \ear� b\ t\pe 
and line of business and b\ geographical territor\. /arge claims are 
separatel\ addressed using loss adMusters’ reports and historical large 
claims development patterns.

Additional Tualitative Mudgement is reTuired as significant 
uncertainties remain such as future changes in inflation� economic 
conditions� attitude to claiming� foreign e[change rates� Mudicial 
decisions and operational process.

Similar Mudgements� estimates and assumptions are emplo\ed in the 
assessment of losses attaching to unearned premium e[posures. 
7he methods used are based on time apportionment principles 
together with significant Mudgement to assess the adeTuac\ of these 
liabilities and the attached uncertaint\.

7he carr\ing value at the reporting date of non-life contract liabilities 
for the Group is N�������������  ������ N�������������� and 
Compan\ N������������� ������ N��������������

3ipeline reinsurance premium
)or non-life reinsurance contracts� estimates have to be made for 
e[pected future premium from policies alread\ written but not 
reported at the reporting date. Due to the nature of reinsurance 
business� in particular treat\ business� it taNes a significant period of 
time before all premiums are reported for a given underwriting 
period. 7herefore considerable Mudgement� e[perience and 
Nnowledge of the business is reTuired b\ management in the 
estimation of pipeline premiums due from contract holders. Actual 
results ma\ differ resulting in positive or negative change in 
estimated pipeline premium income.

7he pipeline premiums are estimated b\ using the Chain /adder 
techniTue. 7his techniTue primaril\ uses historical reporting trends 
as a base for assessing future premium amounts. +istorical 
premiums developments are mainl\ anal\sed b\ underwriting \ear� 
b\ t\pe and line of business and b\ geographical territor\. (stimated 
premium income information is also used to supplement the results 
of this techniTue.

Additional Tualitative Mudgement is reTuired as significant 
uncertainties remain such as future changes in inflation� economic 
conditions� foreign e[change rates� industr\ developments and 
operational process.

Deferred ta[ assets and liabilities
8ncertainties e[ist with respect to the interpretation of comple[ ta[ 
regulations and the amount and timing of future ta[able income. 
Differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions 
made� or future changes to such assumptions� could necessitate 
future adMustments to ta[ income and e[pense alread\ recorded. 
7he Group establishes provisions� based on reasonable estimates� 
for possible conseTuences of audits b\ the ta[ authorities. 7he amount 
of such provisions is based on various factors such as e[perience of 
previous ta[ audits and differing interpretations b\ the ta[able entit\.

7he carr\ing value at the reporting date of net deferred ta[ liabilit\ 
for the Group is N���������� ������ N����������� and Compan\ 
N���������� ������ N�����������. )urther details on ta[es are 
disclosed in 1ote � to the financial statements.

9aluation of pension benefit obligation
7he cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-emplo\ments 
benefits and the present value of the pension obligation are determined 
using actuarial valuations. 7he actuarial valuation involves maNing 
assumptions about discount rates� e[pected rate of return on assets� 
future salar\ increases� mortalit\ rates and future pension increases. 
Due to the comple[it\ of the valuation� the underl\ing assumptions 
and its long-term nature� a defined benefit obligation is highl\ sensitive 
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 

at each reporting date. Details of the Ne\ assumptions used in the 
estimates are contained in 1ote �� to the financial statements.

7he carr\ing value at the reporting date of gratuit\ benefit obligation 
for the Group is N����������� ������ N����������� and Compan\ 
N����������� ������ N�����������.

9aluation of investment properties
7he Group carries its investment properties at fair value� with 
changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss. 7he Group 
engaged an independent valuation specialist to assess fair value as at 
December ��st� ����. A valuation methodolog\ based on 
discounted cash flow model was used as there is a lacN of 
comparable marNet data because of the nature of the properties. 

7he determined fair value of the investment properties is most 
sensitive to the estimated \ield as well as the long-term vacanc\ 
rate. 7he Ne\ assumptions used to determine the fair value of the 
investment properties are further e[plained in 1ote �� to the 
consolidated financial statements.

2.6 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
7he standards and interpretations that are issued� but not \et 
effective� up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements 
are disclosed below. 7he Group intends to adopt these standards� 
if applicable� when the\ become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In -ul\ ����� the IAS% issued the final version of I)5S � )inancial 
Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial instruments 
proMect and replaces IAS �� )inancial Instruments� 5ecognition and 
Measurement and all previous versions of I)5S �. 7he standard 
introduces new reTuirements for classification and measurement� 
impairment� and hedge accounting. I)5S � is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after -anuar\ �st� ����� with earl\ 
application permitted. 5etrospective application is reTuired� but 
comparative information is not compulsor\. (arl\ application of 
previous versions of I)5S � ������ ���� and ����� is permitted if 
the date of initial application is before )ebruar\ �st� ����. 7he 
adoption of I)5S � will have an effect on the classification and 
measurement of the Group’s financial assets� but no impact on the 
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities.

Amendments to IAS 19 defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

IAS �� reTuires an entit\ to consider contributions from emplo\ees 
or third parties when accounting for defined benefit plans. :here 
the contributions are linNed to service� the\ should be attributed 
to periods of service as a negative benefit. 7hese amendments 
clarif\ that� if the amount of the contributions is independent of the 
number of \ears of service� an entit\ is permitted to recognise such 
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in 
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which the service is rendered� instead of allocating the contributions 
to the periods of service. 7his amendment is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after -ul\ �st� ����. It is not e[pected that 
this amendment would be relevant to the Group� since none of the 
entities within the Group has defined benefit plans with 
contributions from emplo\ees or third parties.

Annual improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

7hese improvements are effective from -ul\ �st� ���� and are not 
e[pected to have a material impact on the Group. 7he\ include�

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

7he amendment is applied prospectivel\ and clarifies that all contingent 
consideration arrangements classified as liabilities �or assets� arising 
from a business combination should be subseTuentl\ measured at 
fair value through profit or loss whether or not the\ fall within the 
scope of I)5S � �or IAS ��� as applicable�.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

7he amendments are applied retrospectivel\ and clarifies that�

 △ An entit\ must disclose the Mudgements made b\ management 
in appl\ing the aggregation criteria in paragraph �� of I)5S �� 
including a brief description of operating segments that have been 
aggregated and the economic characteristics �e.g.� sales and 
gross margins� used to assess whether the segments are msimilar’

 △ 7he reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is onl\ 
reTuired to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the 
chief operating decision maNer� similar to the reTuired disclosure 
for segment liabilities.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

7he amendment is applied retrospectivel\ and clarifies that a 
management entit\ �an entit\ that provides Ne\ management 
personnel services� is a related part\ subMect to the related part\ 
disclosures. In addition� an entit\ that uses a management entit\ is 
reTuired to disclose the e[penses incurred for management services.

Annual improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

7hese improvements are effective from -ul\ �st� ���� and are not 
e[pected to have a material impact on the Group. 7he\ include�

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

7he amendment is applied prospectivel\ and clarifies for the scope 
e[ceptions within I)5S � that�

 △ Moint arrangements� not Must Moint ventures� are outside the scope 
of I)5S �

 △ this scope e[ception applies onl\ to the accounting in the 
financial statements of the Moint arrangement itself.

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

7he amendment is applied prospectivel\ and clarifies that the 
portfolio e[ception in I)5S �� can be applied not onl\ to financial 
assets and financial liabilities� but also to other contracts within the 
scope of I)5S � �or IAS ��� as applicable�.

IAS 40 Investment property

7he description of ancillar\ services in IAS �� differentiates between 
investment propert\ and owner-occupied propert\ �i.e.� propert\� 
plant and eTuipment�. 7he amendment is applied prospectivel\ and 
clarifies that I)5S �� and not the description of ancillar\ services in 
IAS ��� is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an 
asset or business combination.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

I)5S �� was issued in Ma\ ���� and establishes a new five-step 
model that will appl\ to revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. 8nder I)5S �� revenue is recognised at an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which an entit\ e[pects to be entitled 
in e[change for transferring goods or services to a customer. 
7he principles in I)5S �� provide a more structured approach to 
measuring and recognising revenue. 7he new revenue standard is 
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue 
recognition reTuirements under I)5S. (ither a full or modified 
retrospective application is reTuired for annual periods beginning on 
or after -anuar\ �st� ���� with earl\ adoption permitted. 7he Group 
is currentl\ assessing the impact of I)5S �� and plans to adopt the 
new standard on the reTuired effective date.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of acceptable 

methods of depreciation and amortisation

7he amendments clarif\ the principle in IAS �� and IAS �� that 
revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated 
from operating a business �of which the asset is part� rather than 
the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. 
As a result� a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate 
propert\� plant and eTuipment and ma\ onl\ be used in ver\ limited 
circumstances to amortise intangible assets.

7he amendments are effective prospectivel\ for annual periods 
beginning on or after -anuar\ �st� ����� with earl\ adoption 
permitted. 7hese amendments are not e[pected to have an\ impact 
to the Group given that the Group has not used a revenue-based 
method to depreciate its non-current assets.

Amendments to IAS 1: IAS 1 Disclosure initiative

r effective date� -anuar\ �st� ����

2.7 Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Group �the 
insurer� has accepted significant insurance risN from another part\ 
�the polic\holders� b\ agreeing to compensate the polic\holders if a 
specified uncertain future event �the insured event� adversel\ affects 
the polic\holders. As a general guideline� the Group determines 
whether it has significant insurance risN� b\ comparing benefits paid 
with benefits pa\able if the insured event did not occur. Insurance 
contracts defined in I)5S � ma\ also transfer financial risN.

In accordance to I)5S �� the Group has continued to appl\ the 
accounting polices it applied in accordance with pre-change over 
from 1igerian GAA3.

Recognition and measurement

7he Group’s Insurance contracts are classified into three broad 
categories� depending on the duration of the risN and the t\pe of risN 
insured� namel\ Individual /ife� Group /ife and General insurance.

Individual life
7hese contracts insure mainl\ against death. 7he reserve is 
calculated b\ determining an 8ne[pired 3remiums 5eserve �835� 
and an 2utstanding Claims 5eserve �2C5�. 7he 835 represents 
the une[pired portion of premiums received for cover within the 
\ear� assuming an allowance for e[penses. 7he 2C5 represents the 
claims reserve for claims that were received� but not \et paid� or 
which ma\ have emerged but have not been received due to 
dela\ed reporting.

Group life
7hese contracts insure against death on a Compan\ basis. 7hese 
contracts are short-term in nature and are t\picall\ renewed 
annuall\. )or these contracts� gross premiums are recognised as 
revenue when due.

General insurance
7hese contracts provide )ire� Accident� Marine� /iabilit\ and (nerg\ 
insurance. )or these contracts� gross premiums are recognised as 
revenue when due.

2.7.1 Gross premium

3remium is recognised as income when offers from ceding 
companies are confirmed via credit notes. 7his comprises premiums 
generated on contracts entered into during the \ear as well as 
premiums and adMustments on contracts entered into in earlier \ears 
but confirmed in the current accounting \ear. Also� premium for the 
\ear includes estimates for pipeline or premium not \et advised b\ 
the ceding companies for contracts in-force at the end of the \ear. 
3ipeline premiums are estimated on the basis of latest available 
information and historic premium development patterns.

All written premiums are recorded on underwriting \ear basis and a 
provision is made for unearned income as 5eserve for 8ne[pired 
5isN for the portion of premium relating to the current underwriting 
\ear that have not e[pired b\ the end of the accounting \ear. 

(arned 3remium Income represents Gross 3remium less change in 
reserve for unearned 3remium during the \ear.

2.7.2 Retrocession

5etrocession premium represents the cost of outward reinsurance 
for the \ear. 7he retrocession programme is on underwriting \ear 
basis with appropriate reserves calculated using the same basis as 
reserve for une[pired risNs.

5etrocession recoveries represent that portion of claims paid�
pa\able on risNs ceded out in respect of which recoveries are 
received� receivable from the retrocessionaire. 5etrocession 
recoveries are disclosed separatel\ as an asset and charged against 
Gross Claims Incurred to arrive at 1et Claims Incurred.

5etrocession assets are assessed annuall\ for impairment and the 
carr\ing amount reduced with impairment through profit or loss.

2.7.3 Gross claims

Gross claims represent estimates of claims and claims handling 
e[penses accrued during the accounting \ear. Gross claims incurred 
are made up of gross claims and changes in 5eserve for outstanding 
claims �including I%15� during the \ear.

2.7.4 Reserve for unexpired risks

7he portion of the 1on-life gross written premium which has not 
\et been earned b\ the end of the accounting \ear is accounted for 
as 5eserve for 8ne[pired 5isNs.

7his is calculated using current underwriting \ear gross written 
premium for all classes of business assuming premium earning 
patterns based on historical pattern and business Nnowledge.

2.7.5 Reserve for outstanding claim

5eserve for outstanding claims represents provisions made to 
account for estimated cost of all claims and the related claims 
handling e[penses incurred but not paid at the reporting date. 7his 
includes the cost of claims incurred but not reported �I%15� using 
best available information.

A full provision is made for the estimated cost of all claims notified 
but not settled at the reporting date� using the best information 
available at that time. 3rovision is also made for the cost of claims 
incurred but not reported �I%15� until after the reporting date. 
Similarl\� provision is made for “unallocated claims e[penses” being 
the estimated administrative e[penses that will be incurred after the 
reporting date in settling all claims outstanding as at the date� 
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including I%15. Differences between the provision for outstanding 
claims at a reporting date and the subseTuent settlement are 
included in profit or loss of the following \ear.

%ased on the best available information� this reserve is calculated 
using standard actuarial methods and historical claims e[perience.

2.7.6 Liability adequacy test

/iabilities from insurance policies are tested b\ certified professional 
actuar\ at each reporting date for adeTuac\ of the insurance 
liabilities recognised in the financial statements. During this process� 
up-to-date estimates of current valuation parameters are e[amined� 
taNing into account all future cash flows associated with the 
insurance policies� to determine whether the recognised liabilities 
are adeTuate. If these tests determine that the carr\ing amount of 
the insurance liabilities is negative� taNing into account capitalised 
acTuisition costs and�or capitalised polic\ portfolio values� the entire 
shortfall is immediatel\ recognised in profit or loss.

2.7.7 Actuarial valuation of Life insurance contract liabilities

Actuarial valuation of life insurance contract liabilities is carried out 
annuall\ b\ certified professional actuar\ for the purpose of 
determining the surplus or deficit at the end of the \ear. All surpluses 
or deficits arising there from are charged to profit or loss.

2.7.8 Deferred acquisition costs

AcTuisition costs comprise all direct and indirect costs arising from 
the writing of reinsurance contracts. Deferred acTuisition costs 
�DAC� comprise commissions and other variable costs directl\ 
connected with acTuisition or renewal of reinsurance contracts.

Deferred acTuisition costs represent a proportion of commission 
and other acTuisition costs� which are incurred during a financial 
\ear and are deferred to the e[tent that the\ are recoverable out of 
future revenue margins. DAC is amortised over the premium 
pa\ment period in proportion to the premium revenue recognised. 

2.8 Underwriting expenses
8nderwriting e[penses comprises acTuisition� maintenance and 
management e[penses.

2.8.1 Acquisition expenses

AcTuisition e[penses are those costs incurred in obtaining and 
renewing insurance contracts. 7hese include commissions paid and 
polic\ e[penses.

2.8.2 Maintenance expenses

Maintenance e[penses are those costs incurred in servicing e[isting 
policies�contracts and these include broNerage fees and charges.

2.8.3 Management and administration expenses

Management and administration e[penses are e[penses other than 
claims� acTuisition and maintenance e[penses. 7hese include salaries 

and emoluments� other staff costs� depreciation and amortisation� 
professional fees� investment e[penses and other non-operating costs.

Management e[penses are those e[penses that relate to underwriting 
business which are apportioned and charged thereto. 7hese include 
salaries and emoluments of underwriting staff.

Administration e[penses are those e[penses that cannot be directl\ 
attributable to underwriting business and charged to the profit or 
loss in the accounting period in which the\ are incurred. 7hese 
include professional fees� investment e[pense� and other non-
operating costs� and depreciation and amortisation.

2.9 Investment income
Investment income comprises interest earned on short-term 
deposits� rental income� dividend and income earned on trading of 
securities. Investment income is accounted for on an accrual basis.

Interest income 

Interest income and e[pense for all interest-bearing financial 
instruments are recognised within msecurities discount and similar 
income’ and msecurities discount and similar e[pense’ in profit or loss 
using the effective interest method.

7he effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised 
cost of a financial asset or a financial liabilit\ and of allocating the 
interest income or interest e[pense over the relevant period. 7he 
effective interest rate is the rate that e[actl\ discounts estimated 
future cash pa\ments or receipts through the e[pected life of the 
financial instrument or� when appropriate� a shorter period to the 
net carr\ing amount of the financial asset or financial liabilit\. :hen 
calculating the effective interest rate� the Group estimates cash flows 
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument �for e[ample� 
prepa\ment options� but does not consider future credit losses. 
7he calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between 
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate� transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Dividend Income

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss in m2ther income’ when 
the entit\’s right to receive pa\ment is established.

2.10 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group 
are measured using the currenc\ of the primar\ economic 
environment in which the entit\ operates �mthe functional currenc\’�.

7he consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands. 
1aira is the Group’s presentation and also the parent compan\’s 
functional currenc\.

(b) Transactions and balances

)oreign currenc\ transactions are transactions denominated� or 
that reTuire settlement� in a foreign currenc\ and these are 
translated into the functional currenc\ spot rate prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions.

Monetar\ assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated at the functional currenc\ spot rate of e[change 
prevailing at the reporting date. )oreign e[change gains and losses 
resulting from the retranslation and settlement of these items are 
recognised in profit or loss.

1on-monetar\ items measured at historical cost denominated in a 
foreign currenc\ are translated with the e[change rate as at the date 
of initial recognition� non-monetar\ assets that are measured at fair 
value are translated using the e[change rate at the date that the fair 
value was determined. 7ranslation differences on non-monetar\ 
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. 7ranslation differences 
on non-monetar\ financial instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income are included in the fair value 
reserve in other comprehensive income. 

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eTuivalents are balances that are held for the primar\ 
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. +ence this 
includes cash in hand and cash eTuivalents that are readil\ convertible 
to Nnown amount of cash are subMect to insignificant risN of changes 
in value and whose original maturit\ is three months or less.

7his includes cash-on-hand� deposit held at call with banNs and 
other short-term highl\ liTuid investments which originall\ matures 
in three months or less.

2.12 Financial assets and liabilities
In accordance with IAS ��� all financial assets and liabilities r which 
include derivative financial instruments r have to be recognised in 
the statement of financial position and measured in accordance with 
their assigned categor\.

2.12.1 Financial assets

7he Group classifies financial assets into the following IAS �� 
categories� financial assets at fair value through profit or loss� loans 
and receivables� held-to-maturit\ investments and available-for-sale 
financial assets. Management determines the classification of its 
financial instruments at initial recognition and the classification 
depends on the purpose for which the investments were acTuired.

�a� 5ecognition and measurement
7he Group uses settlement date accounting for regular wa\ 
contracts when recording financial asset transactions.

)inancial assets are initiall\ recognised at fair value plus� in the case of 
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss� 
transaction costs that are directl\ attributable to their acTuisition. 
)inancial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initiall\ 
recognised at fair value� and transaction costs are e[pensed in profit 
or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss are subseTuentl\ carried at fair value. 
/oans and receivables and held-to-maturit\ financial assets are 
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains 
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the mfinancial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ categor\ are included in 
profit or loss in the period in which the\ arise. Dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised 
in profit or loss as part of other income when the Group’s right to 
receive pa\ments is established. Changes in the fair value of 
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

�b� )inancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
7his categor\ comprises two sub-categories� financial assets classified 
as held for trading� and financial assets designated b\ the Group as 
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

7he Group had no assets classified as held-for-trading at the end of 
the \ear.

7he Group designates certain financial assets upon initial recognition 
at fair value through profit or loss �fair value option�. 7his designation 
cannot subseTuentl\ be changed. According to IAS ��� the fair value 
option is onl\ applied when an\ of the following conditions are met�

 △ the application of the fair value option reduces or eliminates an 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise� or

 △ the financial assets are part of a portfolio of financial instruments 
which is risN managed and reported to senior management on 
a fair value basis� or

 △ the financial assets consists of debt host and an embedded 
derivatives that must be separated.

7he fair value option is applied to the e[ternall\ managed portfolios 
that are part of a portfolio. 7he performance of the managed 
fund is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with an 
investment strateg\ and information on this is provided to the 
Ne\ management personnel.

)inancial assets for which the fair value option is applied are 
recognised in the statement of financial position as m)inancial assets 
designated at fair value’. )air value changes relating to financial assets 
designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in 
m1et gains on financial instruments designated at fair value through 
profit or loss’.
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�c� /oans and receivables
/oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fi[ed 
or determinable pa\ments that are not Tuoted in an active marNet� 
other than� 

 △ those that the Group intends to sell immediatel\ or in the 
short-term� which are classified as held-for-trading� and those 
that the entit\ upon initial recognition designates as at fair value 
through profit or loss

 △ those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as 
available-for-sale� or

 △ those for which the holder ma\ not recover substantiall\ all of 
its initial investment� other than because of credit deterioration.

/oans and receivables are initiall\ recognised at fair value r which is 
the cash consideration to originate or purchase the loan including 
an\ transaction costs r and measured subseTuentl\ at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. /oans and receivables are 
reported in the statement of financial position as loans and receivables.

�d� +eld-to-maturit\ financial assets
+eld-to-maturit\ investments are non-derivative financial assets 
with fi[ed or determinable pa\ments and fi[ed maturities that the 
Group’s management has the positive intention and abilit\ to hold 
to maturit\� other than�

��� those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair 
value through profit or loss

��� those that the Group designates as available-for-sale� and
��� those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

7hese are initiall\ recognised at fair value including direct and 
incremental transaction costs and measured subseTuentl\ at 
amortised cost� using the effective interest method.

Interest on held-to-maturit\ investments is included in profit or 
loss and reported as mInterest and similar income’. In the case of an 
impairment� the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from 
the carr\ing value of the investment and recognised in profit or loss 
as mimpairment of financial assets’. +eld-to-maturit\ investments 
include sovereign� sub-national and corporate bonds.

�e� Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale �A)S� investments are financial assets that are 
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time� which ma\ be 
sold in response to needs for liTuidit\ or changes in interest rates� 
e[change rates or eTuit\ prices or that are not classified as loans and 
receivables� held-to-maturit\ investments or financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initiall\ recognised at fair value� 
which is the cash consideration including an\ transaction costs� and 
measured subseTuentl\ at fair value with gains and losses being 
recognised in other comprehensive income. If an available-for-sale 
financial asset is determined to be impaired� the cumulative gain or 
loss previousl\ recognised in the other comprehensive income is 
recognised in profit or loss. +owever� interest is calculated using the 
effective interest rate method� and foreign currenc\ gains and losses 
on monetar\ assets classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 
profit or loss. Dividends on available-for-sale eTuit\ instruments are 
recognised in profit or loss in mDividend income’ when the Group’s 
right to receive pa\ment is established. A)S financial assets includes 
debt and eTuit\ �Tuoted and unTuoted� instruments. See 1ote 
��.��c� for valuation methods and assumptions.

2.12.2 Financial liabilities

7he Group’s holding in financial liabilities does not include financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss �including financial 
liabilities held-for-trading and those that are designated at fair value�. 
2ther financial liabilities are subseTuentl\ measured at amortised 
cost. )inancial liabilities are derecognised when e[tinguished.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initiall\ at fair value minus 
directl\ attributable transaction costs.

7he Group’s financial liabilities include reinsurance creditors and 
other liabilities.

SubseTuent measurement
7he subseTuent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classifications as follows�

�a� )inancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
7his categor\ comprises two sub-categories� financial liabilities 
classified as held-for-trading� and financial liabilities designated b\ the 
Group as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial liabilit\ is classified as held-for-trading if it is acTuired or 
incurred principall\ for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in 
the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial 
instruments that are managed together and for which there is 
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taNing. 
Derivatives are also categorised as held-for-trading� unless 
designated as an effective hedging instrument.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial 
liabilities classified held-for-trading are included in profit or loss and 
are reported as m1et gains��losses� on financial instruments classified 
as held-for-trading’. Interest e[penses on financial liabilities held-for-
trading are included in m1et interest income’.

7he Group did not have an\ financial liabilities that meet the 
classification criteria at fair value through profit or loss and did not 
designate an\ financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.

�b� 2ther liabilities measured at amortised cost
)inancial liabilities that are not classified at fair value through profit or 
loss fall into this categor\ and are subseTuentl\ measured at 
amortised cost.

2.12.3 Determination of fair value

)or financial instruments traded in active marNets� the determination 
of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on 
Tuoted marNet prices or dealer price Tuotations. 7his includes listed 
eTuit\ securities and Tuoted debt instruments on maMor e[changes 
�for e[ample� 1S(� and broNer Tuotes from )inancial MarNets 
Dealers Association �)MDA�.

A financial instrument is regarded as Tuoted in an active marNet if 
Tuoted prices are readil\ and regularl\ available from an e[change� 
dealer� broNer� industr\ group� pricing service or regulator\ agenc\� 
and those prices represent actual and regularl\ occurring marNet 
transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the above criteria are not 
met� the marNet is regarded as being inactive. )or e[ample a marNet 
is inactive when there is a wide bid-offer spread or significant 
increase in the bid-offer spread or there are few recent transactions.

)or all other financial instruments� fair value is determined using 
valuation techniTues. In these techniTues� fair values are estimated 
from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments� 
using models to estimate the present value of e[pected future cash 
flows or other valuation techniTues� using inputs �for e[ample� 
1I%25 \ield curve� ); rates� volatilities and counterpart\ spreads� 
e[isting at the reporting date.

7he output of a model is alwa\s an estimate or appro[imation of a 
value that cannot be determined with certaint\� and valuation 
techniTues emplo\ed ma\ not full\ reflect all factors relevant to the 
positions the Group holds. 9aluations are therefore adMusted� where 
appropriate� to allow for additional factors including model risNs� 
liTuidit\ risN and counterpart\ credit risN. %ased on the established 
fair value model governance policies� and related controls and 
procedures applied� management believes that these valuation 
adMustments are necessar\ and appropriate to fairl\ state the values 
of financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of 
financial position. 3rice data and parameters used in the 
measurement procedures applied are generall\ reviewed carefull\ 
and adMusted� if necessar\ r particularl\ in view of the current 
marNet developments.

In cases where fair value of unTuoted eTuities cannot be 
determined reliabl\� net asset valuation techniTue or cost is applied.

2.12.4 Derecognition

)inancial assets
A financial asset �or� where applicable� a part of a financial asset or 
part of a Compan\ of similar financial assets� is derecognised when�

 △ 7he rights to receive cash flows from the asset have e[pired
 △ 7he Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pa\ the received cash 
flows in full without material dela\ to a third part\ under a 
mpass-through’ arrangement� and either�

�a�  the Group has transferred substantiall\ all the risNs and rewards 
of the asset� or

�b�  the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantiall\ all 
the risNs and rewards of the asset� but has transferred control of 
the asset.

:hen the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement� it 
evaluates if and to what e[tent it has retained the risNs and rewards 
of ownership. :hen it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantiall\ all of the risNs and rewards of the asset� nor transferred 
control of the asset� the asset is recognised to the e[tent of the 
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case� the Group 
also recognises an associated liabilit\. 7he transferred asset and the 
associated liabilit\ are measured on a basis that reflects the rights 
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that taNes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carr\ing 
amount of the asset and the ma[imum amount of consideration that 
the Group could be reTuired to repa\.

)inancial liabilities
A financial liabilit\ is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liabilit\ is discharged or cancelled or e[pires. :hen an e[isting 
financial liabilit\ is replaced b\ another from the same lender on 
substantiall\ different terms� or the terms of an e[isting liabilit\ are 
substantiall\ modified� such an e[change or modification is treated as 
a derecognition of the original liabilit\ and the recognition of a new 
liabilit\� and the difference in the respective carr\ing amounts is 
recognised in the profit or loss.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments
)inancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported 
in the statement of financial position when there is a legall\ 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the 
liabilit\ simultaneousl\.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets
7he Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an\ 
obMective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to 
be impaired if� and onl\ if� there is obMective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset �an incurred mloss event’� and that loss event 
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliabl\ estimated. 
(vidence of impairment ma\ include indications that the debtors or 
a group of debtors is e[periencing significant financial difficult\� default 
or delinTuenc\ in interest or principal pa\ments� the probabilit\ that 
the\ will enter banNruptc\ or other financial reorganisation and 
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease 
in the estimated future cash flows� such as changes in arrears or 
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

)or financial assets carried at amortised cost� the Group first 
assesses individuall\ whether obMective evidence of impairment 
e[ists individuall\ for financial assets that are individuall\ significant� 
or collectivel\ for financial assets that are not individuall\ significant. 
If  the Group determines that no obMective evidence of impairment 
e[ists for an individuall\ assessed financial asset� whether significant 
or not� it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with 
similar credit risN characteristics and collectivel\ assesses them for 
impairment. Assets that are individuall\ assessed for impairment and 
for which an impairment loss is� or continues to be� recognised are 
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is obMective evidence that an impairment loss on assets 
carried at amortised cost has been incurred� the amount of the loss 
is measured as the difference between the carr\ing amount of the 
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows �e[cluding 
future e[pected credit losses that have not been incurred� 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
If a loan has a variable interest rate� the discount rate for measuring 
an\ impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

7he carr\ing amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced 
carr\ing amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to 
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the 
impairment loss. 7he interest income is recorded in profit or loss. 
/oans together with the associated allowance are written off when 
there is no realistic prospect of future recover\ and all collateral has 
been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If� in a 
subseTuent \ear� the amount of the estimated impairment loss 

increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised� the previousl\ recognised impairment 
loss is increased or reduced b\ adMusting the allowance account. 
If a future write-off is later recovered� the recover\ is credited to 
the mfinance cost’ in profit or loss.

)or the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment� financial 
assets are grouped on the basis of the Group’s internal credit 
grading s\stem� which considers credit risN characteristics such as 
asset t\pe� industr\� geographical location� collateral t\pe� past-due 
status and other relevant factors.

)uture cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectivel\ 
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss 
e[perience for assets with credit risN characteristics similar to those 
in the group. +istorical loss e[perience is adMusted on the basis of 
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions 
on which the historical loss e[perience is based and to remove the 
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not e[ist currentl\. 
(stimates of changes in future cash flows reflect� and are directionall\ 
consistent with� changes in related observable data from \ear to 
\ear �such as changes in unemplo\ment rates� pa\ment status� or 
other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the group and 
their magnitude�. 7he methodolog\ and assumptions used for 
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularl\ to reduce an\ 
differences between loss estimates and actual loss e[perience.

Available-for-sale financial assets

)or available-for-sale financial assets� the Group assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is obMective evidence that an 
investment or a group of investments is impaired. 

In the case of eTuit\ investments classified as available-for-sale� 
obMective evidence would include a msignificant or prolonged’ decline 
in the fair value of the investment below its cost. mSignificant’ is to be 
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and mprolonged’ 
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original 
cost. :here there is evidence of impairment� the cumulative loss 
r measured as the difference between the acTuisition cost and the 
current fair value� less an\ impairment loss on that investment 
previousl\ recognised in the profit or loss r is removed from other 
comprehensive income and recognised in the profit or loss. 
Impairment losses on eTuit\ investments are not reversed through 
the profit or loss� increases in their fair value after impairment are 
recognised directl\ in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale� 
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets 
carried at amortised cost. +owever� the amount recorded for 
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference 

between the amortised cost and the current fair value� less an\ 
impairment loss on that investment previousl\ recognised in the 
profit or loss.

)uture interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced 
carr\ing amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest 
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring 
the impairment loss. 7he interest income is recorded in the profit 
or loss. If� in a subseTuent \ear� the fair value of a debt instrument 
increases and the increase can be obMectivel\ related to an event 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the profit or 
loss� the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carr\ing amount ma\ not be 
recoverable. Additionall\� assets that have an indefinite useful life are 
not subMect to amortisation and are tested annuall\ for impairment. 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount b\ which the 
asset’s carr\ing amount e[ceeds its recoverable amount. 7he 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to 
sell and value in use. )or the purposes of assessing impairment� assets 
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there have been separatel\ 
identifiable cash inflows �cash-generating units�. 7he impairment test 
also can be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost 
to sell or the value in use can be determined reliabl\. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the 
profit or loss in those e[pense categories consistent with the 
function of the impaired asset.

1on-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each 
reporting date for an\ indications that the loss has decreased or no 
longer e[ists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is reversed onl\ to the e[tent that the asset’s 
carr\ing amount does not e[ceed the carr\ing amount that would 
have been determined� net of depreciation or amortisation� if no 
impairment loss had been recognised. An impairment loss in respect 
of goodwill is not reversed.

2.16 Reinsurance receivables
5einsurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on 
initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. SubseTuent to initial recognition� reinsurance receivables 
are measured at amortised cost� using the effective interest rate 
method. 7he carr\ing value of reinsurance receivables is reviewed 

for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the 
carr\ing amount ma\ not be recoverable� with the impairment loss 
recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

5einsurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition 
criteria for financial assets� as described in 1ote �.��.�� have been met.

2.17 Investment properties
3ropert\ held for long-term rental \ields and�or capital appreciation 
that is not occupied b\ the Group is classified as investment 
propert\. Investment propert\ comprises of land and buildings.

Investment propert\ is measured initiall\ at its cost� including 
transaction costs. 7he cost of a purchased investment propert\ 
comprises its purchase price and an\ directl\ attributable 
e[penditure. Directl\ attributable e[penditure includes� for 
e[ample� professional fees for legal services� propert\ transfer ta[es 
and other transaction costs.

Investment propert\ is subseTuentl\ measured at fair value. )air 
value is based on active marNet prices� adMusted� if necessar\� for an\ 
difference in the nature� location or condition of the specific asset. 
If this information is not available� the Group uses alternative valuation 
methods such as discounted cash flow proMections or recent prices 
in less active marNets. 7hese valuations are reviewed annuall\ b\ an 
independent valuation e[pert. 

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment 
properties are included in the profit or loss as “1et fair value gains 
on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss” in 
the \ear in which the\ arise.

3ropert\ located on land that is held under an operating lease is 
classified as investment propert\ as long as it is held for long-term 
rental \ields. 7he initial cost of the propert\ is the lower of the fair 
value of the propert\ and the present value of the minimum lease 
pa\ments. 7he propert\ is carried at fair value after initial recognition.

If an investment propert\ becomes owner-occupied� it is reclassified 
as propert\� plant and eTuipment� and its fair value at the date of 
reclassification becomes its cost for subseTuent accounting purposes.

If an item of propert\� plant and eTuipment becomes an investment 
propert\ because its use has changed� an\ difference arising 
between the carr\ing amount and the fair value of this item at the 
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a 
revaluation of propert\� plant and eTuipment. +owever� if a fair 
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss� the gain is 
recognised in profit or loss. 8pon the disposal of such investment 
propert\� an\ surplus previousl\ recorded in eTuit\ is transferred to 
retained earnings� the transfer is not made through profit or loss.
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Investment properties are derecognised either when the\ have 
been disposed of� or when the investment propert\ is permanentl\ 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is e[pected 
from its disposal. An\ gains or losses on the retirement or disposal 
of an investment propert\ are recognised in the profit or loss in the 
\ear of retirement or disposal.

2.18 Property, plant and equipment
All propert\� plant and eTuipment is initiall\ recorded at cost. 7he\ 
are subseTuentl\ stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses with the e[ception of freehold land �included 
in as part of freehold propert\� which is not depreciated. +istorical 
cost includes e[penditure that is directl\ attributable to the 
acTuisition of the assets.

An asset is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits 
associated with the item flow to the Group and the cost item can 
be reliabl\ measured. 

All repairs and maintenance cost are charged to other operating 
e[penses in the financial period in which the\ occur.

Depreciation is calculated on assets using the straight-line method 
to write down the cost of propert\� plant and eTuipment to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives. 7he principal annual 
rates used for the purpose are�

%

Motor vehicles ��
)urniture and fittings ��
Computer eTuipment ��1â�
2ffice partitioning ��

An asset’s carr\ing amount is written down immediatel\ to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carr\ing amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount. 7he recoverable amount is the 
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
1o propert\� plant and eTuipment were impaired as at 
December ��st� ���� ������ nil�.

3ropert\� plant and eTuipment is derecognised on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are e[pected from its use. An\ gain or 
loss arising on derecognition of the asset �calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carr\ing amount of the 
assets� is recognised in other income in the profit or loss in the \ear 
the asset is derecognised.

2.19 Leases
7he determination of whether an arrangement is a lease� or 
contains a lease� is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
the inception date and reTuires an assessment of whether the 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset or assets and the arrangement conve\s a right to use the asset� 
even if that right is not e[plicitl\ specified in an arrangement.

Group as lessor

/eases in which the Group does not transfer substantiall\ all of the 
risNs and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an 
operating lease are added to the carr\ing amount of the leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental 
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
which the\ are earned.

2.20 Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise computer software licenses� which are 
with finite lives� are amortised over the useful economic life and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset ma\ be impaired. 7he amortisation period and 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life 
are reviewed at least at each financial \ear end. Changes in the 
e[pected useful life or the e[pected pattern of consumption of 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for 
b\ changing the amortisation period or method� as appropriate� and 
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 7he amortisation 
e[pense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the 
profit or loss in the e[pense categor\ consistent with the function 
of the intangible asset.

7he Group chooses to use the cost model for the measurement 
after recognition.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful lives 
as follows�

Computer Software � \ears

2.21 Reinsurance creditors
5einsurance pa\ables are recognised when due and measured on 
initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received given 
less directl\ attributable transaction costs. SubseTuent to initial 
recognition� the\ are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method.

5einsurance pa\ables are derecognised when the obligation under 
the liabilit\ is settled� cancelled or e[pired.

2.22 Income tax
(a) Current income tax

Income ta[ pa\able��receivable� is calculated on the basis of the 
applicable ta[ law in the respective Murisdiction and is recognised 
as an e[pense��income� for the period e[cept to the e[tent that 
current ta[ related to items that are charged or credited in other 
comprehensive income or directl\ to eTuit\. In these circumstances� 

current ta[ is charged or credited to other comprehensive income 
or to eTuit\. 7he ta[ rates and ta[ laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantivel\ enacted� at the 
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and 
generates ta[able income.

:here the Group has ta[ losses that can be relieved against a ta[ 
liabilit\ for a previous \ear� it recognises those losses as an asset� 
because the ta[ relief is recoverable b\ refund of ta[ previousl\ paid. 
7his asset is offset against an e[isting current ta[ balance.

:here ta[ losses can be relieved onl\ b\ carr\-forward against 
ta[able profits of future periods� a deductible temporar\ difference 
arises. 7hose losses carried forward are set off against deferred ta[ 
liabilities carried in the statement of financial position.

7he Group does not offset income ta[ liabilities and current income 
ta[ assets.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income ta[ is provided in full� using the liabilit\ method� on 
temporar\ differences arising between the ta[ bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carr\ing amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred income ta[ is determined using ta[ rates �and laws� that 
have been enacted or substantiall\ enacted b\ the reporting date 
and are e[pected to appl\ when the related deferred income ta[ 
asset is realised or the deferred income ta[ liabilit\ is settled.

7he principal temporar\ differences arise from depreciation of 
propert\� plant and eTuipment� revaluation of certain financial assets 
and liabilities� provisions for pensions and other post-retirement 
benefits and carr\-forwards and� in relation to acTuisitions� on the 
difference between the fair values of the net assets acTuired and 
their ta[ base. +owever� the deferred income ta[ is not accounted 
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabilit\ in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting nor ta[able profit or loss.

7he ta[ effects of carr\-forwards of unused losses� unused ta[ 
credits and other deferred ta[ assets are recognised when it is 
probable that future ta[able profit will be available against which 
these losses and other temporar\ differences can be utilised.

7he amount of deferred ta[ provided is based on the e[pected 
manner of realisation or settlement of the carr\ing amount of the 
asset or liabilit\ and is not discounted. Deferred ta[ assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the e[tent that 
it is no longer probable that the related ta[ benefit will be realised.

Deferred income ta[ is provided on temporar\ differences arising 
from investments in subsidiaries and associates� e[cept where the 
timing of the reversal of the temporar\ difference is controlled b\ 

the Group and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.

Deferred ta[ related to fair value re-measurement of eTuit\ 
instruments� which are recognised in other comprehensive income� 
is also recognised in other comprehensive income and subseTuentl\ 
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income together with the deferred gain or loss.

2.23 Employment benefits
Defined contributory scheme

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group 
pa\s fi[ed contributions into a separate entit\. 7he Group has no 
legal or constructive obligations to pa\ further contributions if the 
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pa\ all emplo\ees the benefits 
relating to emplo\ee service in the current and prior periods.

In line with the 3ension 5eform Act ����� the Group operates 
a defined contribution scheme� emplo\ees are entitled to Moin the 
scheme on confirmation of their emplo\ment. 7he emplo\ee 
contributes � percent while the emplo\er contributes ��  percent of 
the emplo\ee’s total emoluments �basic� housing and transport 
allowances�. 7he Group’s contribution each \ear is charged against 
income and is included in staff cost. 7he Group has no further 
pa\ment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 7he 
contributions are recognised as emplo\ee benefit e[penses when 
the\ are due.

Defined benefit staff gratuity scheme

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of 
pension benefit that an emplo\ee will receive on retirement� usuall\ 
dependent on one or more factors� such as age� \ears of service 
and compensation.

7he liabilit\ recognised in the statement of financial position in 
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value 
of plan assets� together with adMustments for unrecognised actuarial 
gains or losses and past service costs. 7he defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annuall\ b\ independent actuaries using the proMected 
unit credit method.

5e-measurements arising from actuarial gains and losses� are recognised 
immediatel\ in the statement of financial position with a corresponding 
debit or credit to retained earnings through 2CI in periods in which 
the\ occur. 5e-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss 
in subseTuent periods.

7he Group has a Gratuit\ Scheme for its emplo\ees managed b\ 
7rustees. 7he scheme is non-contributor\ and emplo\ees Tualif\ for 
benefits after five \ears’ service. 3rovision for gratuit\ is made when 
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Summar\ of significant accounting policies 
continued

it is determined that there is a shortfall in the assets funding liabilities.

2.24 Provisions
3rovisions are liabilities that are uncertain in amount and timing. 
3rovisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is more liNel\ 
than not that an outflow of resources will be reTuired to settle the 
obligation and the amount can be reliabl\ estimated. :here the 
Group e[pects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed� the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset� but onl\ when 
the reimbursement is virtuall\ certain. 7he e[pense relating to 
an\ provision is presented in the profit or loss net of an\ 
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of mone\ is material� 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-ta[ rate that reflects� 
where appropriate� the risNs specific to the liabilit\. :here 
discounting is used� the increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

:here there is a number of similar obligations� the liNelihood that an 
outflow will be reTuired in settlement is determined b\ considering 
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if 
the liNelihood of an outflow with respect to an\ one item is included 
in the same class of obligations.

2.25 Equity
Ordinary share capital

7he Compan\ has issued ordinar\ shares that are classified as eTuit\ 
instruments. Incremental e[ternal costs that are directl\ attributable 
to the issue of these shares are recognised in eTuit\� net of ta[.

Dividends on ordinary share capital

3roposed dividends are recognised as a liabilit\ in the period in 
which the\ are declared and approved b\ the Compan\’s 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Dividends for the \ear that are declared after the reporting date are 
dealt with as event after reporting date.

Dividends proposed but not \et declared are disclosed in the 
financial statements in accordance with the reTuirements of the 

Companies and Allied Matters Act.

2.26 Contingency reserves
Contingenc\ reserves are done in accordance with the provisions of 
the Insurance Act� CA3 II� /)1 �����

�a� for general business the contingenc\ reserve is credited with 
the higher of an amount not less than � percent of the total 
premium or �� percent of the net profits until the reserves 
reaches the greater of the minimum paid up capital or 
�� percent of net premium

�b� for life business the reserve is credited with the higher of an 
amount eTual to � percent of the gross premium or �� 
percent of the profits.

2.27 Comparatives
([cept when a standard or an interpretation permits or reTuires 
otherwise� all amounts are reported or disclosed with comparative 
information. 7his� however� is applicable to the Compan\ but not 
the Group as this is the first \ear in which consolidated financial 
statements is prepared for it �the Group�.

2.28 Group information
Information about subsidiar\

7he consolidated financial statements of the Group include�

Name
Principal  
activities

Country of  
incorporation

% equity interest

2014 2013

Continental 
5einsurance  
/imited� 1airobi

/ife and non-life  
reinsurance  
business  .en\a 70 100

Continental 
5einsurance  
/imited� Gaborone

/ife and non-life  
reinsurance  
business %otswana 60 nil

2.29 Segment reporting
2perating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maNer. 
7he chief operating decision-maNer is the person or group that 
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the 
operating segments of an entit\. 7he Group has determined the 
Group’s e[ecutive committee as its chief operating decision maNer.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income for the \ear ended  
December ��st� ����

Notes

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Insurance premium revenue �.�  ����������  ����������  ����������  ���������� 
Insurance premium ceded to retrocessionaires �.�  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
Net insurance premium revenue  14,194,507  13,350,903  11,424,922  12,257,723 
Insurance Benefits
Insurance claims and loss adMustment e[penses �.�  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Insurance claims and loss adMustment e[penses recoverable from retrocessionaire �.�  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Net insurance benefits and claims  6,880,167  6,262,045  5,528,409  5,808,566 
8nderwriting e[penses �.�  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Insurance benefits and underwriting expenses  12,827,442  11,673,081  10,466,674  10,606,917 
Underwriting profit  1,367,065  1,677,822  958,248  1,650,806 
Interest income �  �������  ���������  �������  ������� 
1et fair value gains��loss� on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 4  ������  ������  �������  ������ 
)air value gains on investment properties 4  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Other income 5  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
)oreign e[change �loss��gain  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
Administrative e[penses �.�  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Impairment of financial assets �.�  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Profit before income tax  1,587,969  2,233,394  1,279,994  2,001,410 
Income ta[ e[pense 8  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Profit for the year  855,644  1,753,400  661,523  1,586,457 
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
5emeasurement gains on available for sale financial assets 7  ������  �������  ������  ������� 
5eclassification adMustments to gains on available for sale financial assets included in  

profit or loss 7  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������
([change difference on translation of foreign operation  ��������  �������� r r
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial �loss��gain on defined benefit plans ��.�  ��������  �����  ��������  ����� 
Income ta[ relating to component of other comprehensive income �.�  ������  �������  ������  �������
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year net of tax  ���������  �������  ��������  ������� 
Total comprehensive income for the year  746,592  2,087,373  620,326  1,949,215 
Profit attributable to:
(Tuit\ holders of the parent  �������  ��������� ������� ���������
1on-controlling interests  ������ r r r

 855,644 1,753,400 661,523 1,586,457
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
(Tuit\ holders of the parent  ������� ��������� ������� ���������
1on-controlling interests ������ r r r

746,592 2,087,373 620,326 1,949,215
(arnings per share�

%asic �Nobo� 10 8 17 6 15
Diluted �Nobo� 10 8 17 6 15

See accompan\ing summar\ of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements which form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position  
as at December ��st� ����

Notes

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents 11 ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Financial assets

)inancial asset designated as fair value through profit or loss �� ���������  �������  �������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables �� �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Available-for-sale investments ��.� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
+eld to maturit\ investments ��.� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

5einsurance receivables 15 ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Retrocession assets 16 �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs 17 ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Other assets 18 �������  �������  ���������  ������� 
Investment in subsidiaries 19 r r  ���������  ������� 
Investment properties �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Intangible assets �� �����  �����  �����  ����� 
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment �� �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Statutor\ deposits �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Total assets 28,207,644  26,125,410  24,884,501  25,042,296 
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities �� ����������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance creditors �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
2ther liabilities �� �������  �������  �������  ������� 
5etirement benefit obligations �� �������  ������  �������  ������ 
Current income ta[ pa\able 8 �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Deferred ta[ liabilities 9 ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Total liabilities 13,431,264  11,839,917  11,257,842  10,894,961 
Equity
Share capital �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Share premium �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Contingenc\ reserve �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5etained earnings �� ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Available-for-sale reserve ��.� �������  �������  �������  ������� 
)oreign currenc\ translation reserve ��.� ���������  �������� r r
Equity attributable to holders of the parent 13,797,368  14,285,493  13,626,659  14,147,335 
1on-controlling interest �� ������� r r r
Total equity 14,776,380 14,285,493 13,626,659 14,147,335
Total liabilities and equity 28,207,644  26,125,410  24,884,501  25,042,296 

Mr. David S. Sobanjo
Director 
)5C������CII1������������

Dr. Olufemi Oyetunji
Managing Director�C(2
)5C������1SA������������

Mr. Musa Kolo
Chief )inancial 2fficer
)5C������ICA1������������

See accompan\ing summar\ of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements which form an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated statement of changes in eTuit\  
for the \ear ended December ��st� ����

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Group Notes

Share capital 
(Note 28) 

N’000

Share  
premium  

(Note 29) 
N’000

Contingency 
reserve 

(Note 30) 
N’000

Retained 
earnings  

(Note 31) 
N’000

Available-for-
sale reserve 
(Note 32.1) 

N’000

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve  

(Note 32.2) 
N’000

Non  
controlling 

interest
Total equity 

N’000

As at January 1st, 2014  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,420,096 2,519,174  276,794  (32,394) r  14,285,493 
At acTuisition r r r r r r  �������  ������� 
Change in shareholding r r r �������� r r  ������ r
3rofit for the \ear r r r ������� r r  ������  ������� 
2ther comprehensive income r r r ��������  ������  ��������  ���  ���������
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,420,096 3,220,470  297,704  (101,723)  979,012  15,917,382 
7ransfer of contingenc\ reserve r r  ������� ��������� r r r r
Dividends declared ��.� r r r ����������� r r r  �����������
At December 31st, 2014  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,785,131 1,714,433  297,704  (101,723)  979,012  14,776,380 
As at January 1st, 2013  5,186,372  3,915,451  1,873,319 2,344,587  (84,362) r r  13,235,367 
3rofit for the \ear r r r ��������� r r r  ��������� 
2ther comprehensive income r r r �����  �������  �������� r  ������� 
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  5,186,372  3,915,451  1,873,319 4,103,198  276,794  (32,394) r  15,322,740 
7ransfer of contingenc\ reserve r r  ������� ��������� r r r r
Dividends declared ��.� r r r ����������� r r r  �����������
At December 31st, 2013  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,420,096 2,519,174  276,794  (32,394) r  14,285,493 

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Company Notes

Share capital 
(Note 28) 

N’000

Share  
premium  

(Note 29) 
N’000

Contingency 
reserve 

(Note 30) 
N’000

Retained 
earnings  

(Note 31) 
N’000

Available-for-
sale reserve 

(Note 33) 
N’000

Total equity 
N’000

As at January 1st, 2014  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,349,131 2,423,196  273,185  14,147,335 
3rofit for the \ear r r r ������� r  ������� 
2ther comprehensive income r r r ��������  ������  ��������
7otal comprehensive income  ���������  ���������  ��������� ���������  �������  ���������� 
7ransfer of contingenc\ reserve r r  ������� ��������� r r
Dividends declared ��.� r r r ����������� r  �����������
At December 31st, 2014  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,705,666 1,526,328  292,842  13,626,659 
As at January 1st, 2013  5,186,372  3,915,451  1,873,319 2,344,587  (84,362)  13,235,367 
3rofit for the \ear r r r ��������� r  ��������� 
2ther comprehensive income r r r �����  �������  ������� 
Total comprehensive income  5,186,372  3,915,451  1,873,319 3,936,255  273,185  15,184,582 
7ransfer of contingenc\ reserve r r  ������� ��������� r r
Dividends declared �� .� r r r ����������� r  �����������
At December 31st, 2013  5,186,372  3,915,451  2,349,131 2,423,196  273,185  14,147,335 

See accompan\ing summar\ of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements which form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows  
for the \ear ended December ��st� ����

Notes

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Cash flows from operating activities
3remium received from polic\ holders  ����������  ����������  ����������  ���������� 
5etrocession receipts in respect of claims  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
AcTuisition costs paid  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
5etrocession premium paid  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
Cash paid to and on behalf of emplo\ees  �����������  ���������  �����������  ���������
2ther operating cash receipts�pa\ments  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
Claims paid  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
Income ta[es paid 8  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 34  (252,962)  466,393  (688,954)  290,723 
Cash flows from investing activities
3urchase of propert\� plant and eTuipment ��   ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
3urchase of investment properties  �����������  ����������� r
3urchase of intangible assets �� r  ������� r  �������
3roceeds from disposal of propert\� plant and eTuipment  �����  �����  �����  ����� 
3urchase of investment securities  �����������  ���������  ���������  ���������
3roceeds on redemption �sales of investments  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
Interest received  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Dividend received  �������  ������  �������  ������ 
Investment in subsidiar\ r r  ��������� r
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities  650,359  44,989  (357,260)  111,944 
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to eTuit\ holders parent ��.�  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
Net cash used in financing activities  (1,141,002)  (1,021,857)  (1,141,002)  (1,021,857)
1et decrease in cash and cash eTuivalents  ���������  ���������  �����������  ���������
Cash and cash eTuivalents at beginning of \ear  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
(ffect of e[change rate changes on cash and cash eTuivalents  �������  �������  �������  �������
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 35  5,878,360  6,630,640  4,337,192  6,526,753 

See accompan\ing summar\ of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements which form an integral part of these financial statements.

1otes to the consolidated 
financial statements

1. Revenue

1.1 Insurance premium revenue
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

3remium revenue arising from insurance contracts issued
/ife insurance contracts

Gross 3remium  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Change in life insurance contract liabilities �1ote ��.��  ��������  �����  ��������  ������ 

1on life insurance contracts
Gross 3remium  ����������  ����������  ����������  ���������� 
Change in unearned premium provision  ���������  ���������  ��������  ���������

Total Premium revenue arising from insurance contracts issued  16,153,740  15,036,612  13,069,529  13,848,129 

1.2 Insurance premium ceded to retrocessionaires
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

3remium revenue ceded to retrocessionaire on insurance contracts issued
/ife insurance contracts  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
1on life insurance contracts  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
7otal 3remium revenue ceded to retrocessionaire on insurance contracts issued  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Net insurance premium revenue  14,194,507  13,350,903  11,424,922  12,257,723 

�. InsXrance EeneIits and XnderZriting e[penses

2.1 Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

/ife insurance contracts  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
1on life insurance contracts  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
7otal cost of polic\holder benefits  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Insurance claims and loss adMustment e[penses recoverable from retrocessionaire  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Net insurance benefits and claims  6,880,167  6,262,045  5,528,409  5,808,566 

2.2 Underwriting expenses
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Amortisation of deferred e[penses �1ote ���  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Costs incurred for the maintenance of insurance contracts  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Management e[penses �See 1ote �.��  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
7otal underwriting e[penses  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Total insurance benefits and underwriting expenses  12,827,442  11,673,081  10,466,674  10,606,917 

3. Interest income
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Cash and banN balances interest income  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
+eld-to-maturit\ and loans and receivables interest income  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Statutor\ deposits interest income  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Interest income  940,442  1,001,601  838,546  762,620 
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4. Net fair value gains/(loss) on assets at fair value through profit or loss
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

1et fair value gains on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss  ������  ������  �������  ������ 
)air value gains on investment properties  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Total  131,996  109,703  76,092  108,456 

5. Other (loss)/income
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Available-for-sale:
Dividends  �������  ������  �������  ������ 
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities  ������  ������  ������  ������ 

5ental income on investment properties �1ote ���  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Other income  ������  ������  ������  ������ 

 353,462  291,930  351,913  291,339 

�. 2perating e[penses

6.1 Management and administrative expenses
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Management e[penses �1ote �.��  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Administrative e[penses  �������  �������  �������  ������� 

 2,350,317  1,913,315  1,938,393  1,724,021 
Management and administrative e[penses comprises the following�
Depreciation and amortisation �1ote �� and ���  ������  �������  ������  ������ 
Auditor
s remuneration  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
(mplo\ee benefits e[penses �1ote �.�.��  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
/oss on disposal of propert\� plant and eTuipment  �����  ������  �����  ������ 
2ther operating e[penses  ���������   �������  ���������  ������� 
Total management and administrative expenses  2,350,317  1,913,315  1,938,393  1,724,021 

6.1.1 Employee benefit expense
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

:ages and salaries �local�  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
:ages and salaries �other regions�  �������  ������  ������� r
3ension�

Defined %enefit Staff Gratuit\ 3lan  ������  �������  ������  ������� 
Defined Contributor\ 3lan  ������  ������  ������  ������ 

 942,589  827,487  836,879  769,401 

7he amount of (mplo\er’s pension contribution included amount of N���������� ������ N���������� paid on group life scheme in 
compliance with the ���� 3encom Act. Also included in pensions are amounts for the regional offices� Cameroun and 1airobi offices. 
7he applicable law is different from that of 1igeria 3encom Act.

6.2 Impairment of financial assets
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

5einsurance receivables �reversals��charge �1ote ��.��  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables �1ote ��.��  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Available for sale financial assets  ������ r  ������ r
Other assets (Note 18)  ������� r  ������� r

 241,114  673,303  203,324  673,303 

�. 1et gain on aYailaEle Ior sale Iinancial assets
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Net gain/(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets
(Tuit\ instruments  ������  �������  ������  ������� 
Debt Instruments  �����  ��������  �����  ��������

5emeasurement gains on available-for-sale financial assets  ������  �������  ������  ������� 
5eclassification adMustments to gains included in profit or loss  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������
Total net remeasurement gains on available for sale financial assets  21,131  361,156  19,657  357,547 

�. 7a[ation
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Per consolidated statement of profit or loss:
Income ta[ based on profit for the \ear  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
(ducation ta[  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
%acN dut\ charge on prior \ears
  ������� r  ������� r

 691,222  436,796  589,297  378,900 
Deferred ta[ e[pense �1ote �.��  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Income tax expense  732,325  479,994  618,471  414,953 

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Per consolidated statement of financial position:
At -anuar\ �st  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Charged to profit or loss  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
3a\ments during the \ear  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������

 458,813  391,381  391,277  388,875 

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Reconciliation of tax charge
Profit before income tax  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
7a[ at 1igerian
s statutor\ income ta[ rate of ���  �������  �������  �������  ������� 

1on-deductible e[penses  �������  ������  �������  ������ 
7a[ e[empt income  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
%acN dut\ charge on prior \ears  ������� r  ������� r
(ducation ta[ lev\  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
7a[ rate differential on fair value gains  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������
At effective income tax rate of Group 46% (2013:21%) and Company 48% (2013:21%)  732,325  479,994  618,471  414,953 
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�. DeIerred ta[ation
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities are attributable to the following items:
Deferred tax liabilities
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment  ������  ������  ������  ����� 
Investment properties  ������  ������  ������  ������ 

 88,166  62,139  69,092  54,994 
Deferred ta[ assets
(mplo\ee benefits  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������

 (24,053)  (13,048)  (24,053)  (13,048)
Net  64,113  49,091  45,039  41,946 

9.1 Movements in temporary differences during the year:
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

As at -anuar\ �st  ������  �����  ������  ����� 
Recognised in profit or loss on:

3ropert\� plant and eTuipment  ������  �����  �����  �������
Investment properties  �����  �����  �����  ����� 
(mplo\ee benefits  ������  ������  ������  ������ 

7otal recognised in profit or loss  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Total recognised in other comprehensive income on:

(mplo\ee benefits  ��������  �����  ��������  ����� 
At December 31st  64,113  49,091  45,039  41,946 


%acN dut\ charge on prior \ears
7his relates to additional ta[ liabilit\ which arose as a result of ta[ audit e[ercise carried out b\ the )ederal Inland 5evenue Service �)I5S� on 
previous \ears financials covering ���� to ����.

10. Earnings per share (EPS)
%asic (3S amounts are calculated b\ dividing the profit for the \ear attributable to ordinar\ share holders b\ the weighted average number of 
ordinar\ shares outstanding during the \ear. 7he following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share computations�

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

1et profit attributable to ordinar\ shareholders �N’����  �������  ���������  �������  ��������� 
:eighted average number of shares for the \ear �N’����  ����������  ����������  ����������  ���������� 
%asis and diluted earnings per ordinar\ share �Nobo�  8  17  6  15 

7here have been no other transactions involving ordinar\ shares or potential ordinar\ shares between the reporting date and the date of 
completion of these consolidated financial statements.

11. Cash and cash equivalents
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Cash in hand  110  ���  110  ��� 
%alances held with local banNs�

Current account  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Domiciliar\ account  �����  �������  �����  ������� 

%alances held with foreign banNs  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
3lacements with banNs and other financial institutions  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

 4,844,323  5,673,748  3,303,155  5,605,227 

3lacements with banNs and other financial institutions are made for var\ing periods of between one da\ and three months� depending on the 
immediate cash reTuirements of the Compan\. All placements are subMect to average variable interest rate obtainable in the marNet.

7he carr\ing amounts disclosed above reasonabl\ appro[imate fair value at the reporting date.

7he cash and cash eTuivalents position for cash flow purposes is as disclosed in 1ote ��.

12. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Managed Funds
([ternal 3ortfolio Management  ���������  �������  �������  ������� 

 1,227,512  170,285  171,524  170,285 

7he e[ternal portfolio management involves funds held and managed b\ fund and stocN managers on behalf of the Group as a trading 
portfolio. 7he underl\ing instruments include eTuities.

1�. /oans and other receiYaEles
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Staff loans and advances  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
2ther advances  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Impairment on other receivables �1ote ��.��  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Total loans and other receivables  234,910  379,174  207,802  370,833 

13.1 Reconciliation of impairment on loans and other receivables:
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

At -anuar\ �st  �������  ������  �������  ������ 
:ritten off during the \ear r  �������� r  ��������
Charge for the \ear� other advances �1ote �.��  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
At December 31st  375,491  150,113  375,491  150,113 



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 75Continental Reinsurance Plc74

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

14. Investment securities
Group 

December 31st,  
2014

Group 
December 31st,  

2013

Company 
December 31st,  

2014

Company 
December 31st,  

2013

Analysis of investment securities
(Tuit\  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Debt  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

 7,284,099  8,089,804  6,729,369  6,946,441 

Analysis by class

14.1 Available-for-sale:

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

(Tuit\ instruments  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Debt instruments  �������  �������  �������  ������� 

Total available-for-sale  2,406,037  2,259,534  2,356,882  2,213,919 

14.2 Held-to-maturity

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Debt instruments  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Total Investment securities  7,284,099  8,089,804  6,729,369  6,946,441 

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Equity Instruments
6ecurities at $vailable�for�sale r )air value
4uoted  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
8nTuoted  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
Total equity instruments  2,133,706  1,992,832  2,110,689  1,971,443 

7hese eTuit\ instruments are measured at fair value and classified as available-for-sale.

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Debt Instruments
6ecurities at $vailable�for�sale r )air value
Government bonds  �������  �������  �������  ������� 

 272,331  266,702  246,193  242,476 
6ecurities at Keld�to�maturity r amortised cost
Listed  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
8nlisted  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

 4,878,062  5,830,270  4,372,487  4,732,522 
Total debt instruments  5,150,393  6,096,972  4,618,680  4,974,998 

1one of these investment securities have been pledged to third part\ as collateral.

1�. 5einsXrance receiYaEles
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Due from ceding companies  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Due from ceding companies �3ipeline�  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
3remium reserves retained b\ ceding companies  �������  �������  �������  ������� 

 9,011,389  9,633,885  7,504,465  8,955,496 
Impairment on reinsurance receivables �1ote ��.� �  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������

 6,743,336  6,292,066  5,274,202  5,613,677 

15.1 Reconciliation of impairment on reinsurance receivables

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At -anuar\ �st  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
:ritten off during the \ear  ��������� r  ��������� r
�Credit��charge for the \ear �1ote �.��  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
At December 31st  2,268,053  3,341,819  2,230,263  3,341,819 

16. Retrocession assets
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

5etrocessionaires’ share of claims recoverable  �������  ������  ������  ������ 
5etrocessionaires’ share of 5eserve for 2utstanding Claims  ������  �������  ������  ������ 
5etrocessionaires
 share of life insurance contract liabilities  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Total retrocession assets (Note 24)  477,628  358,106  335,935  279,247 

At December ��st� ����� the Compan\ conducted an impairment review of the reinsurance assets but no impairment loss resulted from this 
e[ercise. 7he carr\ing amounts disclosed above appro[imate fair value at the reporting date.

17. Deferred acquisition costs
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At -anuar\ �st  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
([penses deferred  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Amortisation �1ote �.��  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
At December 31st  1,759,685  1,428,293  1,383,416  1,213,441 
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18. Other assets
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

3repa\ments  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Deposit for propert\ �1ote ��.��  ������� r  ������� r
Due from stocNbroNers �1ote ��.��  ������  �������  ������  ������� 
Intercompan\ balances r r  �������  ������� 
:ithholding ta[ receivable  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
2thers �1ote ��.��  �������  �������  �������  ������� 

 1,167,056  437,989  1,400,229  618,223 
Impairment on others  ���������  ��������  ���������  ��������

 981,264  365,839  1,214,437  546,073 
Reconciliation of impairment on others
At -anuar\ �st  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Charge for the \ear �1ote �.��  ������� r  ������� r
At December 31st  185,792  72,150  185,792  72,150 

18.1
7his relates to deposit made for propert\ in Douala which is \et to be concluded upon at the reporting date.

18.2
7his relates to amount due as proceeds on disposal�redemption of financial assets which remained outstanding at \ear end.

18.3
Included in this account are costs incurred for the purpose of increase in share capital of the Compan\ which management believes 
are recoverable.

1�. InYestment in sXEsidiaries
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Continental 5einsurance /imited� 1airobi� .en\a  ���������  ������� 
Continental 5einsurance /imited� Gaborone� %otswana  ������� r

 1,722,633  987,405 
Movement in this account is as shown below:
2pening  ������� r
Additional investment in Continental 5einsurance /imited� .en\a  ������  ������� 
Investment in Continental 5einsurance /imited� %otswana  ������� r
Closing  1,722,633  987,405 

20. Investment properties
Group 

December 31st,  
2014

Group 
December 31st,  

2013

Company 
December 31st,  

2014

Company 
December 31st,  

2013

2pening  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Additions �acTuisition�  ���������  ������  ���������  ������ 
)air value adMustments  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Closing  2,926,956  1,746,800  2,926,956  1,746,800 

Investment properties are stated at fair value� which has been determined based on valuations performed b\ )ola 2\eNan 	 Associates� 
a professional firm of (state Surve\ors and 9aluers who are accredited independent valuers� as at December ��st� ���� and December ��st� 
����. 7hese valuers are specialists in valuing these t\pes of investment properties. 7he fair value of the properties has not been determined 
on transactions observable in the marNet because of the nature of the propert\ and the lacN of comparable data. Instead� a valuation model� 
based on discounted cash flows� in accordance with that recommended b\ the International 9aluation Standards Committee has been 
applied. 9aluations are performed on an annual basis and the fair value gains and losses are recorded within the profit or loss.

7he Compan\ enters into operating leases for all of its investment properties. 7he rental income arising during the \ear amounted to 
N����������.�� �\ear ended December ��st� ����� N����������.��� which is included in other income. Direct operating e[penses arising in 
respect of such properties during the \ear are included in administrative e[penses.

7here are no restrictions on the realisabilit\ of investment propert\ or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal. 7he Compan\ 
has no contractual obligations to purchase� construct or develop investment propert\ or for repairs or enhancement.

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

5ental Income derived from investment properties  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Direct operating e[penses �including repairs 	 maintenance� generating income  �������  ��������  �������  ��������
Profit arising from investment properties carried at fair value  79,037  44,276  79,037  44,276 

7he fair value disclosure on investment properties is as follows�

Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation r December ��st, �0��

Quoted prices in 
active market 

Level 1 
N’000

Significant 
observable  

inputs 
Level 2 

N’000

Significant 
unobservable  

inputs 
Level 3 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Investment properties r r  2,926,956  2,926,956 

During the reporting period ending December ��st� ����� there were no transfers between level � and level � and in and out of level �.

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties
Winged Duplexes
9aluation techniTue Significant unobservable inputs 5ange �weighted average�
Income capitalisation using DC) Anal\sis (stimated rental per wing per annum N�.��m to N��.��m �N��.��m�

Average annual growth ��
Average annual probable vacanc\ rate �.��
Discount rate �eTuated \ield� �.��-�.�� ���.����

Three bedroom flats
9aluation techniTue Significant unobservable inputs 5ange �weighted average�
Income capitalisation using DC) Anal\sis (stimated rental per wing per annum N�.��m to N�.�m �N�.��m�

Average annual growth ��-�.�� ��.����
Average annual probable vacanc\ rate �.��
Discount rate �eTuated \ield� �.��-�.��� ��.����
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20. Investment Properties continued
8nder the DC) method� fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life 
including an e[it or terminal value. 7his method involves the proMection of a series of cash flows on a real propert\ interest. 7o this proMected 
cash flow series� a marNet-derived discount rate is applied to establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. 
7he e[it \ield is normall\ separatel\ determined and differs from the discount rate.

7he duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined b\ events such as rent reviews� lease renewal 
and related re-letting� redevelopment� or refurbishment. 7he appropriate duration is t\picall\ driven b\ marNet behaviour that is a characteristic 
of the class of real propert\. 3eriodic cash flow is t\picall\ estimated as gross income less vacanc\� non-recoverable e[penses� collection 
losses� lease incentives� maintenance cost� agent and commission costs and other operating and management e[penses. 7he series of 
periodic net operating income� along with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the proMection period� is then discounted.

�1. IntangiEle assets r *roXp and &ompany
Computer 

software 
N’000

Total 
N’000

Cost:
At -anuar\ �st� ����  ������  ������ 
Cost capitalised  �����  ����� 
At December 31st, 2013  59,063  59,063 
Cost capitalised r r
At December 31st, 2014  59,063  59,063 

Computer 
software 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At -anuar\ �st� ����  ������  ������ 
Amortisation  ������  ������ 
At December 31st, 2013  49,396  49,396 
Amortisation  �����  ����� 
At December 31st, 2014  57,849  57,849 

Computer 
software 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Carrying amount:
At December 31st, 2014  1,214  1,214 
At December ��st� ����  �����  ����� 

 

��. 3roperty� plant and eTXipment

Group

Freehold  
property 

N’000

Motor  
vehicles 

N’000

Furniture and 
fittings 
N’000

Office  
partitioning 

N’000

Computer 
equipment 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Cost/Valuation:
At -anuar\ �st� ����  �����  �������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
Additions  �������  ������  ������ r  ������  ������� 
Disposals  �������  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
([change difference r  99  ��� r  75  ��� 
At December 31st, 2013  430,158  199,888  133,512  57,015  70,757 891,330 
Additions  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
Disposals  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
([change difference  501  ���  ���  ���  ���  ����� 
At December 31st, 2014  460,056  241,589  177,320  80,006  82,243  1,041,214 
Accumulated depreciation:
At -anuar\ �st� ���� r  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
Charge for the \ear r  ������  ������  �����  ������ ������ 
Disposal r  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
([change difference  78  56 r  ��  159 
At December 31st, 2013 r  103,542  71,745  49,965  54,450  279,702 
Charge for the \ear r  ������  ������  �����  ������  ������ 
Disposal r  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
([change difference  ��  56  45  49  ��� 
At December ��st� ���� r  �������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
Net book value:
At December 31st, 2014  �������  �������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
At December ��st� ����  �������  ������  ������  �����  ������  ������� 

Company

Freehold  
property 

N’000

Motor  
vehicles 

N’000

Furniture and 
fittings 
N’000

Office  
partitioning 

N’000

Computer 
equipment 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Cost/Valuation:
At -anuar\ �st� ����  �����  �������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
Additions  �������  ������  ������ r  ������  ������� 
Disposals  �������  ��������  �������  �������  ��������
At December 31st, 2013  430,158  172,966  94,502  57,015  64,237  818,878 
Additions  ������  ������  ������  ������  �����  ������� 
Disposals r  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
At December 31st, 2014  459,555  174,212  126,302  70,601  67,414  898,084 
Accumulated depreciation:
At -anuar\ �st� ���� r  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������� 
Charge for the \ear r  ������  ������  �����  ������  ������ 
Disposal r  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
At December 31st, 2013 r  96,680  66,781  49,965  52,252  265,678 
Charge for the \ear r  ������  ������  �����  ������  ������ 
Disposal r  ��������  ������� r  �������  ��������
At December 31st, 2014 r  95,409  76,177  52,768  59,872  284,226 
Net book value:
At December 31st, 2014  459,555  78,803  50,125  17,833  7,542  613,858 
At December 31st, 2013  430,158  76,286  27,721  7,050  11,985  553,200 
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��. 6tatXtory deposits
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At December 31st  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000 

Statutor\ deposit represents the amount deposited with the Central %anN of 1igeria in accordance with section ���� and section ����� of 
Insurance Act ����. 7his is restricted cash as management does not have access to the balances in its da\ to da\ activities. Statutor\ deposits 
are measured at cost.

��. InsXrance contract liaEilities
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

8nearned 3remium �1ote ��.��  ��������� ���������  ��������� ���������
2utstanding Claims �1ote ��.��  ��������� ���������  ��������� ���������

 ���������  ���������  ��������� ���������
/ife �1ote ��.��  ��������� ���������  ��������� ���������
Total insurance liabilities  10,784,693  9,873,379  9,004,306 8,961,159
7otal retrocessionaire
s share of insurance liabilities �1ote ���  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Net insurance contracts  10,307,065  9,515,273  8,668,371 8,681,912

24.1 Reserve for Unearned Premium

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At -anuar\ �st  ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
Increase in the \ear �1ote �.��  ���������� ���������� ���������� ����������
5eleased during the \ear ������������ ������������ ������������ ������������
At December 31st  5,979,095  5,338,434 4,615,879 4,580,322

24.2 Reserve for Outstanding Claims

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At -anuar\ �st  ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
Incurred in the current accident \ear  ��������� ���������  ��������� ���������
3aid during the \ear ����������� ����������� ����������� �����������
At December 31st  3,553,180  3,426,438 3,263,740 3,339,833

24.3 Insurance liabilities on life policy holders

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At -anuar\ �st  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Increase��decrease� in retrocessionaire
s share  ������  ��������  ������  ��������
Accretion��decretion� �1ote �.��  ������  �������  ������  ��������
At December 31st  1,252,418  1,108,507  1,124,687  1,041,004 

25. Reinsurance creditors
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Due to retrocessionaires  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Due to ceding companies  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 

 1,404,170  1,169,024  1,175,735  1,169,024 

7his represents the amount pa\able to insurance and reinsurance companies.

��. 2ther liaEilities
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Sundr\ creditors  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
5ent received in advance  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Accrued e[penses  �������  ������  ������  ������ 
Dividend pa\able �1ote ��.��  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Information technolog\ development lev\  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Others  ������  ������  �����  ����� 
Intercompan\ balance r r  ������ r

 535,096  311,142  457,106  288,057 

26.1 Dividends paid and proposed

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At -anuar\ �st  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Declared during the \ear  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
3aid during the \ear  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������

 36,384  36,341  36,384  36,341 
3roposed for approval at the annual general meeting �not recognised as a liabilit\ as at 

December ��st�� at �� Nobo per share ������ �� Nobo�.  ���������  ��������� 

��. 5etirement EeneIit oEligations
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Defined contribution scheme �1ote ��.�� r  ����� r  ����� 
Defined benefit gratuit\ scheme �1ote ��.��  �������  ������  �������  ������ 

 �������  ������  �������  ������ 

27.1 Defined contribution scheme
In accordance with the provisions of the 3ensions Act ����� the Group and its staff commenced a contributor\ pension scheme in -anuar\ 
����. 7he contribution b\ emplo\ees and the Compan\ are � percent and �� percent� respectivel\� of the emplo\ees’ basic salar\� housing 
and transport allowances. 7he contribution made and transferred to the pension fund administrator during the \ear are as follows�

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

%alance at beginning of \ear  ����� r  ����� r
3rovisions during the \ear  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
7ransfer to 3)A  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������
Balance at end of year r  2,407 r  2,407 
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��. 5etirement EeneIit oEligations continued

27.2 Defined benefit staff gratuity scheme
7he Group operates a defined benefit staff gratuit\ plan where Tualif\ing emplo\ees receive a lump sum pa\ment based on the number of 
\ears served after an initial Tualif\ing period of five \ears and gross salar\ on date of retirement.

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Statement of financial position obligation for:
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are:
3resent value of funded obligations  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
)air value of plan assets  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Deficit of funded plans  �������  ������  �������  ������ 
8nrecognised net �gain��loss r r r
8nrecognised past service costs r r r
(Asset)/liability in the consolidated statement of financial position  184,379  43,493  184,379  43,493 
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:
At beginning of the \ear  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Service cost  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Member contribution r r r r
Interest cost  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Actuarial �Gains��/oss  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������
%enefit paid  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
At end of the year  356,651  378,645  356,651  378,645 
The amounts recognised in the profit or loss are as follows:
Current service cost  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Net interest  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
Total, included in staff costs  63,903  70,746  63,903  70,746 
The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
5e-measurement �gain��loss on net defined benefit plans  ������  �������  ������  �������
The movement in the plan assets over the year is as follows:
Assets at fair value r opening  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Interest return  ������  ������  ������  ������ 
(mplo\er contribution  �����  �������  �����  ������� 
%enefit paid  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Actuarial loss  ���������  ��������  ���������  ��������
At end of the year  172,272  335,152  172,272  335,152 
Composition of Plan assets
Cash ��.��� �.��� ��.��� �.���
(Tuit\ ��.��� ��.��� ��.��� ��.���
%onds ��.��� ��.��� ��.��� ��.���
The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Average long term discount rate �p.a.� ��.��� ��.��� ��.��� ��.���
Average long term rate of inflation �p.a.� ��.��� ��.��� ��.��� ��.���
Average long term pa\ increase �p.a.� ��.��� ��.��� ��.��� ��.���

A Tuantitative sensitivit\ anal\sis for significant assumption as at December ��st� ���� is as shown below�
Discount rate 

N’000
Salary increase 

N’000
Mortality rate 

N’000

Assumptions Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit obligation ���  ��������  ������  ��� 

-��  ������  ��������  (670)

28. Share capital
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Authorised �������������� 2rdinar\ shares of ��N each ����������  ��������� ����������  ��������� 
Issued and full\ paid �������������� 2rdinar\ shares of ��N each  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

29. Share premium 
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

At December ��st ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������

3remiums from the issue of shares are reported in share premium.

�0. &ontingency reserYe

7he statutor\ contingenc\ reserve has been computed in accordance with Section �� ��� of the Insurance Act� Cap I�� /)1 ����. 
7he composition on the account are as follows�

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

1on-/ife  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Life  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Total  2,785,131  2,420,096  2,349,131  2,349,131 
Movement in this account is as shown below:
2pening  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Addition during the \ear  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Closing  2,785,131  2,420,096  2,705,666  2,349,131 

31. Retained earnings
5etained earnings comprise the undistributed profits from previous \ears� which have not been reclassified to the other reserves noted below.

32. Other reserves
32.1 Available-for-sale reserve:
7he fair value available-for-sale reserve shows the effects from the fair value measurement of financial instruments of the categor\ available-
for-sale. An\ gains or losses are not recognised in the profit or loss until the asset has been sold or impaired.

32.2 Foreign currency translation reserve:
)oreign currenc\ translation reserve comprise the e[change differences arising on translation of its subsidiar\. Gains or losses arising 
therefrom is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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33. Non-Controlling interests
During ���� financial \ear� %ritish American Asset Management �%AAM� invested additional capital in Continental 5einsurance /imited� .en\a 
�C5e /imited� .en\a�� subsidiar\ of Continental 5einsurance 3lc �C5e 3lc�� the transaction was not a disposal but capital inMection. )ormerl\� 
C5e 3lc had ��� percent shareholding in C5e /imited� .en\a� with the accommodation of capital set out below� the shareholding of C5e 3lc 
was watered down to �� percent. 7he accommodation of %AAM was to fulfil regulator\ reTuirement that there should be eTuit\ 
participation from indigenous companies or citi]en�s� from .en\a when a foreign entit\ is investing in .en\a.

Also as set out below� C5e 3lc and %otswana Insurance Compan\ /imited co-founded Continental 5einsurance /imited� %otswana� 
this led to C5e 3lc having shareholding of �� percent and %otswana Insurance Compan\ /imited �� percent in Continental 5einsurance 
/imited� %otswana.

7he 1on-Controlling interest in the two subsidiaries is hereb\ presented below�
Continental 
Reinsurance 

Limited, Kenya 
N’000

Continental 
Reinsurance 

Limited, Botswana 
N’000

Total 
N’000

At acTuisition  �������  �������  ������� 
Change in shareholding  ������ r  ������ 
3rofit for the \ear  ������  �����  ������ 
2ther comprehensive income  ��� r  ��� 

 502,666  476,346  979,012 

��. 5econciliation oI proIit EeIore ta[ation to net cashIloZs �oXtIloZ��inIloZ Irom operating actiYities
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Profit before income tax  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amorti]ation �1ote �.��  ������  �������  ������  ������ 
Increase��decrease� in provision for bad and doubtful balances  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
3rofit on disposal of investments  ��������  ��������  ��������  ��������
/oss on disposal of propert\� plant and eTuipment  �����  ������  �����  ������ 
Interest received  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Dividend received  ���������  ��������  ���������  ��������
8nrealised foreign e[change loss��gain�  ��������  ��������� r  ���������
)air value loss on investment propert\ and financial assets designated at fair value  ���������  ���������  ��������  ���������

Changes in operating assets/liabilities
5einsurance debtors  ��������  �����������  ���������  ���������
3repa\ments and other assets  ���������  ������  ���������  ���������
Retrocession assets  ���������  �������  ��������  ������� 
5einsurance creditors and other liabilities  �������  �������  ��������  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs  ������  ���������  �������  ���������
3rovision for une[pired risNs  ���������  �������  ������  ������� 
2utstanding claims  ���������  ���������  ��������  ���������
5etirement benefit obligations  �������  ���������  �������  ���������

Income ta[ paid �1ote ��  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  (252,962)  466,393  (688,954)  290,723 

��. &ash and cash eTXiYalents Ior pXrposes oI the consolidated statement oI cashIloZs
Group 

December 31st,  
2014 

N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Cash in hand  110  ���  110  ��� 
%alances held with other banNs�

Current account  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Domiciliar\ account  �����  �������  �����  ������� 

%alances held with foreign banNs  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
3lacements with banNs and other financial institutions  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

7reasur\ bills  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
 5,878,360  6,630,640  4,337,192  6,526,753 

��. 5elated party transactions
Transaction with related parties
7he Group entered into transactions with related parties during the \ear in the normal course of business. 7he purchase from related parties 
are made at normal marNet prices.

Purchase of actuarial services:

Group 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Group 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2014 
N’000

Company 
December 31st,  

2013 
N’000

Ale[ander )orbes Consulting Actuaries 1igeria /td.  ����� ����� ����� �����

7here were no outstanding balances due from�to this related part\ at the reporting date.

Loans and advances to related parties
7he following facilities were due from the Managing Director�mMD’��Chief ([ecutive 2fficer and the ([ecutive Director �m(D’� r /ife at the 
end of the \ear�

MD 
N’000

ED 
Non-life 

N’000

ED 
Life 

N’000
2014 

N’000
2013 

N’000

Mortgage loan r r r r  ����� 
3ersonal loan r  ����� r  �����  ������ 
Car loan r  ����� r  �����  ��� 

r  5,416 r  5,416  24,217 

7hese loans were given in line with the conditions of service of the Directors. 8nder the terms of the mortgage loan� repa\ment is to be 
made over the mortgage period from ����. )or other loans� ��� percent repa\ment is through deductions from salaries plus cash pa\ment 
of balance upon cessation of emplo\ment.

7he carr\ing amounts of loans and advances to related parties as disclosed above appro[imate fair value at the reporting date. 7here was no 
allowance for impairment on them at the reporting date and no bad debt e[pense in the \ear ������ 1il�.
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��. 5elated party transactions continued
Compensation of key management personnel
.e\ management personnel of the Group includes all directors� e[ecutives and non-e[ecutive� and senior management. 7he summar\ of 
compensation of Ne\ management personnel for the \ear is � as follows�

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Short-term employee benefits:
Salaries and allowances ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Long-term employee benefits:
3ost emplo\ment pension benefits ������ ������  ������  ����� 

 305,927  258,695  266,354  211,430 

7he number of directors who received fees and other emoluments �e[cluding pension contributions and certain benefit� in the following 
ranges was�

Number Number Number Number

%elow N��������� r � r r
N��������� r N��������� r � r r
N��������� r N��������� r r r r
N��������� and above � � � �

2 8 2 3

Employees
7he average number of persons emplo\ed b\ the Compan\ during the \ear was as follows�

Group 
2014 

Number

Group 
2013 

Number

Company 
2014 

Number

Company 
2013 

Number

Managerial and Senior Staff  ��  50  55  46 
-unior Staff  7  6  1  1 

 69  56  56  47 

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Staff cost
Salaries and allowances ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Staff pension ������ ������  ������  ������ 
Staff gratuit\ ����� ������� r  ������� 

 621,522  487,735  482,547  433,209 

7he number of emplo\ees of the Compan\� other than directors� who received emoluments in the following ranges �e[cluding pension 
contributions and certain benefits� were�

Group 
2014 

Number

Group 
2013 

Number

Company 
2014 

Number

Company 
2013 

Number

N������� r N��������� 10  ��  9  �� 
N��������� r N��������� 14  4  11  � 
N��������� r N��������� �  6  �  4 
N��������� r N��������� 4  8  1  8 
N��������� r N��������� 5  �  4  � 
N��������� r Above ��  ��  ��  19 

 69  56  56  47 

37. Contingencies and commitments
Contingent liabilities
7here were no contingent liabilities at the end of the \ear ������ 1il�.

Capital commitment and operating leases
7here were no capital commitments at the end of the \ear ������ 1il�.

7he Compan\ has entered into commercial propert\ leases on its investment propert\ portfolio. 7hese cancellable leases have remaining 
terms of between one and two \ears. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according 
to prevailing marNet conditions.

2014 
N’000

2013 
N’000

:ithin one \ear ������ ������
After one \ear but not more than five \ears ������ �����

 71,953  40,999 

��. &ompliance Zith regXlatory Eodies
Penalties:

2014 
N’000

2013 
N’000

�a�  7he Compan\ contravened certain sections of the )inancial 5eporting Council of 1igeria �)5C1� Act ���� with respect to late 
submission of the ���� accounts. ����� r

�b�  7he Compan\ contravened certain sections of the Securit\ ([change Commission �S(C� Act with respect to late filling of ���� accounts.  ������ r
�c�  7he Compan\ contravened certain sections of ���� operational guidelines issued b\ the 1ational Insurance Commission �1AIC2M�. 

Details of contravention and penalt\ paid are as shown below�
/ate rendition of Tuarterl\ returns  ����� –
1on compliance with 1AIC2M guideline on retrocession placement  ������ –

 ������ –

39. Events after reporting date
7here were no events after reporting date which would have a material effect on the state of affairs of the Group as at December ��st� ���� 
or the profit for the \ear then ended that have not been adeTuatel\ provided for or disclosed.
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�0. $dmissiEle assets
7he admissible assets representing insurance contract liabilities are included in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows�

      Non-life       Life

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and banN balances r
%anN placements  ���������  ������ 
Total cash and cash equivalents  2,588,449  67,610 
Investment properties  1,644,200  193,000 
Investment securities:
4uoted eTuities  �������  ������� 
8nTuoted eTuities r r
Corporate %onds  �������  ������� 
Government bonds  ���������  ������� 
Total investment securities  3,743,972  908,199 
7otal assets representing insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ��������� 
7otal insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ��������� 
%alance due to sKareKolders’ funds  97,002  44,122 

41. Segment information 
)or management reporting purposes� the Compan\ is organised into business units based on /ife and 1on-/ife products and geograph\ �regions�.

/ife assurance business can be either Individual or Group and covers the mortalit\ aspect of the life contract which is annual. 5evenue from 
this segment is derived mainl\ from reassurance premium and becomes full\ earned after the \ear of cover.

7he 1on-/ife reinsurance business covers general insurance to individuals and businesses. 7he general insurance products covered include 
motor� household� commercial and business interruption insurance� and indemnification of other parties that suffer damage resulting from 
the polic\holders’ accident� e.g.� emplo\ees’ liabilit\ claims.

Also� segment information is presented in respect of the compan\’s geographic segments.

7he ([ecutive Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separatel\ for the purpose of maNing decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance and reporting is based on operating profit or loss and is 
measured consistentl\ with operating profit or loss in the financial statements. +owever� income ta[es are not allocated to operating segments.

Life insurance 
N’000

Non-life insurance 
N’000

Eliminations 
N’000

Total segments 
N’000

December 31st, 2014
Gross 3remium  ���������  ���������� r  ���������� 
Change in 5eserve for unearned premium  ��������  ��������� r  ���������
(arned premium income  ���������  ���������� r  ���������� 
/ess� 5etrocession costs  ���������  ����������� r  �����������
Net premium written  1,622,450  12,572,057 r  14,194,507 
Expenses
Gross claims paid  ���������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Change in 5eserve for outstanding claims. r r
Ceded 2utstanding Claims 5eserve r  �������� r  ��������
Claims incurred  1,461,997  5,907,476 r  7,369,473 
5etrocession recoveries  ���������  ��������� r  ���������
Net claims incurred  1,215,625  5,664,542 r  6,880,167 
Underwriting expenses:
AcTuisition and maintenance cost  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Depreciation and amortisation  ������  ������ r  ������ 
Management and Administration e[penses  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 

 738,826  6,021,949 r  6,760,775 
Underwriting (loss)/profit carried forward  (332,001)  885,566 r  553,565 

Life insurance 
N’000

Non-life insurance 
N’000

Eliminations 
N’000

Total segments 
N’000

December 31st, 2014 �continued�
8nderwriting �loss��profit brought forward  ���������  ������� r �������
Investment Income  ������  ������� r  ��������� 
Results of operating activities  (234,903)  1,822,871 r  1,587,968 
Income ta[ e[pense  �������  ��������� r  ���������
3rofit for the \ear  ���������  ��������� r  ������� 
Segment assets  4,731,027  25,751,370  (2,274,753)  28,207,644 
Segment liabilities  2,232,204  11,860,467  (602,831)  13,489,840 

58,576
December 31st, 2013
Gross 3remium  ���������  ���������� r  ���������� 
Change in 5eserve for unearned premium  �����  ��������� r  ���������
Earned premium income  2,796,335  12,240,277 r  15,036,612 
/ess� 5etrocession costs  ���������  ����������� r  �����������
Net premium written  2,387,871  10,963,032 r  13,350,903 
Expenses  
Gross claims paid  ���������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Change in 5eserve for outstanding claims.  ������  ��������� r  ���������
Ceded 2utstanding Claims 5eserve r  ������� r  ������� 
Claims incurred  1,241,525  5,134,734 r  6,376,259 
5etrocession recoveries  �������  ��������� r  ���������
Net claims incurred  1,236,725  5,025,320 r  6,262,045 
Underwriting expenses:  
AcTuisition and maintenance cost  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Depreciation and amortisation  ������  ������ r  ������� 
Management and Admin e[penses  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
  1,126,738  5,333,972 r  6,460,710 
8nderwriting profit  ������  ������� r  ������� 
Investment Income  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Results of operating activities  292,754  1,940,640 r  2,233,394 
Income ta[ e[penses  ���������  ��������� r  ���������
Profit for the year  185,085  1,568,315 r  1,753,400 
Segment Assets  4,636,814  22,656,235  (1,167,639)  26,125,410 
Segment liabilities  1,006,258  11,013,893  (180,234)  11,839,917 
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41. Segment information continued
7he segment information provided to the Compan\ ([ecutive %oard for the reportable segments for the \ear ended December ��st� ���� 
is as follows�

Nigeria  
N’000

Cameroon 
N’000

Kenya 
N’000

Abidjan 
N’000

Tunis 
N’000

Botswana 
N’000

Total 
N’000

Eliminations 
N’000

Consolidated 
N’000

Gross premium  ����������  ���������  ���������  ���������  �������  �������  ���������� r  ���������� 
Change in reserve for unearned premium  ��������  ���������  ���������  ��������  ��������� �������  ��������� r  ���������
Earned premium income  10,368,846  1,175,169  2,269,545  1,054,931  381,952  903,297  16,153,740 r  16,153,740 
Retrocession costs  �����������  ���������  ���������  ��������  �������� ���������  ����������� r  �����������
Net premium written  ���������  ���������  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ���������� r  ���������� 
Expenses
Gross claims paid  ���������  �������  ���������  �������  �������  ������� ��������� r  ��������� 
Change in reserve for outstanding claims  ������ ��������  ������� ������� ���������  ������  ������ r  ������ 
Ceded outstanding claims reserve  �������� r r r r r  �������� r  ��������
Claims incurred  4,919,585  333,797  1,209,164  497,073  76,694  333,161  7,369,473 r  7,369,473 
5etrocession recoveries  ���������  �������  �������  ���� r r  ��������� r  ���������
Net claims incurred  4,439,630  331,558  1,202,115  497,010  76,694  333,161  6,880,168 r  6,880,167 
Underwriting expenses:      
AcTuisition and maintenance cost  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Depreciation and amortisation  ������  �����  ������  �����  �����  �����  ������ r  ������ 
Management and Admin e[penses  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
  4,307,347  531,454  967,409  444,859  151,069  358,637  6,760,775 r  6,760,775 
8nderwriting profit  �������  �������  ��������  ������  �������  ������  ������� r  ������� 
Investment Income  �������  ������  �������  ������  ������  ������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Results of operating activities  979,593  211,725  85,277  73,740  139,080  98,554  1,587,969 r  1,587,969 
Income ta[ e[penses  ���������  ��������  ��������  ��������  �������� ��������  ��������� r  ���������
Profit for the year  �������  �������  �������  ������  �������  ������  ������� r  ������� 
Segment Assets  ����������  ���������  ���������  ���������  �������  ���������  ����������  �����������  ���������� 
Segment liabilities  ���������  ���������  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ����������  ���������  ���������� 

7he segment information provided to the Compan\ ([ecutive %oard for the reportable segments for the \ear ended December ��st� ���� 
is as follows�

Nigeria  
N’000

Cameroon 
N’000

Kenya 
N’000

Abidjan 
N’000

Total 
N’000

Eliminations 
N’000

Consolidated 
N’000

Gross 3remium  ����������  �������  ���������  ���������  ���������� r  ���������� 
Change in 5eserve for unearned premium.  ���������  �������  ���������  ���������  ��������� r  ���������
Earned premium income  9,965,248  1,266,211  2,328,237  1,476,916  15,036,612 r  15,036,612 
Retrocession costs  �����������  ��������  ���������  ���������  ����������� r  �����������
Net premium written  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������� r  ���������� 
Expenses
Gross claims paid  ���������  �������  ���������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Change in 5eserve for outstanding claims.  ���������  ���������  ��������  �������  ��������� r  ���������
Ceded outstanding claims reserve  ������� r  �������� r  ������� r  ������� 
Claims incurred  ���������  ���������  �������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
5etrocession recoveries r  �������  ��������  ��������  ��������� r  ���������
Net claims incurred  ���������  ���������  �������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Underwriting expenses:
AcTuisition and maintenance cost  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Depreciation and amortisation  ������  �����  ������  �����  ������� r  ������� 
Management and Admin e[penses  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 

 ���������  �������  ���������  �������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Underwriting profit  ���������  �������  �������  ���������  ������� r  ������� 
Investment Income  ���������  ������  �������  ������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Results of operating activities  �������  ���������  �������  ��������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Income ta[ e[penses  ���������  ���������  ���������  ������  ��������� r  ���������
Profit for the year  �������  �������  �������  ��������  ��������� r  ��������� 
Segment Assets  ����������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ����������  �����������  ���������� 
Segment liabilities  ���������  �������  ���������  ���������  ����������  ���������  ���������� 
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42. Management of financial and insurance risk
Continental 5einsurance 3lc issues contracts that transfer insurance risN or financial risN or both. 7his section summarises these risNs and the 
wa\ the Group manages them.

42.1 Management of Insurance risk
Continental 5einsurance 3lc defines Insurance risN as the risN of loss arising from inadeTuate pricing� from uncertainties relating to the 
occurrence� amount and timing of insurance liabilities or from adverse changes in claim reserves development.

Continental 5einsurance 3lc provides covers in all classes of reinsurance basicall\� non-life and life treat\ and facultative reinsurance. 

7he Group is e[posed to underwriting risN through the reinsurance contracts that are underwritten. 7he risNs within the underwriting risN 
arises from its products which include Accident� (nerg\� Marine� /iabilit\ and life� both individual and group life.

7o manage this risN� the underwriting function is conducted in accordance with a set of guidelines� which are defined in line with the Group’s 
risN appetite statement. 7his risN is further mitigated b\ increasing diversification b\ region and b\ class and also b\ a retrocession 
programme� which taNes into account the Group’s risN e[posure profile b\ class of business.

/oss reserves are the largest liabilit\ on the statement of financial position and are inherentl\ uncertain. Differences in actual losses and 
reserves can have a material impact on future profitabilit\. 7he sensitivit\ of the reserves could be potentiall\ significant given the nature of 
the assumptions and variables included in its estimation procedure.

7he sensitivit\ anal\sis for insurance risN illustrates how reserves could fluctuate because of changes in assumptions included in its calculation 
at the reporting date.

Appl\ing the 1ormal Distribution approach to the non-life reserves indicates that at the ��th percentile� the reserves would be eTuivalent to 
1G1�.��bn� ie a deterioration of 1G1�.��bn over the best estimate. 

7he compan\ has an in-house e[perienced actuarial team� which reviews reserves on a Tuarterl\ basis with the operations team. 7he compan\ 
also carries out independent reserves reviews for both life and non-life business.

7he Compan\’s insurance risN b\ region and b\ class is shown on the table below�
Gross Written 

Premium 
N’000

Ceded to 
Retrocessionaire 

N’000

Net Written 
Premium 

N’000
Percentage  

(GWP)
Percentage  

(Retro)

Insurance Risk By Region
Group
2014
Anglophone west  ����������  ���������  ��������� ��� ���
(astern Africa  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Southern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
Central Africa  ���������  �������  ��������� �� ��
1orthern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
)rancophone :est  ���������  ������  ��������� �� ��
Total 16,436,779  1,959,233 14,477,546 100% 100%
2013
Anglophone west  ����������  ���������  ��������� ��� ���
(astern Africa  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ��
Southern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
Central Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
1orthern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
)rancophone :est  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ��
Total  15,858,796  1,685,709  14,173,087 100% 100%

Company
2014
Anglophone west  ����������  ���������  ��������� ��� ���
(astern Africa  ������  �����  ������ �� ��
Southern Africa r r r �� ��
Central Africa  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
1orthern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
)rancophone :est  ���������  ������  ��������� �� ��
Total  13,176,217  1,644,608  11,531,609 100% 100%
2013
Anglophone west  ����������  ���������  ��������� ��� ���
(astern Africa  ������  �����  ������ �� ��
Southern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
Central Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
1orthern Africa  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
)rancophone :est  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ��
Total  14,053,252  1,590,406  12,462,846 100% 100%
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42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.1 Management of Insurance risk continued
7he Group’s insurance risN b\ product is shown on the table below�

Gross Written 
Premium 

N’000

Ceded to 
Retrocessionaire 

N’000

Net Written 
Premium 

N’000
Percentage  

(GWP)
Percentage  

(Retro)

Insurance Risk By Product
Group
2014
Accident  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
(nerg\  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Fire  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Group /ife  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Individual /ife  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
/iabilit\  ���������  ������  ��������� �� ��
Marine  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ��
Total  16,436,778  1,959,233  14,477,545 100% 100%
2013
Accident  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
(nerg\  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Fire  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Group /ife  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Individual /ife  ������  �����  ������ �� ��
/iabilit\  ���������  �����  ��������� �� ��
Marine  ���������  �������  ��������� �� ��
Total  15,858,796  1,685,709  14,173,087 100% 100%

Company
2014
Accident  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ��
(nerg\  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Fire  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Group /ife  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Individual /ife  �������  ������  ������� �� ��
/iabilit\  ��������� r  ��������� �� ��
Marine  ���������  ������  ��������� ��� ��
Total  13,176,217  1,644,604  11,531,613 100% 100%
2013
Accident  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ��
(nerg\  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Fire  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Group /ife  ���������  �������  ��������� ��� ���
Individual /ife  ������  �����  ������ �� ��
/iabilit\  ��������� r  ��������� �� ��
Marine  ���������  ������  ��������� �� ��
Total  14,053,252  1,590,406  12,462,846 100% 100%

Months/Years

Group

Non-life Claims development triangle

12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 108

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ��������� ���������
2014 1,814,575

Months/Years

Life Claims development triangle

12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 108

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

���� ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
���� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ���������
2014 548,312

Months/Years

Company

Non-life Claims development triangle

12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 108

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ��������� ���������
2014 1,333,048

Months/Years

Life Claims development triangle

12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 108

N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

���� ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
���� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ��������� ��������� ���������
���� ������� ������� �������
���� ������� ���������
2014 515,833
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management
7he Group is e[posed to a range of financial risNs through its financial assets and liabilities.

7he Group’s principal financial instruments are cash and cash eTuivalents� loans and receivables including reinsurance receivables� investment 
securities held to maturit\� investment securities available-for-sale� financial asset designated at fair value through profit and loss and 
retrocession contracts.

In particular the Ne\ financial risN is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its 
insurance contracts.

7he main risNs arising from these financial instruments are interest rate risN� foreign currenc\ risN� credit risN� marNet price risN and liTuidit\ risN. 
7he %oard reviews and approves an investment polic\ to manage these risNs on an annual basis.

7he following tables indicate the contractual timing of cash flows in respect of arising from financial instruments and non-financial assets 
impacted b\ this risN�

Group

Carrying  
amount 

N’000

No stated  
maturity 

N’000
0-90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
180-365 days 

N’000
1-5 years 

N’000
>5 years 

N’000

At December 31st, 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ���������  ��������� r r r r
5einsurance receivables ���������  ���������  �������  �������  ���������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables �������  ������� r r r r
Retrocession assets �������  ������� r r r r
Other assets �������  ������� r r r r
)inancial asset designated at fair value ���������  ��������� r r r r

Debt Securities r held to maturity
Listed ��������� r r r  ��������� r
8nlisted ��������� r r r  ��������� r

Debt Securities r available for sale r
Listed  �������  ������� r r r r

(Tuities r available for sale r
Listed ��������� ��������� r r r r
8nlisted ��������� ��������� r r r r

Statutor\ deposits ��������� r r r r ���������
Non financial asset
Investment properties ��������� r r r r ���������

25,685,266 13,861,239 588,679 715,156  6,016,642 4,503,550
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities ������� ������� r r r r
5einsurance creditors ��������� ��������� r r r r

1,754,787 1,754,787 r r r r

1ote� 2ther assets e[cludes prepa\ments whilst other liabilities e[clude statutor\ deductions and rent received in advance

7he following tables indicate the contractual timing of cash flows arising from financial instruments and non-financial assets impacted b\ this risN�

Group

Carrying  
amount 

N’000

No stated  
maturity 

N’000
0-90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
180-365 days 

N’000
1-5 years 

N’000
>5 years 

N’000

At December 31st, 2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ���������  ��������� r r r r
5einsurance receivables ���������  ���������  �������  ���������  ���������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables �������  ������� r r r r
Retrocession assets �������  ������� r r r r
Other assets �������  ������� r r r r
)inancial asset designated at fair value �������  ������� r r r r

Debt Securities r Held to maturity
Listed ��������� r r r ��������� r 
8nlisted ��������� r r r ��������� r 

Debt Securities r available for sale
Listed  �������  ������� r r r r

(Tuities r available for sale
Listed ��������� ��������� r r r r
8nlisted ������� ������� r r r r

Statutor\ deposits ��������� r r r r ���������
Non financial asset
Investment properties ��������� r r r r ���������

24,030,960 10,865,053 542,947 1,173,077  8,301,011 3,148,872
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities ������� ������� r r r r
5einsurance creditors ��������� ��������� r r r r

1,389,116 1,389,116 r r r r
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued

Company

Carrying  
amount 

N’000

No stated  
maturity 

N’000
0-90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
180-365 days 

N’000
1-5 years 

N’000
>5 years 

N’000

At December 31st, 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ���������  ��������� r r r r
5einsurance receivables ���������  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables �������  ������� r r r r
Retrocession assets �������  ������� r r r r
Other assets ���������  ��������� r r r r
)inancial asset designated at fair value �������  ������� r r r r

Debt Securities – Held to maturity
Listed ��������� r  ��������� r r 
8nlisted ��������� r r  �������  ��������� r 

Debt Securities – available for sale
Listed ������� r r r  ������� r 

Equities – available for sale
Listed ���������  ��������� r r r r
8nlisted ���������  ��������� r r r r

Statutor\ deposits ��������� r r r r  ��������� 
Non financial asset
Investment properties ��������� r r r r  ��������� 

21,135,887 10,330,152 2,703,467 481,763 3,116,956 4,503,549
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities ������� ������� r r r r
5einsurance creditors ��������� ��������� r r r r

1,464,501 1,464,501 r r r r

1ote� 2ther assets e[cludes prepa\ments whilst other liabilities e[clude statutor\ deductions and rent received in advance

Company

Carrying  
amount 

N’000

No stated  
maturity 

N’000
0-90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
180-365 days 

N’000
1-5 years 

N’000
>5 years 

N’000

At December 31st, 2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ���������  ��������� r r r r
5einsurance receivables ���������  ���������  �������  ���������  ���������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables �������  ������� r r r r
Retrocession assets �������  ������� r r r r
Other assets �������  ������� r r r r
)inancial asset designated at fair value �������  ������� r r r r

Debt Securities – Held to maturity
Listed ��������� r r r  ��������� r
8nlisted ��������� r r r  ��������� r

Debt Securities – available for sale
Listed �������  ������� r r r r

Equities – available for sale
Listed ���������  ��������� r r r r
8nlisted �������  ������� r r r r

Statutor\ deposits ��������� r r r r ���������
Non financial asset r
Investment properties ��������� r r r r ���������

22,239,172 10,171,013 542,947 1,173,077 7,203,263 3,148,872
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities ������� ������� r r r r
5einsurance creditors ��������� ��������� r r r r

1,389,116 1,389,116 r r r r

1ote� 2ther assets e[cludes prepa\ments whilst other liabilities e[clude statutor\ deductions and rent received in advance
3lease refer to the maturit\ profile table on 1ote ��.�.� on /iTuidit\ risNs� for the maturit\ anal\sis of financial instruments onl\.
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued

Maturity analysis on expected maturity basis

Group
Current 

N’000
Non-current 

N’000
Total 

N’000

At December 31st, 2014
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ��������� r  ��������� 
)inancial asset designated as fair value  ��������� r  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables  ������� r  ������� 
Available-for-sale investments  ��������� r  ��������� 
+eld to maturit\ investments r  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Retrocession assets  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs  ��������� r  ��������� 
Other assets  ������� r  ������� 
Investment properties r  ���������  ��������� 
Intangible assets r  �����  ����� 
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment r  �������  ������� 
Statutor\ deposits r  ���������  ��������� 
Total assets  16,959,522  11,248,122  28,207,644 
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  ����������  ���������� 
5einsurance creditors  ��������� r  ��������� 
2ther liabilities  ������� r  ������� 
5etirement benefit obligations  ������� r  ������� 
Current income ta[  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred ta[ation r  ������  ������ 
Total liabilities  13,367,151  64,113  13,431,264 
1et maturit\ mismatch ��������� ���������� ����������

Group
Current 

N’000
Non-current 

N’000
Total 

N’000

At December 31st, 2013
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ��������� r  ��������� 
)inancial asset designated as fair value  ������� r  ������� 
/oans and other receivables  ������� r  ������� 
Available-for-sale investments  ��������� r  ��������� 
+eld to maturit\ investments r  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Retrocession assets  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs  ��������� r  ��������� 
Other assets  ������� r  ������� 
Investment properties r  ���������  ��������� 
Intangible assets r  �����  ����� 
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment r  �������  ������� 
Statutor\ deposits r  ���������  ��������� 
Total assets  14,054,232  12,071,178  26,125,410 
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance creditors  ��������� r  ��������� 
2ther liabilities  ������� r  ������� 
5etirement benefit obligations  ������ r  ������ 
Current income ta[  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred ta[ation r  ������  ������ 
Total liabilities  10,476,156  1,363,761  11,839,917 
1et maturit\ mismatch ��������� ���������� ����������

Company
Current 

N’000
Non-current 

N’000
Total 

N’000

At December 31st, 2014
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ��������� r  ��������� 
)inancial asset designated as fair value  ������� r  ������� 
/oans and other receivables  ������� r  ������� 
Available-for-sale investments  ��������� r  ��������� 
+eld to maturit\ investments r  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Retrocession assets  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs  ��������� r  ��������� 
Other assets  ��������� r  ��������� 
Investment properties r  ���������  ��������� 
Intangible assets r  �����  ����� 
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment r  �������  ������� 
Statutor\ deposits r  ���������  ��������� 
Investment in subsidiar\ r  ���������  ��������� 
Total assets  12,714,278  12,170,223  24,884,501 
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance creditors  ��������� r  ��������� 
2ther liabilities  ������� r  ������� 
5etirement benefit obligations  ������� r  ������� 
Current income ta[  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred ta[ation r  ������  ������ 
Total liabilities  11,212,803  45,039  11,257,842 
1et maturit\ mismatch ��������� ���������� ����������



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 103Continental Reinsurance Plc102

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued

Maturity analysis on expected maturity basis continued

Company
Current 

N’000
Non-current 

N’000
Total 

N’000

At December 31st, 2013
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ��������� r  ��������� 
)inancial asset designated as fair value  ������� r  ������� 
/oans and other receivables  ������� r  ������� 
Available-for-sale investments  ��������� r  ��������� 
+eld to maturit\ investments r  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Retrocession assets  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs  ��������� r  ��������� 
Other assets  ������� r  ������� 
Investment properties r  ���������  ��������� 
Intangible assets r  �����  ����� 
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment r  �������  ������� 
Statutor\ deposits r  ���������  ��������� 
Investment in subsidiar\ r  �������  ������� 
Total assets  13,139,889  11,902,407  25,042,296 
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance creditors  ��������� r  ��������� 
2ther liabilities  ������� r  ������� 
5etirement benefit obligations  ������ r  ������ 
Current income ta[  ������� r  ������� 
Deferred ta[ation r  ������  ������ 
Total liabilities  9,812,011  1,082,950  10,894,961 
1et maturit\ mismatch ��������� ���������� ����������

42.2.1 Sensitivities

7he sensitivit\ anal\sis below are based on a change in one assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice this is unliNel\ 
to occur� and changes in some of the assumptions ma\ be correlated - for e[ample� change in interest rate and change in marNet values.

�a� Sensitivit\ anal\sis r interest rate risN
7he Group defines interest rate risN as the risN of loss arising from changes in interest rates that will affect future profitabilit\ or fair values of 
financial instruments. 7he Group is e[posed to this risN on some of its investments and mitigates this risN b\ activel\ monitoring changes in 
interest rate in all countries where it has cash and interest-bearing investments.

7he sensitivit\ anal\sis for interest rate risN illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in marNet interest rates at the reporting date.

A ��� basis point movement in interest rates will result in additional interest income or less for the Group of N��.��� million and Compan\ 
N��.��� million ������ Group N���.��� million and Compan\ N��.��� million�.

�b� Sensitivit\ anal\sis r MarNet price risN
MarNet risN is the risN that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate as a result of change in marNet prices �other than those arising from 
interest rate risN and currenc\ risN� whether those changes are caused b\ factors specific to the individual securit\ or its issuer or factors 
affecting the all securities traded in a marNet.

7he Group eTuit\ price risN e[posure relates to financial assets whose value fluctuate as a result of changes in marNet prices. 7he Group also 
has unTuoted eTuities classified as available-for-sale whose fair value is determined using a valuation techniTue because of the lacN of active 
marNet for these instruments.

7he sensitivit\ anal\sis for eTuit\ price risN illustrates how changes in the fair value of eTuit\ securities will fluctuate because of changes in 
marNet prices� whether those changes are caused b\ factors specific to the individual eTuit\ issuer� or factors affecting all similar eTuit\ 
securities traded in the marNet.

A � percent movement in marNet prices will result in an unrealised gain or loss for the Group of N��.��� million and Compan\ N��.��� 
million �December ����� Group N��.��� million� Compan\ N��.��� million�.

Management monitors movements of financial assets and eTuit\ price risN movements on a monthl\ basis b\ assessing the e[pected changes 
in the different portfolios due to parallel movements of a �� percent increase or decrease in the 1igeria All share inde[ with all other 
variables held constant and all the Group’s eTuit\ instruments in that particular inde[ moving proportionall\.

�c� Sensitivit\ anal\sis r currenc\ risN
)oreign currenc\ risN is the risN that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign e[change rates.

7he Group carries out an asset liabilit\ matching e[ercise to ensure an adeTuate currenc\ match between assets and liabilit\ so that an\ 
net movement in currenc\ is minimal on the financial statements.

A � percent movement in foreign e[change rate in 8SD against the 1aira will result in N��.� million gain or loss for the Group and Compan\ 
of N��.�� million ������ Group N��.�� million and Compan\ N��.��� million�. In (uro� Group N�.�� million and Compan\ N�.�� million 
������ Group N�.��� million and Compan\ N�.��� million�. And in other currencies� Group N��.�� million and Compan\ N��.�� million 
������ Group N��.��� million and Compan\ N��.��� million�.

In addition� the Group’s retrocession programme is denominated in 8S dollars and provides a stable hard currenc\ platform to hedge against 
the fluctuations of the various African currencies.

Group
Naira 
N’000

USD 
N’000

Euro 
N’000

CFA 
N’000

KSHS 
N’000

Other 
N’000

Total 
N’000

December 31st, 2014
Assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ���������  �������  �����  ���������  �������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ������� ���������  �������  ���������  �������  �������  ��������� 
Investment securities  ��������� ��������� r r  �������  ������  ��������� 
Liabilities
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
December 31st, 2013
Assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ���������  ������� r  �������  ������  �������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ��������� ���������  �������  �������  �������  �������  ��������� 
Investment securities  ��������� ��������� r r  ���������  �������  ��������� 
/iabilities
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued
42.2.1 Sensitivities continued
�c� Sensitivit\ anal\sis r currenc\ risN continued

Company
Naira 
N’000

USD 
N’000

Euro 
N’000

CFA 
N’000

KSHS 
N’000

Other 
N’000

Total 
N’000

December 31st, 2014
Assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ��������� �������  �����  ���������  ������  ������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ������� ���������  �������  ��������� r  �������  ��������� 
Investment securities  ��������� ��������� r r  ������  ������  ��������� 
/iabilities r
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
December 31st, 2013
Assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ��������� ������� r  ������� r  �������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ��������� ���������  �������  ������� r  �������  ��������� 
Investment securities  ��������� ��������� r r r  �������  ��������� 
/iabilities
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 

42.2.2 Credit Risk

Credit 5isN is the risN that one part\ to a financial instrument will fail to honour its obligations and cause the Group to incur a financial loss. 
Credit risN arises mainl\ from � sources� retrocession� reinsurance receivables and cash and investment securities.

2n retrocession� the Group mitigates credit risN b\ appl\ing minimum securit\ standards for all its retrocession programmes in terms of the 
credit rating of the retrocessionaires� and the proportion ceded to each retrocessionaire. 7he Group has a diverse panel of retrocessionaires 
to avoid concentration risN. 7he credit rating profile of our retrocessionaires b\ product is shown below�

Fire and 
Engineering

Marine  
and Aviation

Motor, Accident 
and Liability Energy

Credit Rating
AA� �� �� �� ��
A� ��� �� ��� ���
A ��� ��� �� ���
A- ��� ��� ��� ��
%%%- �� �� �� ��
%�� �� �� �� ��
%� ��� �� ��� ��
% �� �� �� ��
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

42.2.2 Credit Risk continued
7he overdue premiums are considered b\ the Group on case b\ case basis. If an overdue premium is recognised b\ the Group as 
uncollectible� a notification is sent to the cedants�ceding companies� and the reinsurance agreement is assigned for monitoring from the date 
of notification. 7he uncollectible portion of the premium receivable are considered as impaired and charged through the statement of 
comprehensive income.

2n insurance receivables� the Group has a credit control polic\ which is enforced b\ a credit control unit and which forms part of the 
underwriting process. In addition� the Group re-assesses its insurance receivables on a regular basis and maNes adeTuate provisions based on 
ageing and credit Tualit\. 7he table below shows the ageing of receivables�

Maximum exposure

Group 
2014 

N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements:
Cash and cash eTuivalents ���������  ��������� ��������� ���������
5einsurance receivables ���������  ��������� ��������� ���������
/oans and other receivables �������  ������� ������� �������
Debt securities ���������  ��������� ��������� ���������
7otal assets bearing credit risN ���������� ���������� ���������� ����������

Group

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

N’000

Reinsurance 
receivables 

N’000

Loans and  
other receivables 

N’000

Debt  
securities 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Age analysis for past due and impaired
December 31st, 2014
1either past due nor impaired ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
3ast due but not impaired r ��������� r r  ��������� 
Impaired r ��������� ������� r  ��������� 
Gross ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
Impairment allowance r collective r  �����������  ��������� r  �����������
Net ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ����������
December 31st, 2013
1either past due nor impaired ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
3ast due but not impaired r ��������� r r  ��������� 
Impaired r ��������� ������� r  ��������� 
Gross ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
Impairment allowance r collective r  �����������  ��������� r  �����������
Net ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ����������

Company

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

N’000

Reinsurance 
receivables 

N’000

Loans and  
other receivables 

N’000

Debt  
securities 

N’000
Total 

N’000

Age analysis for past due and impaired
December 31st, 2014
1either past due nor impaired ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
3ast due but not impaired r ��������� r r  ��������� 
Impaired r ��������� ������� r  ��������� 
Gross ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
Impairment allowance r collective r  �����������  ��������� r  �����������
Net ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ����������
December 31st, 2013
1either past due nor impaired ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
3ast due but not impaired r ��������� r r  ��������� 
Impaired r ��������� ������� r  ��������� 
Gross ��������� ��������� ������� ���������  ���������� 
Impairment allowance r collective r  �����������  ��������� r  �����������
Net ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ����������
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued
42.2.2 Credit Risk continued
�a� )inancial assets neither past due nor impaired
7he credit Tualit\ of the portfolio of insurance receivables and other loans and receivables�debt securities and other financial asset e[posed 
to credit risN that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed b\ reference to the capacit\ of the business to pa\ on written 
business. 7he Group does not rate an\ of its financial assets measured at amortised cost.

7he assets above are anal\sed in the table below using Standard 	 3oors �S	3� rating �or eTuivalent when not available from S	3�.

Group
 AA+ 
N’000

 A+ 
N’000

 A 
N’000

 BBB- 
N’000

Below BBB 
N’000

Not rated 
N’000

Total 
N’000

December 31st, 2014
Cash and cash eTuivalents r  ��������� r r r r  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables r r r r r  ���������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables r r r r r  �������  ������� 
Debt securities r  ���������  ��������� r r r ��������� 
December 31st, 2013
Cash and cash eTuivalents r  ��������� r r r r  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables r r r r r  ���������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables r r r r r  �������  ������� 
Debt securities r  ���������  ��������� r r r  ��������� 

Company
 AA+ 
N’000

 A+ 
N’000

 A 
N’000

 BBB- 
N’000

Below BBB 
N’000

Not rated 
N’000

Total 
N’000

December 31st, 2014
Cash and cash eTuivalents r  ��������� r r r r  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables r r r r r  ���������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables r r r r r  �������  ������� 
Debt securities r  ���������  ��������� r r r  ��������� 
December 31st, 2013
Cash and cash eTuivalents r  ��������� r r r r  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables r r r r r  ���������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables r r r r r  �������  ������� 
Debt securities r  ���������  ��������� r r r  ��������� 

�b� Age Anal\sis financial assets past due but not impaired

Group
< 90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
181-270 days 

N’000
271-365 days 

N’000
1-2 years 

N’000
2-3 years 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2014
Life  �������  ������  ������  597  �������  �������  ������� 
1on-/ife  ���������  �������  �������  ������  �������  �������  ��������� 
Total  3,724,327  588,679  652,659  62,497  1,014,538  700,636  6,743,336 
3rofile ��� �� ��� �� ��� ��� ����

Group
< 90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
181-270 days 

N’000
271-365 days 

N’000
1-2 years 

N’000
2-3 years 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2013
Life  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  ��������� 
1on-/ife  ���������  �������  �������  �������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Total  1,396,608  665,245  695,800  659,778  1,612,446  1,262,188  6,292,066 
3rofile ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����

Company
< 90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
181-270 days 

N’000
271-365 days 

N’000
1-2 years 

N’000
2-3 years 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2014
Life  ������  ������  ������  ������  �������  ������  ������� 
1on-/ife  ���������  �������  �������  ������  �������  �������  ��������� 
Total  3,014,103  367,426  249,502  110,096  1,053,249  479,825  5,274,201 
3rofile ��� �� �� �� ��� �� ����

Company
< 90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
181-270 days 

N’000
271-365 days 

N’000
1-2 years 

N’000
2-3 years 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2013
Life  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  ��������� 
1on-/ife  �������  �������  �������  �������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Total  1,023,019  542,947  517,083  655,994  1,612,446  1,262,188  5,613,677 
3rofile ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� ����

Impaired financial assets
At December ��st� ����� the Group impaired reinsurance receivables was N�������������� Compan\ N������������� 
������ N��������������.

)or assets to be classified as mpastrdue and impaired’ contractual pa\ments must be in arrears for more than �� da\s. 1o collateral is held 
as securit\ for an\ past due or impaired assets.

7he Group records impairment allowances for loans and receivables in a separate impairment allowance account. See 1ote ��.� for the 
reconciliation of allowance for reinsurance receivables account.
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued
42.2.2 Credit Risk continued
��.�.�.� Concentration of credit risN
Concentration risN �including geographical risN� includes identification of the concentration of risNs insured b\ Continental 5einsurance 3lc 
utilise data anal\sis� software and marNet Nnowledge to determine the concentration of its risNs b\ insurance class� geographic location� e[posure 
to a client or business. 7he assessment of the concentration risN are consistent with the overall risN appetite as established b\ the Group.

Continental 5einsurance monitors concentration of credit risN b\ geographical and nature of business. An anal\sis of concentrations of credit 
risN for reinsurance receivables are set out below�

(a) Geographical sectors
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

1igeria ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
Cameroon ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
.en\a ��������� ��������� ������� �������
AbidMan � 7unis ������� ������� ������� ������� 
Gaborone ������� ������� ������� ������� 
Total 6,743,336 6,292,066 5,274,202 5,613,677

(b) Business Class
Group 

2014 
N’000

Group 
2013 

N’000

Company 
2014 

N’000

Company 
2013 

N’000

/ife operation ������� ��������� ������� ���������
1on life )acultative ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
1on life 7reat\ ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
Total 6,743,336 6,292,066 5,274,202 5,613,677

42.2.3 Liquidity Risk

/iTuidit\ risN is the risN that the Group will not be able to meet its insurance liabilities as the\ fall due. 7he Group mitigates this risN b\ having 
an investment strateg\ which focuses on liTuidit\ and capital preservation before investment returns.

In addition� the actuarial team carries out an asset liabilit\ matching e[ercise to ensure that the Group will meet its liTuidit\ reTuirements. 
)inall\ the Group’s asset allocation is defined to enable insurance liabilities to be paid from current assets.

7he table below presents the cash flows receivable�pa\able b\ the Group and the Compan\. 7he amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows. All liabilities are presented on a contractual cash flow basis e[cept for the insurance liabilities� which are 
presented with their e[pected cash flows.

Group
0-30 days 

N’000
31-90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
181-365 days 

N’000

Over 1 year  
but less than 5 yrs 

N’000
Over 5 years 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ��������� r r r r r ���������
5einsurance receivables ��������� ������� ������� ������� ��������� ������� ���������
/oans and other receivables �������  �����  ������  ������  ������ r �������
Other assets ������� r �������
Retrocession assets ������� r �������
Debt Securities at amortised cost ������� ������� ��������� ������ ���������  �������.�� ���������
Debt Securities at available for sale ������ ������� �������
Total relevant financial assets  10,167,773  554,172  1,576,771  46,574  2,556,234  396,105  18,397,092 
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
Total financial liabilities  350,617 r r r r r  350,617 
Insurance contract liabilities  ����������  ���������� 
December 31st, 2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ��������� r r r r r ���������
5einsurance receivables ������� ������� ������� ��������� ��������� ������� ���������
/oans and other receivables ������� r r r r r �������
Other assets ������� r �������
Retrocession assets ������� r �������
Debt Securities at amortised cost ������� ������� ������� ������� ��������� r ���������
Debt Securities at available for sale ����� ����� ����� ������ ������� r �������
Total relevant financial assets  7,889,273  1,072,452  340,938  961,282  4,781,335 r  19,938,916 
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
Total financial liabilities  220,092 r r r r r  220,092 
Insurance contract liabilities r  ��������� r r ��������� r  ��������� 
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.2 Financial risk management continued
42.2.3 Liquidity Risk continued

Company
0-30 days 

N’000
31-90 days 

N’000
91-180 days 

N’000
181-365 days 

N’000

Over 1 year  
but less than 5 yrs 

N’000
Over 5 years 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ��������� r r r r r ���������
5einsurance receivables ��������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ���������
/oans and other receivables �������  �����  ������  ������  ������ r �������
Other assets ��������� r r r r r ���������
Retrocession assets ������� r r r r r �������
Debt Securities at amortised cost ������� ������� ��������� ������ ���������  ������� ���������
Debt Securities at available for sale ������� �������
Total relevant financial assets  8,018,295  497,763  1,576,771  46,574  2,189,643  257,118  14,350,124 
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities r r r r r r
Total financial liabilities r r r r r r r
Insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ��������� 
December 31st, 2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ��������� r r r r r  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables �������  �������  �������  ���������  ���������  �������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables ������� r r r r r  ������� 
Other assets ������� r r r r r  ������� 
Retrocession assets ������� r r r r r  ������� 
Debt Securities at amortised cost ������� ������� ������� ������� ��������� r  ��������� 
Debt Securities at available-for-sale  �����  �����  �����  ������  ������� r  ������� 
Total relevant financial assets  7,657,178  960,921  883,885  2,134,359  6,130,102  402,072  18,168,517 
)inancial liabilities
2ther liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
7otal financial liabilities  ������� r r r r r  ������� 
Insurance contract liabilities r  ��������� r r  ��������� r  ��������� 

42.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At December 31st, 2014 
Group

At December 31st, 2013 
Group

Carrying 
value 

N’000

Fair 
value 

N’000

Carrying 
value 

N’000

Fair 
value 

N’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Other assets ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Retrocession assets ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Debt securities at amortised cost
Listed ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
8nlisted ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities  �������  �������  ������� �������

At December 31st, 2014 
Company

At December 31st, 2013 
Company

Carrying 
value 

N’000

Fair 
value 

N’000

Carrying 
value 

N’000

Fair 
value 

N’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
/oans and other receivables ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Other assets ��������� ���������  �������  ������� 
Retrocession assets ������� �������  �������  ������� 
Debt securities at amortised cost
Listed ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
8nlisted ��������� ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Financial liabilities
2ther liabilities  �������  �������  ������� ������� 

1ote� )inancial liabilities carr\ing amounts appro[imates their fair value

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value

I)5S � specifies a hierarch\ of valuation techniTues based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniTues are observable or 
unobservable. 2bservable input reflect marNet data obtained from independent sources� unobservable inputs reflect the Compan\’s marNet 
assumptions. 7hese two t\pes of inputs have created the following fair value hierarch\�

/evel �� 4uoted prices �unadMusted� in active marNets for identical assets or liabilities.

/evel �� Inputs other than Tuoted prices included within /evel � that are observable for the asset or liabilit\� either directl\ �i.e. as prices� or 
indirectl\ �i.e. derived from prices�.

/evel �� Inputs for the asset or liabilit\ that are not based on observable marNet data �unobservable inputs�.

7his hierarch\ reTuires the use of observable marNet data when available. 7he Group considers relevant and observable marNet prices in its 
valuations where possible.

Group
Level 1 

N’000
Level 2 

N’000
Level 3 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2014
Financial assets
)inancial asset designated at fair value  ��������� r r  ��������� 
Debt securities at available for sale

Listed  ������� r r  ������� 
(Tuit\ securities at available for sale

Listed  ��������� r r  ��������� 
8nlisted r  ���������  ��������� 

December 31st, 2013
Financial assets
)inancial asset designated at fair value  ������� r r  ������� 
Debt securities at available for sale

Listed  ������� r r  ������� 
(Tuit\ securities at available for sale

Listed  ��������� r r  ��������� 
8nlisted r  �������  �������  ������� 
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1otes to the consolidated financial statements 
continued

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities continued
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value continued

Company
Level 1 

N’000
Level 2 

N’000
Level 3 

N’000
Total 

N’000

December 31st, 2014
Financial assets
)inancial asset designated at fair value  ������� r r  ������� 
Debt securities at available for sale

Listed  ������� r r  ������� 
(Tuit\ securities at available for sale

Listed  ��������� r r  ��������� 
8nlisted r  ���������  ��������� 

December 31st, 2013
Financial assets
)inancial asset designated at fair value  ������� r r  ������� 
Debt securities at available for sale

Listed  ������� r r  ������� 
(Tuit\ securities at available for sale

Listed  ��������� r r  ��������� 
8nlisted r  �������  �������  ������� 

(c) Fair valuation methods and assumptions

)inancial assets and liabilities
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eTuivalents represent cash and placement held with banNs for short-term. 7he carr\ing amount of these balances 
appro[imates their fair value.

(ii) Other assets and other liabilities
2ther assets represent monetar\ assets which usuall\ has a short rec\cle period and other liabilities represents amount outstanding on 
account pa\ables. And as such the fair values of these balances appro[imate their carr\ing amount.

(iii) Equity and Bond prices
/isted eTuities were fair valued using Tuoted prices from the 1igeria StocN ([change. Available-for-sale bond portfolio were measured using 
prices from )inancial MarNet Dealer Association �)MDA�

8nlisted eTuities were fair valued using recent marNet prices from 2ver-the-counter marNet and in some instances� net asset valuation 
techniTue. )or unlisted bonds� valuation is done using marNet information of bonds with similar credit characteristics.

(iv) Other assets and liabilities including loans and receivables
2ther assets and liabilities represent financial instruments which usuall\ has a short rec\cle period and as such the carr\ing amount of these 
instruments represent their fair values.

42. Management of financial and insurance risk continued
42.4 Capital management and Solvency Margin
Continental 5einsurance 3lc capital management strateg\ focus on the creation of shareholders’ value whilst meeting the crucial and eTuall\ 
important obMective of providing an appropriate level of capital to protect staNeholders’ interests and satisf\ regulators.

7he Group’s obMectives when managing capital are as follows�

 △ to ensure that capital is� and will continue to be� adeTuate for the safet\� soundness and stabilit\ of the Compan\
 △ to generate sufficient capital to support the Compan\’s overall business strateg\
 △ to ensure that the Compan\ meets all regulator\ capital ratios and the prudent buffer reTuired b\ the %oard.

Solvenc\ and the use of regulator\ capital are monitored periodicall\ b\ the compan\’s management� emplo\ing techniTues based on the 
guidelines developed b\ the 1AIC2M� for supervisor\ purposes. 5egulator\ capital reTuirements are designed to monitor capital adeTuac\ 
and to protect polic\holders.

7he 1ational Insurance Commission reTuires each registered insurance compan\ to�

�a� hold the minimum level of the regulator\ capital of 
and
�b� maintain a minimum ratio of solvenc\ margin of �� percent.

During the period under review� all businesses within the Group complied with the solvenc\ margin regulation as stated b\ 1ational 
Insurance Commission.
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Consolidated statement of value added  
for the \ear ended December ��st� ����

Group 
2014 

N’000 %

Group 
2013 

N’000 %

Company 
2014 

N’000 %

Company 
2013 

N’000 %

1et premium income�
/ocal  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
)oreign  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 

Other income  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
 15,536,849  14,956,150  12,607,914  13,622,151 

 Claims� commission� charges 
 and management e[penses 

local  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������
imported  �����������  �����������  �����������  �����������

Value added  2,633,327  100.0  3,182,480  100.0  2,203,504  100.0  2,878,545  100.0 

Applied as follows:
To pay employees:

Salaries� pension and other allowances �������  ��.� �������  ��.� �������  ��.� �������  ��.� 
To pay Government:

Income ta[ �������  ��.� �������  ��.� �������  ��.� �������  ��.� 
Information technolog\ lev\ ������  �.� ������  �.� ������  �.� ������  �.� 

Retained for growth:
Depreciation and amortisation ������  �.� �������  �.� ������  �.� ������  �.� 
Deferred ta[ation ������  �.�  ������  �.� ������  �.� ������  �.� 
3rofit for the \ear �������  ��.� ���������  ��.� �������  ��.� ���������  ��.� 

 2,633,327  99.9  3,182,480  100.0  2,203,504  99.9  2,878,545  100.0 

9alue added is the wealth created b\ the efforts of the Compan\ and subsidiar\ and its emplo\ees and its allocation between emplo\ees� 
shareholders� government and re-investment for the future creation of further wealth.

)ive-\ear financial summar\

Statement of financial position as at
IFRS

December 31st

2014 
N’000

2013 
N’000

2012 
N’000

2011 
N’000

2010 
N’000

Assets
Cash and cash eTuivalents  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
)inancial asset held for trading  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
/oans and other receivables  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Available-for-sale investments  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
+eld to maturit\ investments  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance receivables  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Retrocession assets  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Deferred acTuisition costs  ���������  ���������  ���������  �������  ������� 
Other assets  ���������  �������  ���������  �������  ������ 
Investment properties  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Intangible assets  �����  �����  ������  �����  ����� 
3ropert\� plant and eTuipment  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Investments in subsidiar\  ���������  ������� r r r 
Statutor\ deposits  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Total assets  24,884,501  25,042,296  24,049,439  21,557,867  19,637,227 
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5einsurance creditors  ���������  ���������  �������  �������  ������� 
2ther liabilities  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
5etirement benefit obligation  �������  ������  �������  �����  ������ 
Current income ta[ pa\able  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
Deferred ta[ liabilities  ������  ������  �����  ������  ������ 
Total liabilities  11,257,842  10,894,961  10,814,072  9,242,589  7,763,027 
Equity
Share capital  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Share premium  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
5etained earnings  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Contingenc\ reserve  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Available-for-sale reserve  �������  �������  �������� ���������  ������ 
Total equity  13,626,659  14,147,335  13,235,367  12,315,278  11,874,200 
Total liabilities and equity  24,884,501  25,042,296  24,049,439  21,557,867  19,637,227 

Income statement Ior year ended
IFRS NGAAP

December 31st

2014 
N’000

2013 
N’000

2012 
N’000

2011 
N’000

2010 
N’000

Gross premium  ����������  ����������  ����������  ����������  ���������� 
3rofit before income ta[  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Income ta[ e[pense  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������
3rofit after ta[ation  �������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
Appropriations:
7ransfer to contingenc\ reserve  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
7ransfer to retained earnings  �������  ���������  �������  ���������  ������� 
(arnings per share �Nobo�  6  15  ��  14  �� 
1et assets per share �Nobo�  ���  ���  ���  119  115 

1ote� (arnings and dividend per share were computed based on the profit for the \ear and on the number of issued and full\ paid ordinar\ shares at the end of the \ear. 1et assets per share were computed on the number 
of issued and full\ paid ordinar\ shares at the end of the respective \ears.
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Share capital histor\

Authorised (NGN) Issued & fully paid up (NGN)

ConsiderationIncrease Cumulative Increase Cumulative

1985 r ���������� r r r
1986 r ���������� r ��������� Cash
1987 r ���������� ��������� ��������� Cash
1988 ��������� ���������� ��������� ���������� Cash
1989 r ���������� ��������� ���������� Cash
1990 r ���������� ��������� ���������� Cash
1991 r ���������� ��������� ���������� Cash
���� ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� Cash
���� r ����������� ���������� ���������� Cash and %onus �� for ���
1994 r ����������� ���������� ���������� Cash and %onus �� for ��
1995 r ����������� ���������� ���������� Cash and %onus �� for ���
1996 r ����������� ��������� ���������� Cash� StocN split �1����� to 1��
1997 ����������� ����������� ���������� ����������� Cash
1998 r ����������� ���������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ���
1999 ����������� ����������� ���������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ���
���� r ����������� ���������� ����������� Cash
���� r ����������� ���������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ��
���� r ����������� ���������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ��
���� ����������� ������������� ����������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ��
���� r ������������� ����������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ��
���� ������������� ������������� ����������� ����������� Cash and %onus �� for ��
���� �������������� ������������� ����������� ������������� Cash
���� r ������������� ������������� ������������� Cash� StocN split �1� to 1�.���
���� r ������������� r ������������� r
���� r ������������� r ������������� r
���� r ������������� r ������������� r
���� r ������������� r ������������� r
���� r ������������� r ������������� r
���� ������������� �������������� r ������������� r
���� r �������������� r ������������� r

3ro[\ form
Continental 5einsurance 3lc 5C� �����

��th Annual General Meeting to be held at 9ictoria Crown 3la]a �9C3� hotel� ���b� AMose Adeogun Street� 9ictoria Island� /agos on 
7hursda\� -ul\ ��th� ���� at ��.�� a.m.

I/We __________________________________________________ being a member�members of C217I1(17A/ 5(I1S85A1C( 3/C�

hereb\ appoint 

_______________________________________________of ___________________________________ or failing him�

the Chairman as m\�our pro[\ to act and vote for me�us and on m\�our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Compan\ to be held

on ___________________________________________________________________ � ���� and at an\ and ever\ adMournment thereof.

Dated this __________________________________________________da\ of _________________________________________ ����

Shareholder’s signature __________________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

7o receive the Audited )inancial Statements and the 5eports of the Directors� Auditors and Audit Committee

7o declare a dividend

7o re-elect Mr. 9incent /e Guennou

7o re-elect Mr. -ohnnie :ilco[

7o authorise the Directors to fi[ the remuneration of the Auditors

7o elect members of the Audit Committee

7o approve the remuneration of the Directors�
 △ Chairman� 1G1���������.�� per annum
 △ 2ther Directors� 1G1���������.�� each per annum

3lease indicate with an “;” in the appropriate space how \ou wish \our votes to be cast on the resolutions set out above. 8nless otherwise indicated� the pro[\ will vote or 
abstain at his�her discretion

Notes
�.  A member �shareholder� who is unable to attend the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a pro[\ to attend the meeting and vote on his�her behalf. 7his 3ro[\ )orm has been prepared to enable \ou e[ercise 

\our right to vote in case \ou cannot personall\ attend the meeting. 
�.  3rovision has also been made on this form for the Chairman of the meeting to act as \our pro[\� but if \ou wish� \ou ma\ insert� in the space marNed 

� the name of an\ person� whether a member of the Compan\ 

or not� who will attend the meeting and vote on \our behalf.
�. In the case of Moint shareholders� the signature of an\ of them will suffice� but the names of all -oint Shareholders must be stated. 
�.  7o appoint a pro[\ using this form� the form must be completed and signed and must be deposited at the registered office of the Compan\ or the office of the 5egistrars� Sterling 5egistrars /imited� ��� Campbell Street� 

/agos not later than �� hours before the time for holding the meeting.
�. If this 3ro[\ form is e[ecuted b\ a corporate shareholder� it must be sealed under the common seal of the corporate shareholder or under the hand of an officer or attorne\ dul\ authori]ed in that behalf.
�.  It is the reTuirement of the law under the Stamp Duties Act Cap. S� /)1 ����� that an\ instrument of 3ro[\ to be used for the purpose of voting b\ an\ persons entitled to vote at an\ meeting of shareholders� 

must bear the appropriate stamp dut\� and not adhesive postage stamps. 72 %( 9A/ID 7+IS )25M M8S7 ACC25DI1G/<� %( S7AM3(D A7 7+( S7AM3 D87I(S 2))IC(.

Before posting or depositing the above form, please tear off this admission card and retain it for admission to the meeting.

Admission Card Continental Reinsurance Plc  5C� �����

1umber of shares held ________________________________________________________________________________________
3lease admit the shareholder named on this form or his dul\ appointed pro[\ to the ��th Annual General Meeting to be held at 
9ictoria Crown 3la]a �9C3� +otel� ���b� AMose Adeogun Street� 9ictoria Island� /agos on 7hursda\� -ul\ ��th� ���� at ��.�� a.m.

1ame of shareholder _________________________________________________________________________________________

1ame of person attending _____________________________________________________________________________________

Signature of person attending ___________________________________________________________________________________
Note:
<ou are reTuested to sign this form at the entrance in the presence of the 5egistrar on the da\ of the Annual General Meeting.



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 121Continental Reinsurance Plc120

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

The Registrar, 
Sterling Registrars Limited, 

8th Floor, Knight Frank Building, 
24, Campbell Street, 

Lagos

The Registrar, Date� _____________________________
Sterling 5egistrars /imited
�th )loor� .night )ranN %uilding�
��� Campbell Street� /agos.
7el� ��-�������� �������
7el�)a[� �������

I�:e hereb\ reTuest that from now on� all dividends due or which ma\ be due to me�us from m\�our holding in Continental 5einsurance 
3lc� be paid directl\ to m\�our banN account named below�

Surname�Compan\’s name� ______________________________________________________________________________________

2ther 1ames �for individual shareholder�� ___________________________________________________________________________

Current postal address� _________________________________________________________________________________________

(-mail address� ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Mobile phone numbers� _________________________________________________________________________________________

%anN� _______________________________________________________________________________________________________

%anN branch� _________________________________________________________________________________________________

%anN branch address� ___________________________________________________________________________________________

%anN account number� __________________________________________________________________________________________

%anN sort code� _______________________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 
Shareholder’s right thumbprint or signature� ________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Shareholder:

Authorised signature�s�� 
 

Compan\ seal �Incorporation number �corporate shareholder�� 
 

%anN authorised signature and banN stamp� 
 

3lease complete and return to the registrars

Mandate form
for (-dividend pa\ment



Overview
Our 
profile

Business 
review Reports

Financial 
statements

Other 
information

Continental Reinsurance Plc 123Continental Reinsurance Plc122

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

The Registrar, 
Sterling Registrars Limited, 

8th Floor, Knight Frank Building, 
24, Campbell Street, 

Lagos

The Registrar, Date� _____________________________
Sterling 5egistrars /imited
�th )loor� .night )ranN %uilding�
��� Campbell Street� /agos.
7el� ��-�������� �������
7el�)a[� �������

Shareholder account number� ____________________________________________________________________________________

CSCS number� ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Surname�Compan\’s name� ______________________________________________________________________________________

2ther name �individual shareholder�� _______________________________________________________________________________

(-mail address� ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Mobile phone numbers� _________________________________________________________________________________________

Current postal address� _________________________________________________________________________________________

Signature�s� 
 
 
 

Data update form
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The Registrar, 
Sterling Registrars Limited, 

8th Floor, Knight Frank Building, 
24, Campbell Street, 

Lagos
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Nigeria
St. Nicholas House, 8th Floor
6 Catholic Mission Street
P.O. Box 2401, Lagos, Nigeria
Tel: +234 1 4622779, 8732624
Fax: +234 1 0700REINSURE, Ext. 138

Cameroon
Rue Ngosso Din
DerriÂre 3harmacie de la CÎte� %ali
3.2. %o[ ����� Douala� Cameroon
Tel: +237 33 42 24 94
Fax: +237 33 42 27 88

CÎte d’,voire 
�Âme Ãtage� Imm. (Tuino[e�  
Angle de la 5oute du /\cÃe 7echniTue 
et de la 5ue de la CanebiÂre �Carrefour 3isam�
Cocod\ Danga r %3 ���� AbidMan ��� CÎte d’Ivoire
Tel: +225 22 44 51 80
Fax: +225 22 44 14 38

Tunisia
5ue /ac /Ãman� Imm. 5egenc\ r %loc “C”
�Âme Ãtage r %ur ���
���� /es %erges du /ac� 7unis� 7unisia
Tel: +216 71 964 997 / 988
Fax: +216 71 964 991

.enya 
197 Lenana Place, 4th Floor
/enana 5oad� 1airobi� .en\a
3.2. %o[ �����r�����
Tel: +254 202 429 391
Fax: +254 202 610 806

%otsZana 
3lot ������ )airgrounds� Gaborone� %otswana
3ostal address� 3.2. %o[ ��� A%G� Selebe
Gaborone� %otswana
Tel: +267 3974384
Fax: +267 3974371

www.continental-re.com


